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TPL Trakker is one of the largest Telematics 
companies in Pakistan. For two decades, we have 
been a pioneer in the GPS Tracking Industry, helping 
customers extract data about vehicles and turning 
their utilization into intelligence. This improves 
operations and safety while mitigating cost and risk. 
TPL Trakker provides reliable end-to-end solutions 
for individuals, commercial fleets, businesses and 
automotive industry suppliers.



Trakking



As leaders of geospatial data in Pakistan via our 
mapping arm, TPL Maps, we provide services and 
solutions that are current, scalable, automated 
and consistent. Licensed by the Survey of 
Pakistan, TPL Trakker was amongst the first 
companies to get a license for digital mapping in 
the country. As a location data powerhouse 
covering 400 cities, 4.5 million geo-coded 
addresses and POIs, and 600,000 km of road 
network mapped across Pakistan, TPL Trakker is 
poised to power the on-demand digital economy. 



Mapping &
Location
Services



TPL Trakker’s core business of Industrial Internet of 
Things (IIoT) puts analytics, people and machines to 
work, creating an advanced network of connected 
devices. We help  businesses that are spread across 
a broad spectrum of industries to make smarter 
decisions that drive powerful outcomes.



IoT
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Creating value through 
digital transformation.

Vision

Delivering telematics 
to connect mobile 
assets, people and 
businesses.

Integrity  |  Entrepreneurial Spirit  |  Value Creation
Team Work  |  Diversity  |  Gender Equality

Mission

Core Values



50%

73.38%

29.62%

100%

83.75%

100%

6.91%

100% G-18 (Pvt.) Ltd.

100%
TPL Logistic Park

(Pvt.) Ltd.

100%
TPL Property Management

(Pvt.) Ltd.

80% HKC (Pvt.) Ltd.

100% TPL REIT Management
Company Ltd.

29%

Annual Report 2019-20 09



10

Company
Information
Board of Directors
Jameel Yusuf S.St. Director/Chairman
Sarwar Ali Khan Director
Sabiha Sultan Ahmad Director
Mohammad Riaz Director
Brig (R) Mohammad Tahir Chaudhary Director
Adnan Shahid Director
Ahmed Zuberi Director
Ali Asgher Director

Chief Executive Officer
Sarwar Ali Khan

Chief Financial Officer
Malik Ahmed Sheheryar

Company Secretary
Danish Qazi
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Muhammad Riaz Member
Yousuf Zohaib Ali Secretary

Human Resources &
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THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited
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Geographical
Presence
Corporate Office, Karachi
12th & 13th Floor, Centrepoint, Off Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, 
Adjacent KPT Interchange, Karachi-74900

TPL Trakker Installation Centre
20-B, Block 6, P.E.C.H.S., Shahrah-e-Faisal, Karachi.

Lahore Regional Office
Tower 75, 4th Floor, L Block, Gulberg III, Kalma Chowk,
Main Ferozepur Road, Lahore.

Islamabad Regional Office
10th Floor (South), ISE Towers, 55-B,
Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad.

Islamabad Branch Office
19Y, 3rd Floor, Business Bay Avenue, Bahria Expressway,
Sector F, DHA Phase 1, Islamabad.

Faisalabad Regional Office
Office No. 2, 4th Floor, Mezan Executive Tower, Civil Lines, 
Faisalabad.

Multan Regional Office
House No. 2, Haider Street, Shalimar Colony, Multan.

Peshawar Regional Office
C-7 & C-8, 3rd Floor, Jasmine Arcade, Fakhr-e-Alam Road, 
Peshawar Cantt.

Hyderabad Regional Office
2nd Floor, Plot # 5, Block B-15, Main Auto Bahn Road,
Hyderabad.
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Chairman’s Review



On behalf of the Board of Directors, I would like to thank our shareholders for joining the vision of TPL Trakker 
Limited (“the Company”) of creating value through digital transformation and delivering telematics to connect 
mobile assets, people and businesses. Through this report, subsequent to the listing of the Company, I present the 
Company’s overview to our shareholders and other stakeholders to apprise them of the performance of the team.

With over two decades of experience, TPL Trakker Limited has been a market leader in the vehicle tracking 
industry. With its mapping arm, the company ventured into Connected Car, Data Mapping, Location Based 
Services and Industrial IoT solutions. We attribute our success to our employees, who strive to steer the company 
forward, even during challenging times. 

Our financial results for the year 2019 reflect the impact of the economic climate and volatility in markets following 
COVID-19. We continue to maintain our commitment to ensure effective performance and reinforce our 
stakeholders’ concerns.

I would like to express my gratitude to our Board and the management team for their dedicated efforts, as well as to 
all employees for their hard work throughout the year. Our Board of Directors (the Board) comprises of 
independent, non-executive and executive directors who represent the right combination of skills and experience. 
The Board assists the management of the Company to thrive consistently in all situations through their knowledge, 
thoughtful engagement and regular support. 

The trading of shares of TPLT  on the Pakistan Stock Exchange has marked the beginning of a new chapter in our 
Company’s growth. Giving the utmost importance to corporate governance, the Board has constituted its 
Committees (“the Audit Committee and the Human Resource Committee”) which have  played a crucial role in 
ensuring adherence to all regulatory requirements by the management and carrying out a review to evaluate its 
processes and effectiveness with the aim of ensuring efficient and effective operations and functions. 

My sincere appreciation to all our shareholders for placing their trust in TPL Trakker. I would also like to thank our  
financiers, business associates, consultants and the regulatory authorities for their continued support.

Wishing success in the years to come.
. 

Jameel Yusuf S.St.
Chairman of the Board
As of June 30, 2020
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CEO’s Message



Disruption and resilience have been at the core of this past year. Amidst the uncertainty and volatility brought on 
by the COVID-19 pandemic, we have shown determination to drive success and growth through tangible business 
outcomes in the technology sector. We have drawn focus to our core business strengths, further developing new 
business lines, and to new digital initiatives for sustainable growth. I am pleased to share below, a snapshot of our 
achievements and innovations in the past year and I trust that these will enable TPL Trakker Limited to continue to 
create and deliver value for all our stakeholders.
                                                                       
With the first half of the year showing growth, our position was expectedly positive, however with the onset of the 
COVID-19 pandemic, we saw a tremendous shift to the outlook for key markets, the nature of business, as well as 
considerable changes in consumer behavior. 

While key sectors like automotive manufacturing were already underperforming in 2019, this market shrunk further 
in the face of the pandemic and we had to adapt accordingly to maintain business momentum and generate 
sustainable growth. This involved bringing new innovations to the forefront such as Connected Car solutions and 
Trakker for Retail, as well as actively targeting new entrants like Kia, Hyundai and Changan in the automobile 
market for both the AVN and Tracking business lines. As auto financing rates improved over the year, subsequently 
driving an uptick in auto sales, this strategic move proved to yield long term dividends that would help maintain our 
position as market leaders.

Given changes in the business environment, we kept employee well-being in mind, shifting to remote work and 
adeptly maintaining goals and targets while also providing employees with training sessions to manage the 
dramatic changes to their day-to-day lives. We also took upon strategic initiatives to streamline internal operations 
and ultimately transform customer-facing touch-points. This included digitization and automation of Invoicing and 
Billing functions, an initiative that would not only reduce costs for our organization, but also improve our customer 
experience by reducing clutter and selecting channels most suited to their needs.

As the pandemic showed no signs of respite, our portfolio of Solutions and Services ensured we were ideally 
positioned to meet the shifts in customer expectations. Consumers began to rely further and further on digital 
services and solutions. Not only did this become an opportunity to showcase the TPL Trakker Mobile Application 
to new audiences via digital campaigns, but it also proved to be a significant opportunity for Location Based 
Services (LBS) sales. With a sharp increase in demand for digitally-linked services such as Food Delivery and 
Logistics, our LBS consumption with clients such as foodpanda, Eat Mubarak and Bykea has increased to new 
heights and has set the stage for strong growth in market share over the next year.

As we continue to grow newer business lines such as LBS, we have also drawn significant momentum for the 
Container Security Solutions business line, which has been used to track and monitor Afghan Transit bonded 
cargo for several years. In the next financial year, we expect to increase our monthly volumes by 60% (MoM) by 
initiating tracking of Transshipment Cargo and Reverse Commercial Cargo coming from Afghanistan into Pakistan. 
It is also a point of pride that we are also the first Company to have started commercial tracking operations from 
Gwadar Port which will further add to the long term growth of the Container Security business line.

Our business has truly demonstrated its strengths in the market and has emerged from the economic downturn 
more streamlined and determined to generate tangible business outcomes and continue on the path of growth, 
expansion and success.  This is in no small part due to our people, who have shown tremendous resolve, agility 
and pragmatism. As we keep going forward, we will continue to explore new avenues of growth through product 
and data innovation that will ultimately strengthen our presence in key markets and address the needs of our 
stakeholders. We are agents of disruption with a passion for digital transformation and innovation that serve our 
customers’ needs with efficiency, efficacy and ingenuity.

I would like to express my sincere appreciation and gratitude to those who have extended their trust in TPL Trakker.

Best,

Sarwar Ali Khan

Annual Report 2019-20 15
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Board of
Directors

Sarwar Ali Khan  CEO

Ahmad Zuberi  Director Mohammad Riaz Director Ali Asgher Director

Jameel Yusuf S. St.  Chairman

Sabiha Sultan Ahmed  Director Adnan Shahid  Director

Brigadier (R) Muhammad Tahir Chaudhary  Director



Work from home

Mandatory face masks

Limited passengers in lifts

Sanitizer stations throughout
the workspace

Daily disinfection of facilities

Regular updates for protocols

Social distancing in
seating arrangements 

Social distancing in the 
Cafeteria
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Sustainability
At TPL, we proactively integrate Sustainability 
into our routine decision making processes. 
Dedicated to driving positive change, we are 
aligned with the goals of the United Nation’s 
2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development.

Our Focus Areas

Health

52,590
Beneficiaries provided with
good health and well-being

Education

6,189
Beneficiaries provided
with quality education

Environment

34,943
Agents of

environmental change

COVID-19 Response at Centrepoint
In January 2020, the World Health Organization (WHO) declared the outbreak of COVID-19 to be a 
Public Health Emergency of International Concern. In response, we minimized the risk faced by 
our people and implemented strict precautionary measures at our offices, in compliance with 

international guidelines for the workplace. We will continue to ensure the safety and well-being of 
our employees, suppliers, customers, and local communities in the battle against COVID-19.
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Blood Donation Drive

Number of blood units drawn
in four years

245

171

19’-20’17’-18’

116

154

Registrations Blood units drawn

TPL contributed towards the construction of 
Lady Dufferin Hospital’s new OPD building 
which provides free of cost gynaecological 

surgeries and deliveries, ensuring low clinical 
charges for the needy.

To encourage employees to be mentally and 
physically fit, we regularly arrange awareness 

programs.

TPL partnered with The Indus Hospital and 
Pakistan Red Crescent Society to organize a 

Blood Donation Drive to help fulfill the nation’s 
demand for blood.

TPL was the proud Sponsor of the 58th TPL 
Sindh Open Boys Swimming Championship 

2019. Organized by the Sindh Swimming 
Association (SSA), the three-day 

championship is one of the largest sporting 
events in the province.

The Lady Dufferin Hospital

Construction of the OPD building that 
will result in a 10% increase in capacity

58th TPL Sindh Open Boys
Swimming Championship 2019 

Awareness Sessions

400 contestants from schools,
colleges and recreational clubs

Session on Mental Health Awareness 
held for 100+ female staff on 
International Women’s Day

Session on Breast Cancer Awareness held in 
collaboration with Shaukat Khanum 
Memorial Cancer Hospital for 45+ female 
employees

Session on Good Health & Well-Being 
conducted by Dr. Kholod Shafi (MBBS & CFT)
for 20+ employees

Health
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Drinking Water

Responsible Consumption and Waste Management

We have reduced our mineral 
water expense and mitigated 
plastic consumption by installing 
water purifying dispensers 
throughout Centrepoint.

TPL launched a Company-wide water and energy conservation awareness 
campaign to reduce our carbon footprint. We also partnered with Davaam 
Waste to recycle the waste generated from Centrepoint.

Number of
plastic bottles
saved: 32,643

Language Sessions

Karachi Biennale ‘19

TPL held basic English Language
sessions for lift operators, 
housekeeping, security, 
electricians and kitchen staff. 

TPL has been sponsoring Karachi Biennale since its inception. In 2019, 
we were the exclusive sponsor of the “Educational Program” which 
reached out to multiple schools. Through a series of art tours, it aimed 
to bring the community together and focused on the theme of green 
ecosystems.

80+ employees
successfully completed

the sessions

Impact of KB ‘19
3,000 students | 200 teachers | 30 schools

70 % waste 
recycled per month

Educating the Marginalized 
A workshop with the theme ‘Clean 
Green Pakistan’ was conducted at 
Nano’s School. Employees 
volunteered to teach the students 
about environmental sustainability. 

45+ Students provided
with environmental

education

No-Meat Monday
TPL introduced the concept of
going meat-less on Mondays at 
the Centrepoint cafeteria to 
increase awareness on adopting 
a healthier lifestyle.

10 % reduction
in meat consumption 

per month

Education

Environment



conducted
in 2019-20

2 Fire Drills
Fatalities reported

in 2019-20

0

20

TPL is committed to creating a dynamic and 
inclusive workplace that fosters a healthy, highly 
engaged and skilled workforce where everyone 

can excel. We ensure that everyone working 
with us feels welcomed, supported and valued 

for their talents.  To ensure the continuous 
growth of our employees in their professional 

endeavors, we regularly conduct training 
sessions which include both soft and technical 

trainings.  

Training and Development

 

Health and Safety in the
Workplace

TPL Trakker Powers
Smart Lockdown Solutions

CPR Training Workshop

TPL conducted a 
Cardiopulmonary Resuscitation 

(CPR) Training Session in 
collaboration with The Indus 
Hospital. By learning this life 

saving technique, our 
employees will be able to assist 

a person in an emergency.

TPL strives to ensure the routine 
implementation of strict policies 

and targeted safety drills. We 
aim to provide a workplace 

environment where employees 
are physically and mentally safe. 

TPL Trakker partnered with 
NITB (National Information 

Technology Board) and NCOC 
(National Command and 

Operation Center) to develop a 
smart lockdown and clustering 

solution. This helped the 
Government in its efforts to 

control and reduce the 
number of COVID-19 cases in 

Pakistan.

Social Responsibility

TPL strives to operate with integrity, 
promoting diversity and inclusion in the 

workplace. As an equal opportunity employer, 
management teams ensure that people from 

diverse backgrounds are recruited. TPL 
implemented a Paternity Leave Policy with 

support and flexibility for fathers to help them 
transition to parenthood.

Diversity and Inclusion

Employees received basic 
CPR certification

50+

Employees trained in
soft and technical skills

476

Total number of employees
706

Gender Diversity Ratio
1:20
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Scaling for
Impact

Over the years, TPL has supported more than 50 nonprofit 
organizations and charitable trusts across Pakistan, ranging from 
local charities to international NGOs and universities.

We aim to understand the challenges being faced by our 
communities to make collective change.



Organizational Structure
Company Secretary

& Group General
Counsel

Head of Enterprise
Sales

Business
Development

Manager

Executive
Director

Head of Asset
Tracking

Regional Sales
Head South

Regional Sales
Head Central

Regional Sales
Head North

Chief Financial
Officer



Board of
Directors

Board Audit
Committee

Chief Executive
Officer

Chief Internal
Auditor

Head of R&D

Senior Manager
Technical

Manager
Operations

Senior GIS
Specialist

Head of Information
Technology

Senior Manager
Customer Services

Chief Operations &
Transformation

Officer

Head of Client
Services – STE

Project

Chief Information
Officer • Marketing & 

Communication
• Human Resources
• Administration
• Legal
• IT Infrastructure
• Procurement

Shared Functions
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Horizontal Analysis Balance Sheet

Rupees Variance % Rupees Variance % Rupees

Property, plant & equipment

Intangible Assets

Right-of-use assets

Long-term investments

Long term loans

Long term deposits

Deferred tax assets - net

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loan and advances

Trade deposits and prepayments

Interest accrued

Other receivables

Short-term investments

Due from related parties 

Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Capital reserve

Revenue reserve

Surplus on revaluation of Fixed Assets

Long-term financing

Lease liabilities

Long-term loans

Government grant

Trade and other payables

Accrued mark-up

Short-term financing

Running finance under mark-up arrangements

Current portion of non-current liabilities

Due to related parties

Taxation - net

Advance monitoring fees

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

-34%

86%

100%

0%

5%

-28%

788%

-8%

-22%

173%

41%

76%

111%

0%

86%

-100%

-3%

30%

100%

-164%

-49%

31%

-49%

53%

100%

25%

106%

10846%

12%

-58%

-93%

100%

-20%

1,059,232,338

2,138,388,733

72,269,178

85,030,450

669,898

33,953,962

63,764,748

246,221,725

1,022,872,997

107,834,467

61,494,946

128,444,634

29,339,542

-

1,071,684,058

-

19,221,288

6,140,422,964

1,204,425,930

146,817,136

(82,063,384)

284,432,213

393,263,634

26,419,021

227,448,306

1,781,008

935,825,506

140,061,771

1,394,169,173

1,105,194,287

264,050,183

47,772,963

13,685,055

37,140,162

6,140,422,964

44%

0%

0%

100%

46%

-11%

431%

-18%

1%

-1%

-14%

131%

-26%

-100%

81%

220%

40%

54%

0%

-65%

143%

-50%

10246%

-52%

0%

9%

11%

-34%

5%

86%

53%

0%

25%

1,151,299,734

-

85,030,450

637,436

47,100,425

7,178,349

266,339,657

1,309,502,023

39,435,026

43,674,281

73,054,250

13,934,042

-

576,290,498

42,478,304

19,830,816

5,277,930,497

929,262,520

-

128,476,899

555,272,027

300,000,000

52,145,571

148,888,890

-

750,929,062

68,100,451

12,737,305

988,025,014

627,321,359

670,119,700

-

46,651,699

5,277,930,497

1,109,137,640

1,152,007,635

-

-

436,577

52,968,501

1,351,052

325,837,835

1,298,977,797

39,967,125

50,731,410

31,634,768

18,924,417

200,000,000

318,635,764

13,262,192

14,166,603

4,628,039,316

601,771,360

-

369,095,527

228,272,597

600,000,000

504,016

308,133,420

-

687,457,675

61,557,517

19,181,204

939,871,844

337,873,318

436,857,162

-

37,463,676

4,628,039,316

2020 2019 2018

1,602,145,206
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Horizontal Analysis Profit and Loss Account

Rupees Variance % Rupees Variance % Rupees

2020 2019 2018

Turnover - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Operating profit

Other expenses

Finance costs

Other Income

(Loss) / Profit before taxation

Taxation

(Loss) / Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

1,605,235,951

(981,520,486)

623,715,465

(324,346,121)

(414,778,518)

(115,409,174)

-

(515,317,204)

161,224,750

(469,501,628)

10,984,235

(458,517,393)

(9,538,644)

(468,056,037)

-9%

28%

-38%

13%

13%

-133%

-100%

66%

162%

-764%

-132%

-1379%

-103%

-229%

1,771,864,595

(767,114,950)

1,004,749,645

(286,453,301)

(368,309,884)

349,986,460

(30,822,802)

(309,959,166)

61,484,097

70,688,589

(34,825,647)

35,862,942

327,456,882

363,319,824

7%

16%

1%

9%

-11%

8%

62%

38%

28%

-45%

11%

-63%

100%

273%

1,660,647,208

(661,285,399)

999,361,809

(263,752,948)

(411,902,451)

323,706,410

(19,049,307)

(224,068,041)

48,097,569

128,686,631

(31,340,228)

97,346,403

-

97,346,403
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Vertical Analysis Balance Sheet

Property, plant & equipment

Intangible Assets

Right-of-use assets

Long-term investments

Long term loans

Long term deposits

Deferred tax assets - net

Stock-in-trade

Trade debts

Loan and advances

Trade deposits and prepayments

Interest accrued

Other receivables

Short-term investments

Due from related parties 

Taxation - net

Cash and bank balances

TOTAL ASSETS

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital

Capital reserve

Revenue reserve

Surplus on revaluation of Fixed Assets

Long-term financing

Lease liabilities

Long-term loans

Government grant

Trade and other payables

Accrued mark-up

Short-term financing

Running finance under mark-up arrangements

Current portion of non-current liabilities

Due to related parties

Taxation - net

Advance monitoring fees

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

1,059,232,338

2,138,388,733

72,269,178

85,030,450

669,898

33,953,962

63,764,748

246,221,725

1,022,872,997

107,834,467

61,494,946

128,444,634

29,339,542

-

1,071,684,058

-

19,221,288

6,140,422,964

1,204,425,930

146,817,136

(82,063,384)

284,432,213

393,263,634

26,419,021

227,448,306

1,781,008

935,825,506

140,061,771

1,394,169,173

1,105,194,287

264,050,183

47,772,963

13,685,055

37,140,162

6,140,422,964

17.25%

34.82%

1.18%

1.38%

0.01%

0.55%

1.04%

4.01%

16.66%

1.76%

1.00%

2.09%

0.48%

0.00%

17.45%

0.00%

0.31%

100%

19.61%

2.39%

-1.34%

4.63%

6.40%

0.43%

3.70%

0.03%

15.24%

2.28%

22.70%

18.00%

4.30%

0.78%

0.22%

0.60%

100%

1,602,145,206

1,151,299,734

-

85,030,450

637,436

47,100,425

7,178,349

266,339,657

1,309,502,023

39,435,026

43,674,281

73,054,250

13,934,042

-

576,290,498

42,478,304

19,830,816

5,277,930,497

929,262,520

-

128,476,899

555,272,027

300,000,000

52,145,571

148,888,890

-

750,929,062

68,100,451

12,737,305

988,025,014

627,321,359

670,119,700

-

46,651,699

5,277,930,497

30.36%

21.81%

0.00%

1.61%

0.01%

0.89%

0.14%

5.05%

24.81%

0.75%

0.83%

1.38%

0.26%

0.00%

10.92%

0.80%

0.38%

100%

17.61%

0.00%

2.43%

10.52%

5.68%

0.99%

2.82%

0.00%

14.23%

1.29%

0.24%

18.72%

11.89%

12.70%

0.00%

0.88%

100%

1,109,137,640

1,152,007,635

-

-

436,577

52,968,501

1,351,052

325,837,835

1,298,977,797

39,967,125

50,731,410

31,634,768

18,924,417

200,000,000

318,635,764

13,262,192

14,166,603

4,628,039,316

601,771,360

-

369,095,527

228,272,597

600,000,000

504,016

308,133,420

-

687,457,675

61,557,517

19,181,204

939,871,844

337,873,318

436,857,162

-

37,463,676

4,628,039,316

24%

25%

0%

0%

0%

1%

0%

7%

28%

1%

1%

1%

0%

4%

7%

0%

0%

100%

13%

0%

8%

5%

13%

0%

7%

0%

15%

1%

0%

20%

7%

9%

0%

1%

100%

Rupees Variance % Rupees Variance %

2020 2019

Rupees Variance %

2018
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Vertical Analysis of Profit and Loss Account

Rupees Variance % Rupees Variance %

2020 2019

Rupees Variance %

2018

Turnover - net

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Operating profit

Other expenses

Finance costs

Other Income

(Loss) / Profit before taxation

Taxation

(Loss) / Profit after taxation

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

1,605,235,951

(981,520,486)

623,715,465

(324,346,121)

(414,778,518)

(115,409,174)

-

(515,317,204)

161,224,750

(469,501,628)

10,984,235

(458,517,393)

(9,538,644)

(468,056,037)

100%

-61%

39%

-20%

-26%

-7%

0%

-32%

10%

-29%

1%

-29%

-1%

-29%

1,771,864,595

(767,114,950)

1,004,749,645

(286,453,301)

(368,309,884)

349,986,460

(30,822,802)

(309,959,166)

61,484,097

70,688,589

(34,825,647)

35,862,942

327,456,882

363,319,824

100%

-43%

57%

-16%

-21%

20%

-2%

-17%

3%

4%

-2%

2%

18%

21%

1,660,647,208

(661,285,399)

999,361,809

(263,752,948)

(411,902,451)

323,706,410

(19,049,307)

(224,068,041)

48,097,569

128,686,631

(31,340,228)

97,346,403

-

97,346,403

100%

-40%

60%

-16%

-25%

19%

-1%

-13%

3%

8%

-2%

6%

0%

6%
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Cash Flow Analysis 

2020 2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Loss) / profit before taxation 128,686,631
Adjustment for non cash charges and other items:
Depreciation on operating fixed assets 134,568,953
Depreciation on Right-of-use assets -
(Reversal)/ Allowance for expected credit loss (ECL) 15,294,058
Amortisation of intangible assets 10,630,078
Finance cost 224,068,041
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (18,009,801)
Amortization of government grant -
Exchange (gain) / loss - net 17,280,150
Deferred income (2,444,444)

381,387,035
Operating profit before working capital changes 510,073,666

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stock-in-trade (166,882,426)
Trade debts (124,790,568)
Loans and advances (30,198,246)
Trade deposits and prepayments (14,547,652)
Other receivables 524,279
Interest Accrued (19,632,290)
Due from related parties (214,665,207)

(570,192,110)
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities
Trade and other payables 241,882,101
Due to related parties 347,487,052
Advance monitoring fees (130,097,772)

459,271,381

Cash generated from operations 399,152,937
Receipts / (payments) for :
Finance cost (211,738,623)
Income taxes (47,115,205)

(258,853,828)

Net cash generated from operating activities 140,299,109

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of - property, plant and equipment (23,615,075)
                       - capital work-in-progress (32,543,312)
                       - intangible assets (5,147,556)
Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 33,570,763
Long-term deposits (12,777,273)
Long-term loans 389,961
Sale proceed from encashment of term deposit receipts (200,000,000)
Net cash (used in) / generated from investing activities (240,122,492)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease liabilities repaid (8,924,654)

127,165,543
Long term financing - net (63,621,506)
Share issuance cost -
Short-term financing (43,057,518)
Net cash generated (used in) / from financing activities 11,561,865

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents (88,261,518)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 50
Cash and cash equivalents transferred under the scheme (837,443,773)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

(469,501,628)

240,308,576
82,131,716

(21,406,034)
45,282,814

515,317,204
(344,817)

(2,416,771)
(639,152)

-
858,233,536
388,731,908

             20,117,932 
           278,242,209 

(68,399,441)
(15,588,899)

               1,594,500 
(108,680,690)
(985,890,100)
(884,558,622)

169,508,573
(623,577,070)

(9,511,537)
(463,580,034)

         (953,452,615)

         (411,482,742)
9,753,822

         (401,728,920)

      (1,355,181,535)

(17,379,690)
-

(87,974,492)
323,464,876
18,146,463

(32,462)
-

           236,224,695 

(90,639,000)
           (78,225,076)

(205,807,641)
(13,324,060)

1,381,431,868
           993,436,091 

         (125,520,749)
(968,194,198)

(1,085,972,999)

70,688,589

216,323,634
-

4,150,708
3,637,431

309,959,166
(3,034,752)

-
11,151,268

-
542,187,455
612,876,044

(141,029,292)
(48,890,303)

532,099
(4,319,719)
4,990,375

(41,419,482)
(257,654,734)
(487,791,056)

63,471,387
233,262,538

9,188,023
305,921,948

431,006,936

(303,416,232)
(71,902,319)

(375,318,551)

55,688,385

(50,853,791)
(50,459,257)

(2,929,530)
3,427,814

5,868,076
(200,859)

200,000,000
104,852,453

(9,176,330)
(152,252,399)

(35,157,167)
-

(6,443,899)
(203,029,795)

(42,488,957)
(925,705,241)

-
(968,194,198) (925,705,241)

Rupees

               7,741,948 
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Profitability Ratios

Gross Profit to Sales percent 39% 57% 60%

Net Profit to Sales percent -29% 2% 6%

EBITDA Margin to sales percent 26% 34% 30%

Return on Equity percent -30% 2% 8%

Return on Capital Employed percent 2% 18% 17%

Liquidity Ratios

Current Ratio Ratio 0.68 0.75 0.92

Quick / Acid test ratio Ratio 0.62 0.67 0.79

Cash to Current Liabilities Ratio 0.005 0.006 0.006

Cashflow from Operations to Sales Ratio -0.85 0.03 0.08

Activity/ Turnover Ratios

Inventory turnover Number of times 7 7 5

No of days in inventory (Days) Number of days 56 55 72

Debtor turnover Number of times 1.57 1.35 1.28

No of days in Receivables (Days) Number of days 233 270 286

Credit turnover Number of times 1.05 1.02 0.96

No of days in Payables Number of days 348 357 379

Net Operating cycle Number of days -59 -33 -22

Total asset turnover percent 26% 34% 36%

Fixed assets turnover percent 46% 61% 72%

Investment Valuation Ratios

Loss / Earnings per Share Ratio -3.81 0.30 1.62

Capital structure Ratios

Financial leverage Ratio Ratio 2.14 1.27 1.84

Debt Equity Ratio Ratio 0.68 0.56 0.65

Interest cover Ratio Ratio 0.09 1.23 1.57

Ratio Analysis Profit and Loss Account

2020 2019 2018
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WEALTH GENERATED

Total revenue inclusive of sales tax & other income

Cost of Sales and services (excluding salaries)

WEALTH DISTRIBUTION

To Employees

Salaries, benefits and other costs

To Government

Income tax, sales tax, excise duty and others

To Society

Donation towards education, health and environment

To Provider of Capital

Dividend to shareholders

Markup / Interest expenses on borrowed funds

To Company

Depreciation, amortization & accumulated profits / (losses)

1,993,243,281

(674,324,830)

1,318,918,451

538,161,956

272,384,744

-

-

515,317,204

(6,945,453)

1,318,918,451

100%

41%

21%

0%

39%

-1%

100%

2,127,544,461

(531,837,285)

1,595,707,176

408,797,656

326,696,576

4,355,499

-

309,959,166

545,898,279

1,595,707,176

100%

26%

20%

0%

0%

19%

34%

100%

41%

21%
0%

39%

- 1%

Wealth Distribution 2020

To Employees

To Government

To Society

To Provider of Capital

To Company

26%

20%

0%19%

34%

Wealth Distribution 2019

Statement of Value Addition and its Distribution

Rupees  % Rupees  %

2020 2019

To Employees

To Government

To Society

To Provider of Capital

To Company
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Directors’ Report

 The automobile sector is poised for a revival as COVID-19 grip slowly loosens over the country and the 
government takes steps to boost industrialization in the coming year. The inauguration of the Allama Iqbal 
Industrial Zone in Faisalabad under CPEC is expected to boost investment in automobile manufacturing. 
Hyundai’s joint venture with the Nishat Group and the recent successful launch of Tucson vehicle serves as an 
indication of the market’s sentiment. Cheaper financing due to substantially lower interest rates will boost some 
demand and will likely motivate the customers to opt for borrowing to counter the increase in automobile prices 
witnessed over the past year.

On behalf of the Board of Directors of TPL Trakker Limited, I am pleased to present the annual financial statements with 
the performance review of the Company for the year ended June 30th, 2020.

1. ECONOMIC OUTLOOK

 According to the Economic Survey of Pakistan, the economy started to show improvement at the beginning of the 
fiscal year 2019-2020 on account of the Government’s advanced policies to address macro-economic imbalances 
resulting in a reduction of the fiscal deficit to 4% of GDP thus moving the macro-economic indicators towards 
stabilization. However, on account of the outbreak of Coronavirus (COVID-19) during the second half of the fiscal 
year; Pakistan’s economy has been impacted much like the rest of the world. 

 The government and the State Bank of Pakistan took various measures to curtail the adverse economic impacts of 
COVID-19 such as Rs 1.24 trillion relief package, reduction in interest rates to 7 % from a high of 13.25 %, 
refinancing schemes for medical centers and various incentives for export-oriented industries etc., which have 
resulted in a projected negative GDP growth of 0.38% during FY 2019-20 against the global projected contraction 
of 3% in 2020.

 As the Government has reopened businesses after the economic lockdown of several months; macro-economic 
indicators and earnings are expected to improve in FY 2020-2021.

2. FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

Turnover - net 1,605,235,951 1,771,864,595
Gross profit 623,715,465 1,004,749,645
Operating (loss) / profit (115,409,174) 349,986,460
(Loss) / Profit before taxation (469,501,628) 70,688,589
(Loss) / Profit after taxation (458,517,393) 35,862,942

(Loss)/Earnings per share (Basic & Diluted) (Rs.) (3.81) 0.30



Annual Report 2019-20 33

 However, the Company's conventional operations suffered on account of the pandemic, negative economic 
growth and a massive reduction in the sales of the automobile sector which witnessed a decline of 50% nationally 
when compared with last year resulting in slowing down of sales and planned new initiatives.

 TPL Maps and TPL Rupiya were amalgamated with TPL Trakker w.e.f Jul 01, 2019. The Company achieved total 
Revenues of Rs 1.605 billion representing a decline of 9% when compared with last year. The Connected Car 
segment contributed 60% to the topline of the Company, followed by Digital Mapping & Location Services 38% 
and Industrial Internet of things 2%.

 Increased borrowing and higher benchmark rates for the major part of the year contributed to increase in finance 
cost by 66% when compared with last year. 

 Based on the successful closure of the Company's recent IPO, a recovering economic situation and a massive 
decline in COVID-19 cases in the country, the Management envisages that the Company will close in the green for 
the upcoming fiscal year. 

3. BUSINESS REVIEW

 Like the rest of the world, the novel coronavirus (COVID-19), substantially affected the business and social 
activities in the country in an adverse manner. The Company not only ensured compliance with all the Standard 
Operating Procedures (SOPs) prescribed by the Federal & Provincial Governments, but being a corporate 
responsible citizen and the country's leading tracking services & IoT solutions provider partnered with NITB 
(National Information Technology Board) and NCOC (National Command & Operation Center) to locate COVID-19 
hotspots in the country, which in turn helped the government in imposing geo-based smart lock downs, making 
them efficient & effective.

 Future Outlook – Connected Car & IoT

 While the market has experienced significant turbulence as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, TPL Trakker has 
shown resilience and recovery by focusing on its core revenue-generating business lines, new product 
innovations, digital campaigns, and targeted sales strategies for the Location-Based Services and Solutions 
portfolio.

 Going forward, the Company is going to continue to explore market opportunities for smart solutions in Oil & Gas, 
Banking and Agriculture sectors. Key successes in these sectors over the past year have demonstrated the 
potential for future growth as more and more industries are opting for digitalization and the adoption of IoT. 
Multiple sectors across the country are responding to the shifts in the market with a greater focus on finding points 
of efficiency and automation. The increasing demand for the Company’s IoT Solutions and Services complements 
the market shifts and is expected to continue to do so as the Company’s IoT portfolio will proactively expand over 
the next year. 

 The organization’s dedication to Research and Development (R&D) yielded significant success for the Retail 
business lines. Although the automotive sector has yet to fully recover from the declines over the past two years, 
the Company’s successful bespoke retail products for Toyota, Honda and Suzuki led to new product innovations 
that can address the needs of the retail market as well as the automotive dealer market across the country. With 
continued dedication to product and market R&D, the Company expects to capitalize on its expertise and position 
in the market to grow market share and the share of business per customer.

 The Government’s Auto Policy 2016-21 is encouraging new automakers to set up in the country, and TPL Trakker 
intends to maintain its leadership of the Audio Video Navigation (AVN) market both with existing clientele and new 
entrants. This will happen through new innovations in in-car software and hardware, the Company is harnessing 
the opportunity to scale its business. The Company’s market leadership and strength is exemplified with its 
penetration in the high-value SUV and Sedan segments.

 Building upon its momentum and in response to market dynamics, the company will continue to expand its 
portfolio by bringing complementing solutions and innovations such as Predictive Vehicle Maintenance, Mobile 

Directors’ Report
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Usage-Based Insurance, Trakker Fleet Management Application, Data Warehousing improvements, and Cold-
Chain Monitoring.

 In summation, the Company is projecting recovery and stability after showing tremendous resilience in the face of 
a turbulent market. Diversification and product development will be the catalysts for growth.

 Future Outlook – Digital Mapping & Location Services

 Going forward, the mapping division intends to continue to grow its market share as well as the share of business 
for each individual customer in the Location-Based Services (LBS) business line. This will be led by ramping up 
sales efforts, improving the portfolio of services, improving client-facing analytics and reporting and also by 
providing bi-weekly Optimization sessions where technical support is provided directly to the customer to better 
address their implementation. 

 With YoY comparison for the same period, LBS sales have increased, particularly with the On-Demand services 
sector. The growth in sales is expected to increase rapidly in the next financial year as the On-Demand services 
sector continues to grow at a rapid pace and the Telecommunication sector buoys its B2B segment with modern 
location-enabled enterprise solutions. The pipeline is anticipated to expand with a structured and coordinated 
sales team as well as through coordination with sales teams for other TPL Trakker business lines.

 Data is at the epicenter of the Company’s Services and Solutions. The total geo-coded data in production now 
amounts to 5,026,435 data points. The current rate of data ingestion is far outpacing internal projections and is 
poised to reach targets for the next financial year well within the predicted timeframe. This is expected to further 
enhance the company’s competitive advantage in its services and solutions.

 The modular Workforce and Logistics Management Solution (DART), a critical arm in the Location Based Solutions 
portfolio, is being actively pitched to the Banking sector with multiple pilots in the pipeline. These pilots are 
intended to validate specific customer requirements so that development cycles going into the next financial year 
will be finely to meet those needs. 

 The merger with TPL Trakker has helped the Maps business capitalize on the network effects, refine its approach 
towards revenue generation and client management, and also develop new innovations in response to key market 
needs that can ultimately create stable and sustainable growth.

 We also expect significant growth in our Container Security solutions which have been used to track and monitor 
Afghan Transit bonded cargo for several years. This year, we expect to increase our monthly volumes by 60% 
(MoM) by intiating tracking of Transshipment cargo and Reverse Commercial Cargo coming from Afghanistan into 
Pakistan. In addition to this, we are also the first Company to have started commercial tracking operations from 
Gwadar port which will further add to the growth of Container Security business.

4. INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

 Building upon international alliances, the company’s partnership with HERE Technologies is continuing with 
several initiatives including Pakistan’s location data integration, data migration for navigation systems, and the 
exploration of additional services that can be co-developed. The Company is also increasing its business 
development efforts for HERE’s Location Services (HLS), keeping multi-national clientele in Pakistan as its 
immediate focus. This will provide an additional revenue stream under the auspices of the partnership agreement 
with HERE. Furthermore, solutions such as DART can be integrated with HLS to then market in the Middle East via 
Trakker Middle East (TME).

 The Company has an internal control system, commensurate with the size, scale and complexity of its operations. 
The scope and authority of the Internal Audit function is defined in the Internal Audit Charter. To maintain its 
objectivity, the Internal Audit function reports to the Chairman Audit Committee of the Board. The Internal Audit 
Department monitors and evaluates the efficiency and adequacy of internal control systems in the Company, its 
compliance with operating systems, accounting procedures and policies at all locations of the Company and its 
subsidiaries. Based on the report of the internal audit function, process owners undertake corrective action in their 
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6. KEY FINANCIAL DATA FOR THE LAST THREE YEARS

5. CREDIT RATING

 The Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited (PACRA) has assigned a long-term entity rating of “A-“(A-minus) and 
short-term entity rating of A2 (A two) to TPL Trakker Limited. This rating indicates a stable outlook and high credit 
quality.

respective areas and thereby strengthen the controls. Significant audit observations and corrective actions thereon 
are presented to the Audit Committee of the Board.

Balance Sheet

Paid-up Capital 1,204,425,930 929,262,520 601,771,360

Capital reserve 146,817,136 - -

Revenue reserve (82,063,384) 128,476,899 369,095,527

Surplus on revaluation of Fixed Assets 284,432,213 555,272,027 228,272,597

Total Equity 1,553,611,895 1,613,011,446 1,199,139,484

Long term financing & loans / leases 647,130,961 501,034,461 908,637,436

Short term financing & loans / leases 2,763,413,643 1,628,083,678 1,296,926,366

Due to Related parties 47,772,963 670,119,700 436,857,162

Other Liabil i ties 1,128,493,502 865,681,212 786,478,868

Total Liabilities 4,586,811,069 3,664,919,051 3,428,899,832

Fixed Assets (including ROUA) 1,131,501,516 1,602,145,206 1,109,137,640

Intangible Assets 2,138,388,733 1,151,299,734 1,152,007,635

Long-term investments 85,030,450 85,030,450 -

Other Non-Current Assets 98,388,608 54,916,210 54,756,130

Trade Debts 1,022,872,997 1,309,502,023 1,298,977,797

Stock 246,221,725 266,339,657 325,837,835

Due from Related parties 1,071,684,058 576,290,498 318,635,764

Other Current Assets 327,113,589 212,575,903 354,519,912

Cash and Bank balances 19,221,288 19,830,816 14,166,603

Total Assets 6,140,422,964 5,277,930,497 4,628,039,316

2020 2019 2018
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2020 2019 2018

Turnover - net 1,605,235,951 1,771,864,595 1,660,647,208

Cost of sales (981,520,486) (767,114,950) (661,285,399)

Gross profit 623,715,465 1,004,749,645 999,361,809

Distribution expenses (324,346,121) (286,453,301) (263,752,948)

Administrative expenses (414,778,518) (368,309,884) (411,902,451)

Operating profit (115,409,174) 349,986,460 323,706,410

Other expenses - (30,822,802) (19,049,307)

Finance costs (515,317,204) (309,959,166) (224,068,041)

Other Income 161,224,750 61,484,097 48,097,569

(Loss) / Profit before taxation (469,501,628) 70,688,589 128,686,631

Taxation 10,984,235 (34,825,647) (31,340,228)

(Loss) / Profit after taxation (458,517,393) 35,862,942 97,346,403

Other comprehensive income (9,538,644) 327,456,882 -

Total comprehensive income (468,056,037) 363,319,824 97,346,403

(Loss) / Earnings per share (Basic & Diluted) (3.81) 0.30 1.62

 M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants retire and offer themselves for reappointment. The Board of Directors 
has recommended their appointment as auditors for the year ended June 30, 2021 at a fee to be mutually agreed.

 Associated Company/ Subsidiary 1 120,442,588 99.999996%

9. PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

 Category  No. of Shareholder  Shareholding in Number Shareholding in Percentage

 A statement of pattern of shareholding of the Company as at June 30, 2020 is as follow;

7. AUDITORS

 Directors and their associates 5 5 0.000004%

8. STATEMENT ON CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK

 The Company was listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange subsequent to June 30, 2020, therefore the Company was 
not subject to regulations and responsibilities under the Code of Corporate Governance prescribed by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for the period  July 01, 2019 to June 30, 2020.

 Total 6 120,442,593 100
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 We would like to thank the shareholders of the Company for the confidence they have placed in us. We also 
appreciate the valued support and guidance provided by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan, 
Federal Board of Revenue and the Pakistan Stock Exchange. We would also express our sincere thanks to the 
employees, strategic partners, vendors, suppliers and customers for their support in pursuit of our corporate 
objectives.

 The Company was listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange subsequent to June 30, 2020, therefore the Company was 
not subject to regulations and responsibilities under the Code of Corporate Governance prescribed by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan for the period  July 01, 2019 to June 30, 2020.

11. ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

10. BOARD MEETINGS

JAMEEL YUSUF (S.ST.)
DIRECTOR
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��ن � ا�دى �وے �  �� ،  �� �ل ٢٠١٩-٢٠٢٠ � آ�ز � �� �م �ازن �  دور �� � ��  � ا� در�  � ��ں  � و� � 

� � �ى آ� �وع �� ، � � � � �� �رے � � ڈى �  � ٤ �  � �� �  � � �� �و ا�� ا�ر� ا�م � � ��  �۔ 

 ن�رو� وا�س  (COVID-19)� � � و� � �رى د� � �ح ��ن � � � � ا� �ا۔  ��، �� �ل � دو�ے � � � دورا

�ے � � �� �ت � � � � ا� �� � � �رڈ آف ڈا��ز  � �� � � ٣٠ �ن ٢٠٢٠ � � �� وا� �� �ل � �   � � ��� 

  ر�� �ں۔ ��ارے �ل �ر�د� � ��ہ �� �ر  � آپ � �ش �ا

�و� -١٩ � �� � � آ� آ� � �ر� � � � و� � آ� ��� � �� � �ف ��ن �۔ اور �� اس � � �ى � �� �وغ د� 

��� � ا�ا�ت �ر� �۔ � �  � � � آ�د � �� ا�ل ا��� زون � ا�ح � آ���� ��� � ��� �رى � �وغ د� �  �� �� �۔ �ا� � �ط �وپ �� �ا� و�� اور � �ڑى � ��ب �� �ر� �  آ�ز اور �وع �� � ��� �� �۔ �ح �د � � � و� �

 نآ���� � �ں  � ا�� � � � �ض �  � ا�ب � �� �  � � �� ا��  � � � ا�� �� اور  �ر� � �� �ل  � دورا

�۔

�� �� � � �ں � �ش /�ك ڈاؤن � � �رو�ر دو�رہ �� �، �� �� ا�ر� اور �� �ل ٢٠٢١-٢٠٢٠ � آ�� � �ى �� �۔

١. ا�دى ��ہ۔

���� �  د� ، �ح �د �١٣٫٢٥ �� �� اور ا� � آف ��ن �  �و� -١٩ � �� وا�  �ے ا�ات � � �  �رى �ر � ١٫٢٤ �ب رو� � ا�ادى 

�ى � ٧ � � � �دى، � �ا�ِ � اور �آ�ى �ں � � �ا�ت دى �، � � � � �� �ل٢٠-٢٠١٩ �� ڈى �  �٣  ���ى 

�� �� � �� � �٠٫٣٨  � ر�۔

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ

2018-19 2019-20

Rupees

1,605,235,9511,771,864,595

623,715,4651,004,749,645

(115,409,174)349,986,460

(469,501,628)70,688,589

(458,517,393)35,862,942

120,442,59392,926,252

(3.81)0.39

�ن اوور – � آ�� 

�� ��

(�ن) / ا�� �

 ز�ل (�ن) /� � ا

 ز�ل (�ن) /� � ا

� � �اد

� �  آ�� (اى � ا�)
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���
ا�� �ر� � �و� -١٩ و�� �ض � � � ��ں �� �� �ا � ، � � ا� �� � �� � ��ت اور ��� �رٹ �� � �� �� وا� ا� 

 ے� � اور �ز�� � ��ہ � �۔  �دى آ�� �ا �� وا� �� ��ں،  � �ع � ��ں ، ڈ� �ت اور �و� � ا�ا� � � � �� د

� �ل � �� � �ل � �ے � � � �� � اور ا� � �رك � ��ں � ��ت � �� � ٦٦ � ا�� �ا �۔

� �� � �ے �� � � � � � ، ا�� � � �ر � � � � ����  و� ��ب � ، �� �ر�ل � �� ، اور � � �و� -١٩ �  � � �� آ� � ا

آ�ہ �� �ل � � �� � � ��� �۔

�رى د� � �ح ، �ول �و� وا�س (�و�-١٩)  �، � � �رو�رى و �� ���ں � �� � � �� � ۔ � � � �ف و�� اور ��� ��ں � 

 ر�ى �� � �� اور � � ��دہ �� ��ت اور   و�) � � � � �� � �ر�ر� ذ� دا ذر� �� �دہ �م �رى آ�� �� �ر (ا� ا

 و� (� �� ا� آ�� �) � �� �ا� � �۔ � � �و�-  و� �� �ا� �ہ ا� آ� � � (� ا�ر� ��� �رڈ) اور ا� � ا آ� ا

١٩ �ٹ �ٹ � � �� � �    �د �ا� �، � � � �ر� �  ��/� � � � �ك ڈاؤن �� � �ٔ� �� �ا۔

� � ��ہ  - � �ر اور ا�� � ا�ء۔

٣. �رو�رى ��ہ ۔

� � ا� � �ت اور � � ا� رو� � � ��� ، ٢٠١٩ � � � ا� �� � � �د� � �۔ � � ١٫٦٠٥ ارب رو� � � آ�� �� � � � �� �ل 

� �� � ٩ � � � � ��� �� �۔ � �ر � � � � �پ �� � ٦٠ � � ڈا� ، اس � � ڈ� � اور �� �و� � �٣٨  

اور � ا�� ا�ء �   �٢  ر�۔

�� ، � � روا� �روا�ں و�� �رى ، � �� � اور آ� ���  � � �و� � �ے �� � � � و� � �� � � �� �ل � �� � 

�و� � � اور �� � � ا�ا�ت � � � �� � � ٥٠ � � � د� � آ�۔ .

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ

 ز�ل آ��(�ن) /� � ا
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 ےر� � ، اور � � ا� �� ��دہ ��ں اور � آ� وا�ں دو�ں �  ��� � آ� �� ٢٠١٦-٢١ � �ر �زوں � � � � اپ �� � �� د ����� دہ ر� �۔ � �ر � �� و� اور �رڈ و� � � ا�دات � ذر� �� ، � ��  رر� � ارا  ےوى ا�) �ر� � ا� �دت ��ا � (ا �� آڈ� و�� �

 ن�  � اس � دا� � �� � � �ر� � �دت اور �� �  ا� �رو�ر � ��� � �ا� � �و� �ر � ر� �۔ ا� � وا� ا� � وى اور �ا

�ل دى � �۔

 ن�  ر�چ ا� ڈو� (آر ا� ڈى) � � � � � � ر� �رو�رى ا�اف� ��ں ��� �� �۔ ا�� آ��� � � � دو ��ں � دورا

� �رى �ح �� �� � � � ، ��� ، ��ا اور �زو� � � � � �� � ��� � � �ر �دہ � ��ت � � ا�دات � �� � � � 

ر� �ر� � �ور�ت � �را �� � اور �� � آ��� ڈ� � � � �ر�. �وڈ� اور �ر� آر ا� ڈى � � � � � ��  � � �� 

 ہ�ر� � ا� �رت اور �ز� � ��ہ ا�� � �� �ر� � � اور � �رف � �رو�ر � � �ھ �۔ � � و

�� � � � ، �  � �� �  �ر� �  �ى � د�� ��  � ر� ��   ا� آپ � �ل ر� ۔ �ع اور ��ت � ��  �� � � ا� 

��۔

� � ��ہ  - ڈ� � اور �� �و� 

آ� �� �� ، � ڈو�ن ا� �ر� � � �� �� �� � �و� (ا� � ا�) �� �� � � �د � � � �رو�ر � � ��� �� 

�۔ اس � �و� � ��ں � ���  � اس � �دت ��، ��ت � �رٹ �� � � �� ، �� � �� �� وا� ��ت اور ر�ر� � � �� 

 ن� �ذ � � �� � � �� � � � �د �ا� � ��   رآ��� � � �ا� � ذر� � �� � �ں �ر� � �اہ را� ا اور دو � وا

�۔

ا� �ت � � �ل � �ل  �� � �� ، �ص �ر � آن ڈ�� ��ت � � � �� ، ا� � ا� � �و� � ا�� �ا �۔ �� � � ا� �� 

�ل � �و� � ا�� � �ى � ا�� �� �� آن ڈ�� ��ت � � � �ى � �� �رى � اور � �ا�ت � � �� �م � � 

���اس � ر�ر � آ� ��� �� اور �ر� � � � �اب � ، �  ا� �رٹ �� � ��� �� �ڑ�ں � �� ، ��� ا�ل � � ا�ر� ، �� 
 م� �ى ، اور �� � � � ��� اور �ت � � ا� �رٹ �� � �� �رى ر� �۔  � � ا� � ، ڈ� �دا

آ� �� �� ، � آ� ا� � ، � اور زرا� � �ں � �رٹ � � � �ر� � �ا� �ش �� �رى ر� �۔ �� ا� �ل � 
�  و� � ا�� � ا�ب �ر� ������� ���� اور آ� ا  ن�ں � �ى ���ں � � � �� � ا��ت � �� � � �� ز�دہ � ز�دہ � ڈ  نا دورا

 ےر� � � � �ر�د� اور آ�� � �ت � �ش �� � ز�دہ �� دى  �۔ �رے � � �د � �ر� � �� وا� ��ں � �اب د

�ر� �۔ � �  �IOT اور ��ت � �� �� � � �ر� � ��ں � � �� � اور �� � �� � � ا� �ل � � �  �IOTرٹ 

�� ��� � �� و� �� �۔

 ن�   ف� ��ں ��� �� �۔ ا�� آ��� � � � دو ��ں � دورا ر�چ ا� ڈو� (آر ا� ڈى) � � � � � � ر� �رو�رى ا�ا

� �رى �ح �� �� � � � ، ��� ، ��ا اور �زو� � � � � �� � ��� � � �ر �دہ � ��ت � � ا�دات � �� � � � 

ر� �ر� � �ور�ت � �را �� � اور �� � آ��� ڈ� � � � �ر�. �وڈ� اور �ر� آر ا� ڈى � � � � � �� ، � � �� 

 ہ�ر� � ا� �رت اور �ز� � ��ہ ا�� � �� �ر� � � اور � �رف � �رو�ر � � �ھ �۔ � � و

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ
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� � ا�رو� �ول � � ، � ا� ��ں � �� ، �� اور �� � � �� �۔ ا�رو� آڈٹ �� � و� اور ا�ر� ا�رو� آڈٹ �ر� � 

 رر� � � ، دا� آڈٹ �� �رڈ � �� آڈٹ � � ر�رٹ �� �۔ � � دا� آڈٹ � � ا�رو�  �ن � � �۔ اس � ا�اض � ��ا

روں � �م ��ت � ا�ؤ� � �� �ر اور ��ں � �� � �  �ول � � �ر�د� اور ا� ، اس � آ�� � ، � اور اس � �� ادا

�ا� اور �� �� �۔ دا� آڈٹ �ر�د� � ر�رٹ � �د � ، �م �� وا� ا� ا� ��ں � ا�� �رروا� �� � اور اس �ح �ول � �ط 

�� �۔ ا� آڈٹ ��ات اور اس � ا�� ا�ا�ت �رڈ � آڈٹ � � � � � �۔

 راور �� � � �ف اس  � � ا� �� � �� ا�م � � �ت � �رو�ر � � ورك � ا�ات � ��ہ �� � �د � � ، ��ت � �اوا

 ر�� � �� �  � � � � � �� �� � ، اور �ى �ر� � �ور�ت � �اب � � �ت �ازى �� � � �د � � � ��� � اور ��ا

� �۔

���
��وا� ا��ا� ��� � �� ا�  �B2B ��� �۔ �� � �ر� � � �� �� � ا� � اور ��ط � � � �� �� د� � � ا� �� ��  ���� � � � ذر� �� � �� �۔�� ��ں � � � �ں � �� �آرڈ

� ��� �� � � � رى �ں ��د ا�ا�ت � �� �رى � � � ��ن � �م � ڈ� ا�م ، �ى  � ا��ا� ا�د � �د � ، �ں � �ں � �ا� دا

� ڈ� � ، اور ا�� ��ت � �ش � � � آ� �ا � �� �۔ � � ��ن � ��� �� � ا� �� � �� �� �� ، � �� 

����و� (HLS)� � ا� �رو�رى �� � ��ں � � ا�� �ر� �۔ � �ں � �� �ا� � ��ے � ز�ا�م ا� ا�� �ل � 
رٹ � ��� �  �HLS �� �� �ل ا� (TME) � ذر� �ق و� � اس � � �ر� � � �  �ا� �ا� �ے �۔ �� �آں ،  ڈا

�� �۔

��� ��ر� ��� � � ��ں ا�� � �� �� � � � ��ں � ا�ن �ا�ٹ ��ڈ �ر� � �� اور �� �� � � ا�ل �� ر� �۔ ������ ����� ا� �   و������  �� �ر� � �ج �� � ذر� � ا� ��� � � ٦٠ � (ا� ا � �ر� اور ر�رس اس �ل ، � �� �� � � ا��ن � ��ن آ� وا� �ا
��ر� �رو�ر � �� ������  ہ، � � � � � � � �ادر �ر�ہ � �ر� �� آ�� �وع � � � � �  ا�) � ا�� �� �۔ اس � �و

ا�� ��۔

���
 ر� � �ڈڈ � ڈ� اب ٥،٠٢٦،٤٣٥ ڈ� �ا� � �ا� �۔ ��دہ ا�اد و �ر � ا�م � �ح  ڈ� � � ��ت اور ��� � �� � �� �۔ �اوا

 ن�   ف� � � ا�ن �۔ اس � � � ��ت اور ا ���دا� � � � ز�دہ دور � اور اس � � �� � � �د � ا�ر � ا� �� �ل � ا�ا
��� � �� ��ہ �� �� � ا� �۔

���
رٹ) ، �� � ��� �رٹ �� � ا� ا� �زو � ، � � �� �� � �د ��ں � �� �   ا� �� � �� (ڈا �ڈ�� ورك �رس

   ن�ور�ت � �را  ن��ں � � �ر� � �ص �ور�ت � در� �� � �� ا� �� �ل � ��� �� ا � � �ل �ر � �ا � �ر� �۔ ا

�ے۔

٤. ا�رو� �ول �۔

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ
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 ے�� ‘‘ (A-minus)اور � �� �   ے� آر اے) � � � ا� ��  � � �� �� � � در� �ى � ’’ا ��ن ��ٹ ر� ا� (� ا

 ے� ‘‘  (A-Two)دى �۔ � در� �ى � ��ہ اور ا� ��ٹ �ا� �  ��� �� �۔ در� �ى �  ’’ا

٦. � � �ل � ا� ��� �ا�

٥. ��ٹ ر�

1,204,425,930929,262,520601,771,360

146,817,136--

(82,063,384)128,476,899369,095,527

284,432,213555,272,027228,272,597

1,553,611,8951,613,011,4461,199,139,484

647,130,961501,034,461908,637,436

2,763,413,6431,628,083,6781,296,926,366

47,772,963670,119,700436,857,162

1,128,493,502865,681,212786,478,868

4,586,811,0693,664,919,0513,428,899,832

1,131,501,5161,602,145,2061,109,137,640

2,138,388,7331,151,299,7341,152,007,635

85,030,45085,030,450-

98,388,60854,916,21054,756,130

1,022,872,9971,309,502,0231,298,977,797

246,221,725266,339,657325,837,835

1,071,684,058576,290,498318,635,764

327,113,589212,575,903354,519,912

19,221,28819,830,81614,166,603

6,140,422,9645,277,930,4974,628,039,316

202020192018

�� ا�ت �� اور �� �ت / �

� ا�ت �� اور �� �ت / �

(ROUA ل�) ہ ا�� �ت� �

�� ا�ت ��� �رى

� �ر�ں � وا� ا�دہ

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ
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202020192018

1,605,235,9511,771,864,5951,660,647,208

(981,520,486)(767,114,950)(661,285,399)

623,715,4651,004,749,645999,361,809

(340,190,602)(286,453,301)(263,752,948)

(398,934,307)(368,309,884)(411,902,451)

(115,409,174)349,986,460323,706,410

-(30,822,802)(19,049,307)

(515,317,204)(309,959,166)(224,068,041)

161,224,75061,484,09748,097,569

(469,501,628)70,688,589128,686,631

10,984,235(34,825,647)(31,340,228)

(458,517,393)35,862,94297,346,403

(9,538,644)327,456,882-

(468,056,037)363,319,82497,346,403

-3.810.391.62

 

��ت

ا�� ��

�ن اوور -�

ا�� ا�ا�ت

د� ا�ا�ت

٧. آڈ�ز

����
�ز اى وا� �رڈ روڈس ، �ر�ڈ ا�ؤ� ر�� �� اور ا�ں � ا� آپ � دو�رہ �رى � � � �۔  �رڈ آف ڈا��ز � �� ا�ق را� ��  ٣٠ 

 ےدى �۔  ن� �رى � ا�زت د �ن ٢٠٢١ � � �� وا� �ل � � �ر آڈ� ا

٨. �ر�ر� اور ��� �� ورك  ر�ر� � �ن

��ر� ا� ا� � آف ��ن � �� � ٠١ ��� ، ٢٠١٩ � ٣٠ �ن ������ � � ٣٠ �ن ، ٢٠٢٠ � � ��ن ا�ك ا� � درج � � ، �ا � � 

ر�ں � �وط � � �۔  ٢٠٢٠ � �ت � � �ر �دہ �ڈ آف �ر�ر� �ر� � � �ا� اور ذ� دا

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ

� �ا� � اور �ن
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٣٠ �ن، ٢٠٢٠ � � � � ��� /� ��  � �ن � �رے � ا� �ر� ذ� �۔

�� � ��� � .٩

� ��ى � ��ن � �اد ر� �� وا� � � �اد � ��� � �ح�������

١١. ا�ر �ِ

رہ 1 120,442,588 �99.999996 ا�� ا� � ا/ذ� ادا

��ر� ا� ا� � آف ��ن � �� � ٠١ ��� ، ٢٠١٩ � ٣٠ �ن ������ � � ٣٠ �ن ، ٢٠٢٠ � � ��ن ا�ك ا� � درج � � ، �ا � � 

ر�ں � �وط � � �۔ ٢٠٢٠ � �ت � � �ر �دہ �ڈ آف �ر�ر� �ر� � � �ا� اور ذ� دا

١٠.�رڈ �

��ر� ا� ا� � ��ن  ������  ر� � اُس �ون اور �د  � � اُ�  �� � � � ��رز � � � ا�د �� � �� ادا �� �۔ �� � �رڈ  � �ا
���� �� �ا�  ��  (SECP)�رل �رڈ آف ر�� (FBR) اور ا� � آف  ��ن  � �� �� �۔ اور � �� ادا �� �� � ا� �ز�  �، ا�

 ف� �۔ رہ �� ا�ا روں  �، و�رز  �، ��ز اور �ر� � � � �د � � � ا� ادا دا

ڈا��ز اور اُ� ا�� ا� 5 5 �0.000004

� 100 120,44,593 6 ��

ڈا�� ز ر�رٹ

ڈا��

� �� (ا� ۔ا� �۔)
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Opinion 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the statement of financial 
position, statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the 
statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the 
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at 30 June 2020 and 
of the loss and other comprehensive loss, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon.

Basis for Opinion 

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon 

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the 
Directors’ Report and other information, but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon.

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our 
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics 
Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. 
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained 
in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.  If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in 
this regard.

We have audited the annexed financial statements of TPL Trakker Limited (the Company), which comprise the statement 
of financial position as at 30 June 2020, and the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the 
statement of changes in equity, the statement of cash flows  for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, 
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have 
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purposes of the audit. 

Independent Auditors’ Report
To the members of TPL Trakker Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Tel: + 9221 3565 0007-11

e.y.khi@pk.ey.com
ey.com/pk

Fax: + 9221 3568 1965

Chartered Accountants

Pakistan

Progressive Plaza, Beaumont Road 

EY Ford Rhodes

P.O. Box 15541, Karachi 75530
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In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so. 

Ÿ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant 
doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we 
are required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such 
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to 
the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as 
a going concern. 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with the 
accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) 
and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements 
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Board of Directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

Ÿ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to  fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for 
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the 
override of internal control. 

Ÿ Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the 
Company’s internal control. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements 

Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as 
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error 
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the 
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Ÿ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by management. 
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We communicate with the Board of Directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit 
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017); 

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement 
of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in 
conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and 
returns; 

c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the 
Company’s business; and 

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditors’ report is Arif Nazeer. 

Ÿ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and 
whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair 
presentation. 

d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980). 

Chartered Accountants

Place: Karachi

Date: October 05, 2020
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
5 1,059,232,338 1,602,145,206
6 2,138,388,733 1,151,299,734
7 72,269,178 -

Long-term investments 8 85,030,450 85,030,450
9 669,898 637,436

10 33,953,962 47,100,425
Deferred tax assets - net 11 63,764,748 7,178,349

3,453,309,307 2,893,391,600

12 246,221,725 266,339,657
13 1,022,872,997 1,309,502,023

Loans and advances 14 107,834,467 39,435,026
Trade deposits and prepayments 15 61,494,946 43,674,281

16 128,444,634 73,054,250
17 29,339,542 13,934,042
18 1,071,684,058 576,290,498
19 - 42,478,304
20 19,221,288 19,830,816

2,687,113,657 2,384,538,897
6,140,422,964 5,277,930,497

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

Authorised capital
2,850,000,000 1,150,000,000

Issued, subscribed and paid-up capital 21 1,204,425,930 929,262,520
146,817,136 -
(82,063,384) 128,476,899

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 22 284,432,213 555,272,027
1,553,611,895 1,613,011,446

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
23 393,263,634 300,000,000
24 26,419,021 52,145,571
25 227,448,306 148,888,890
26 1,781,008 -

648,911,969 501,034,461
CURRENT LIABILITIES

27 935,825,506 750,929,062
28 140,061,771 68,100,451
29 1,394,169,173 12,737,305
30 1,105,194,287 988,025,014
31 264,050,183 627,321,359
32 47,772,963 670,119,700
19 13,685,055 -
33 37,140,162 46,651,699

3,937,899,100 3,163,884,590

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 6,140,422,964 5,277,930,497

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 34

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Government grant

Long-term deposits

285,000,000 (2019: 115,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each

Cash and bank balances

Other receivables
Due from related parties 

Long-term financing

Advance monitoring fees

Running finance under mark-up arrangements
Short-term financing

Current portion of non-current liabilities 

CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets

Trade and other payables

Due to related parties

Accrued mark-up

Capital reserve

Taxation - net

Share capital

Trade debts 

Interest accrued

Revenue reserve

TOTAL ASSETS

Taxation – net

ASSETS

Stock-in-trade

Intangible assets

Long-term loans  

Lease liabilities
Long-term loans

Statement Of Financial Position
As at June 30, 2020

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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For the year ended June 30, 2020

Statement of Profit or Loss and other 
Comprehensive Income

Rupees

2020 2019

Note

35      1,605,235,951 1,771,864,595

36        (981,520,486) (767,114,950)

        623,715,465       1,004,749,645 

37        (324,346,121) (286,453,301)

38        (414,778,518) (368,309,884)

       (115,409,174)          349,986,460 

39 - (30,822,802)

40        (515,317,204) (309,959,166)

41         161,224,750 61,484,097

       (469,501,628)            70,688,589 

42           10,984,235 (34,825,647)

       (458,517,393)            35,862,942 

(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment (9,538,644)          329,542,792 

Less: Deferred tax thereon -              2,085,910 

Other comprehensive (loss) / income for the year, net of tax (9,538,644)          327,456,882 

       (468,056,037)          363,319,824 

(Loss) / earning per share – basic and diluted 47                     (3.81)                       0.30 

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Turnover – net

Cost of sales and services

Gross profit

Distribution expenses

Administrative expenses

Operating (loss) / profit

Other expenses

Other comprehensive (loss) / income

Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year

Finance costs

(Loss) / profit before taxation 

Taxation

(Loss) / profit for the year

Other income 

Other comprehensive (loss) / income not to be reclassified to 

   profit or loss in subsequent periods, net of tax

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

(469,501,628) 70,688,589

5.1 240,308,576 216,323,634
Depreciation on ROUA 7.2 82,131,716 -

6.1 45,282,814 3,637,431
38 (21,406,034) 4,150,708
40 515,317,204 309,959,166
5.2 (344,817) (3,034,752)

Amortisation of government grant 41 (2,416,771) -
41 (639,152) 11,151,268

858,233,536 542,187,455
388,731,908 612,876,044

20,117,932 (141,029,292)
278,242,209 (48,890,303)
(68,399,441) 532,099
(15,588,899) (4,319,719)

(108,680,690) (41,419,482)
1,594,500 4,990,375

(985,890,100) (257,654,734)
(878,604,489) (487,791,056)

169,508,573 63,471,387
(623,577,070) 233,262,538

(9,511,537) 9,188,023
(463,580,034) 305,921,948
(953,452,615) 431,006,936

(411,482,742) (303,416,232)
19 9,753,822 (71,902,319)

(401,728,920) (375,318,551)
(1,355,181,535) 55,688,385

5.1 (17,379,690) (50,853,791)
5.3 - (50,459,257)

6.1 & 6.2 (87,974,492) (2,929,530)
5.2 323,464,876 3,427,814

(32,462) (200,859)
18,146,463 5,868,076

- 200,000,000
236,224,695 104,852,453

(205,807,641) (35,157,167)
(90,639,000) (9,176,330)
(78,225,076) (152,252,399)

Share issuance cost (13,324,060) -
1,381,431,868 (6,443,899)

993,436,091 (203,029,795)

(125,520,749) (42,488,957)

(968,194,198) (925,705,241)

Cash and cash equivalents transferred under the Scheme 1.3 7,741,948 -

46 (1,085,972,999) (968,194,198)

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

*No non-cash item is included in investing and financing activities.

Adjustment for non-cash charges and other items:
Depreciation on operating fixed assets

(Increase) / decrease in current assets

Amortisation 
(Reversal) / allowance for expected credit loss (ECL)
Finance costs

(Loss) / profit before taxation

Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment

Exchange (gain) / loss – net

Operating profit before working capital changes

Due from related parties

Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities

Stock-in-trade
Trade debts 
Loans and advances
Trade deposits and prepayments

Other receivables
Interest accrued 

Cash flows from operations

Payments for:

Trade and other payables 
Due to related parties
Advance monitoring fees

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

Short-term financing – net

Net cash flows generated from / (used in) financing activities

Long-term loans
Long-term deposits
Sale proceeds from encashment of term deposit receipts
Net cash flows generated from investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Long-term financing – net
Lease liabilities repaid
Long-term loans – net

Purchase of - property, plant and equipment
                       - capital work-in-progress
                       - intangible assets
Sale proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 

Finance costs
Income taxes

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net cash flows (used in) / generated from operating activities

Statement of Cash Flows 
For the year ended June 30, 2020

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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Balance as at June 30, 2018     601,771,360 -      334,617,215     228,272,597    562,889,812   1,164,661,172 

Issuance of ordinary shares     327,491,160 -    (242,460,710) -   (242,460,710)        85,030,450 

Profit for the year - -        35,862,942 -      35,862,942        35,862,942 
Other comprehensive income for the year, 

net of tax - - - 327,456,882    327,456,882      327,456,882 

Total comprehensive income for the year - -        35,862,942     327,456,882    363,319,824      363,319,824 

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant 
    and equipment realised on account of 
    incremental depreciation charged on 
    related assets - net of tax - - 457,452 (457,452) - -

Balance as at June 30, 2019     929,262,520 -      128,476,899     555,272,027    683,748,926   1,613,011,446 

Reserve under scheme of amalgamation 
(note 21.3) - 421,980,546 - - 421,980,546 421,980,546

Issuance of bonus shares @ 29.6% (i.e. 2.96 

for every 10 share held) [see note 21.4] 275,163,410 (275,163,410) - - (275,163,410) -

Loss for the year                      -   -    (458,517,393) - (458,517,393)    (458,517,393)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, 

net of tax                      -   - - (9,538,644) (9,538,644) (9,538,644)

Total comprehensive loss for the year - - (458,517,393) (9,538,644) (468,056,037) (468,056,037)

Transaction cost on future issue of shares (note 1.1) (13,324,060) - (13,324,060) (13,324,060)

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant 
and equipment realised on account of: -

    - disposal of property, plant and equipment                      -   - 260,150,220 (260,150,220) - -

    - incremental depreciation charged 
  on related assets - net of tax - - 1,150,950 (1,150,950) - -

261,301,170 (261,301,170) - -

Balance as at June 30, 2020 1,204,425,930 146,817,136 (82,063,384) 284,432,213 349,185,965 1,553,611,895

The annexed notes from 1 to 48 form an integral part of these financial statements.

----------------------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------------------------

Total Equity

Revenue 
reserve – 

accumulated  
profits / 
(losses) Total reserves

Surplus on 
revaluation of 

property, 
plant and 

equipment

Capital 
reserve - 
reserves 

created under 
Scheme of 

Arrangement

Issued, 
subscribed 

and paid-up 
capital

Statement of Changes in Equity
For the year ended June 30, 2020

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER DIRECTOR
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Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020

1.1  TPL Vehicle Tracking (Private) Limited (the Company) was incorporated in Pakistan on December 27, 2016 as a 
private limited company under the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). Effective 
from November 30, 2017, the name of the Company has been changed to TPL Trakker (Private) Limited. The 
Company was later converted into a public company on January 17, 2018 and accordingly, the name was 
changed to TPL Trakker Limited. Subsequently, on August 10, 2020, the Company got listed on Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Limited. The Company is wholly owned subsidiary of TPL Corp Limited and TPL Holdings (Private) 
Limited is the ultimate parent company. 

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

 The registered office of the Company is situated at Centrepoint Building, Off Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, near 
KPT Interchange Flyover, Karachi. The principal activities of the Company include installation and sale of tracking 
devices, vehicle tracking, fleet management. 

 a) the entire undertakings, comprising all the assets, liabilities and obligations, if each of TPLR and TPLM 
shall, simultaneously, as at the effective date (i.e. July 01, 2019), stand merged with, transferred to, vested 
in, and be assumed by the Company (all three companies being the wholly owned subsidiaries of TPL 
Corp Limited [TPL Corp]).

 b) upon merger and transfer of TPLR and TPLM respectively, both companies shall, without winding up, 
stand dissolved and the shares of these companies held by the Company and its nominees shall be 
cancelled and extinguished. Further, since, the Company, TPLR and TPLM are wholly owned subsidiaries 
of TPL Corp, upon occurrence of the completion date, and as of the effective date, all the TPLR and TPLM 
shares held by TPL Corp and its nominees in TPLR and TPLM respectively, shall be cancelled and 
extinguished without any consideration being issued to any shareholder of the TPLM and TPLR in terms 
of the requirement of Section 284(2)(I) of the Companies Act, 2017 under the Scheme as of July 01, 2019.

1.2 During the year, the authorised share capital of the Company has been increased from 115,000,000 ordinary 
shares to 285,000,000 ordinary shares having face value of Rs.10 each.

 c) the Scheme, as approved by the Board of Directors of each of the companies, is to be binding on the 
Company, TPLR and TPLM along with all the shareholders, creditors, employees, customers, contracting 
parties, tax authorities and any other regulatory / statutory bodies of or with respect to the Company, TPLR 
and TPLM respectively, in accordance with the terms hereof.

 The Board of Directors of the Company, TPLM and TPLR in the same meeting held on November 22, 2019 
approved the Scheme under Section 284 (2) of the Companies Act, 2017 and was duly registered with SECP vide 
their letter # CUIN-0104503/9277 dated January 17, 2020 and non-objection clearance was issued by SECP vide 
their letter # CLD/CCD/CA-279/39/2019-2084 dated January 10, 2020. The objective and salient features of 
Scheme is as follows:

 d) with effect from effective date, all full time officers and employees of TPLR and TPLM shall become the 
employees of the Company at the same level of remuneration and under the same terms and conditions 
of services.

1.3 During the year, the Scheme of Arrangement (the Scheme) dated November 22, 2019 was executed on July 01, 
2019 (the effective date) among the Company, TPL Maps (Pvt.) Limited [TPLM] and TPL Rupiya (Private) Limited 
[TPLR] for merging and amalgamating the TPLM and TPLR into the Company. TPLM was engaged in the business 
of providing navigation services and TPLR was engaged in the business of providing facilities related to cashless 
payments and e-ticketing facilities to bus users.
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Total
Note July 01, 2019

(Rupees) (Rupees) (Rupees)

ASSETS

NON - CURRENT ASSETS
Property, plant and equipment 57,790,133 607,684 58,397,817
Intangible assets 930,116,477 14,280,842 944,397,319
Long-term deposits - 5,000,000 5,000,000

987,906,610 19,888,526 1,007,795,136
CURRENT ASSETS
Trade debts          14,483,553         10,747,858 25,231,411
Trade deposits and prepayments 2,294,686 - 2,294,686
Cash and bank balances 7,409,292 332,656 7,741,948

24,187,531 11,080,514 35,268,045

Total assets 1,012,094,141 30,969,040 1,043,063,181

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Long-term financing 41,898,032 - 41,898,032

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and other payables          15,057,529              969,495          16,027,024 
Accrued mark-up 48,296,905 5,609,216 53,906,121
Current portion of non-current liabilities 16,717,213 - 16,717,213
Due to related parties 450,266,978 41,459,894 491,726,872
Taxation - net - 807,373 807,373

530,338,625 48,845,978 579,184,603

Total liabilities 572,236,657 48,845,978 621,082,635

Net assets transferred under the Scheme 439,857,484 (17,876,938) 421,980,546

TPLM TPLR

 e) the carrying values of assets and liabilities of TPLM and TPLR transferred to the Company, consequent to 
the Scheme, as of effective date i.e. July 01, 2019 are as follows:

 The Company's conventional operations were not immune from the effects of the pandemic, resulting in slowing 
down of sales and certain planned new initiatives, however the impact remained marginal due to COVID-19 
pandemic.

 Based on the successful closure of the Company's initial public offering and listing on Pakistan Stock Exchange 
Limited subsequent to reporting date, recovering economic situation and massive decline in COVID-19 cases in 
the country, the management believes that there will be no significant accounting impact in these financial 
statements. However, the Company has availed facility under Refinance Scheme for Payment of Wages & Salaries 
in order to make payment of salaries to employees without any disruption. 

  Like the rest of the world, the novel coronavirus (COVID-19 pandemic), substantially affected the business and 
social activities in the country in an adverse manner. The Company not only ensured compliance with all the 
standard operating procedures (SOPs) prescribed by the Federal and Provincial Governments, but being a 
corporate responsible citizen and the country's leading tracking services and Internet of Things (IoT) solutions 
provider partnered with National Information Technology Board (NITB) and National Command and Operation 
Center (NCOC) to locate COVID-19 hotspots in the country, which in turn helped the government in imposing geo-
based smart lock downs, making them efficient and effective. 

1.4 Impact of COVID-19 pandemic

Notes to the Financial Statements
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 Location Address

1.5 Geographical location and addresses of business units are as under:

 Corporate office,  12th and 13th floor, Centrepoint, Off Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, Adjacent KPT 

 Karachi Interchange, Karachi.

 TPL Mobile (Private) Limited Common directorship -

 Name of related party Basis of relationship Shareholding

 Islamabad office 10th floor (South) ISE Towers, 55-B, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad.

 Branch office:

 TPL Insurance Limited Common directorship -

 TPL Tech Pakistan (Private) Limited Common directorship -

 Trakker (Private) Limited Staff Provident Fund  Retirement benefit fund -

2. STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

 

 Multan office House No. 2, Shalimar Colony, Haider Street, Bosan Road (near Toyota Multan), Multan

 Trakker Middle East LLC Associated company 29

 G-18 (Private) Limited Common directorship -

 TPL Logistics (Private) Limited Common directorship -

 TPL E-Ventures (Private) Limited Common directorship -

 Faisalabad office Office No. 2, 4th Floor, Mezan Executive Tower, Liaqat Road, Faisalabad.

 Lahore office Tower 75, 4th Floor, L Block, Gulberg III, Kalma Chowk, Main Ferozpur Road, Lahore

 Hyderabad office A-8 District Council Complex, Hyderabad.

 TPL Security Services (Private) Limited Common directorship -

 TPL Properties Limited Common directorship -

 TPL Life Insurance Limited Common directorship -

 Trakker Energy (Private) Limited Common directorship -

1.6 Details of related parties

 TPL Holdings (Private) Limited Ultimate parent company -

 TRG Pakistan Limited Common directorship -

 HKC (Private) Limited Common directorship -

 Islamabad office 19Y, 3rd floor, Business Bay Avenue, Bahria Expressway, Sector F, DHA

 Regional offices:

 Peshawar office C-7 & C-8, 3rd floor, Jasmine Arcade, Fakhr-e-Alam Road, Peshawar.

 TPL Corp Limited Parent company 100

 TPL Direct Finance (Private) Limited Common directorship -

  Phase 1, Islamabad.

 These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of International 
Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by International Accounting Standard Board (IASB) and Islamic 
Financial Accounting Standards (IFAS) issued by Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP), as notified 
under Companies Act, 2017 (the Act). and, provisions of and directives issued under the Act. Where the provisions 
of and directives issued under the Act differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under the Act 
have been followed.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020
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 New / amended standards, interpretations and improvements

 IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION

 These financial statements have been prepared under the ‘historical cost’ convention, unless otherwise 
specifically stated.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

4.1 Standards, amendments, interpretations and improvements adopted during the period

 The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the 
previous financial year ended, except as described below:

 IFRS 9  Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments) 

 IFRS 16  Leases 

 IAS 19  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendments) 

 Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2015-2017 cycle)

 IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements - Previously held Interests in a joint operation

 IAS 12  Income Taxes: Income tax consequences of payments on financial instruments   classified as equity 

 IAS 28  Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendments) 

 4.1.1 IFRS 16 - Leases

 IFRS 16 supersedes IAS 17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease, SIC-
15 Operating Leases-Incentives and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving the Legal 
Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation and 
disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account for most leases under a single on-balance sheet 
model. Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from IAS 17. Lessors will continue to 
classify leases as either operating or finance leases using similar principles as in IAS 17. Therefore, IFRS 16 
does not have an impact for leases where the Company is lessor. Whereas, for lessees all leases will be 
classified as finance leases only.

 IAS 23  Borrowing Costs - Borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation 

 The Company adopted IFRS 16 using the modified retrospective method of adoption with the date of 
initial application. Under this method, the standard is applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of 
initially applying standard recognised at the date of initial application, that is in case of the Company is 
July 01, 2019. The Company elected to use the transition practical expedient allowing the standard to be 
applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases applying IAS 17 as of July 01, 2019. The 
Company also elected to use the recognition exemptions for lease contracts that, at the commencement 
date, have a lease term of 12 months or less and do not contain a purchase option (‘short-term leases’), 
and lease contracts for which the underlying asset is of low value (‘low-value assets’). 

 IFRS 3  Business Combinations - Previously held Interests in a joint operation 

 The adoption of the above standards, amendments and improvements to accounting standards did not have any 
material effect on these financial statements in the period of initial application except for the adoption of IFRS 16 
‘Leases’ as disclosed in notes 4.1.1 to the financial statements.

 IFRS 16  COVID 19 Related Rent Concessions (Amendments)

 IFRIC 23  Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020



56

 The Company has operating and finance lease contracts for various items of computers and accessories, 
electrical devices, vehicles and office premises. Before the adoption of IFRS 16, the Company classified 
each of its leases (as lessee) at the inception date as either a finance lease or an operating lease. A lease 
was classified as a finance lease if it transferred substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of the leased asset to the Company; otherwise it was classified as an operating lease. Finance 
leases were capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased 
item or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments were apportioned 
between interest (recognised as finance costs) and reduction of the lease liability. In an operating lease, 
the leased item was not capitalised and the lease payments were recognised as rent expense in the 
statement of profit or loss on straight-line basis over the lease term. Prepaid rent was recognised as 
prepayments under non-current / current assets and rent payable as accrued liabilities under trade and 
other payables, accordingly. Upon adoption of IFRS 16, the Company applied a single recognition and 
measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The 
standard provides specific transition requirements and practical expedients, which has been applied by 
the Company. Further, vehicles obtained under ijarah agreements continues to be recorded under 
Islamic Financial Accounting Standards - 2 (IFAS-2), as per local law requirement.

  i)  Leases previously accounted for as operating leases

   The Company recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for those leases previously 
classified as operating leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets, if any. The 
right-of-use assets for most leases were recognised based on the carrying amount as if the standard 
had always been applied, apart from the use of incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial 
application. In some leases, the right-of-use assets were recognised based on the amount equal to 
the lease liabilities, adjusted for any related prepaid and accrued lease payments previously 
recognised. Lease liabilities were recognised based on the present value of the remaining lease 
payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at the date of initial application.

  ii)  Leases previously classified as finance leases

   The Company did not change the initial carrying amounts of recognised assets and liabilities at the 
date of initial application for leases previously classified as finance leases (i.e., the right-of- use 
assets and lease liabilities equal to the leased assets and liabilities recognised under IAS 17). The 
requirements of IFRS 16 were applied to these leases from July 01, 2019. 

 - right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of Rs. 241.095 million and Rs. 241.031 million 
respectively, were recognised and presented separately in the statement of financial position. 
Further, lease assets recognised previously under finance leases of Rs. 71.918 million were 
reclassified from operating fixed assets under property, plant and equipment to right-of-use 
assets.

 - Short-term prepayments of Rs. 0.064 million related to previous operating leases were 
derecognised.

  iii)  The effect of adoption of IFRS 16 and related adjustments did not have any impact on revenue 
reserves as of July 01, 2019 and accordingly, there is no effect on basic / diluted earning per share. 
The lease liabilities as at July 01, 2019 can be reconciled to the operating lease commitments as of 
June 30, 2019 as follows:

   The Company also applied the available practical expedients wherein it has used hindsight in 
determining the lease term where the contract contains options to extend or terminate the lease 
and applied the short-term leases exemptions to leases with lease terms that ends within 12 months 
at the date of initial application. Based on the foregoing, as at July 01, 2019:

Notes to the Financial Statements
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Rupees

Operating lease commitments as at June  30, 2019        372,202,137 

Incremental borrowing rate as at July 1, 2019 15%

Discounted operating lease commitments as at July 01, 2019        305,053,580 
Less: Commitments relating to short-term leases        (63,958,792)
Less: Commitments relating to low value assets                        -   
Less: Prepaid rentals               (62,920)
Lease liabilities July 01, 2019        241,031,868 

 The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting and reporting standards requires the use of 
certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgments in the process of 
applying the Company’s accounting policies. Judgments, estimates and assumptions are continually evaluated 
and are based on historic experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to 
be reasonable under the circumstances. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which 
the estimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

 c) Provision for expected credit losses of certain financial assets

4.2 Significant accounting judgments, estimates and assumptions

 The Company reviews the useful lives, methods of depreciation / amortisation and residual values of 
operating fixed assets on the reporting date. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the 
carrying amounts of the respective items of operating fixed assets and intangible assets with a 
corresponding effect on the depreciation / amortisation charge and impairment. The Company assesses 
at each reporting date whether there is any indication that assets may be impaired. If such indication 
exists, the carrying amounts of such assets are reviewed to assess whether they are recorded in excess of 
their recoverable amount. Where carrying value exceeds recoverable amount, assets are written down to 
the recoverable amounts and the resulting impairment loss is recognized as expense in the profit or loss, 
unless the asset is carried at revalued amount. Any impairment loss of revalued assets is treated as 
revaluation decrease.

 a)  Operating fixed assets and intangible assets

 b) Stock-in-trade 

 The accounting policy in respect of right of use assets and lease liabilities is stated in note 4.6 to these financial 
statements.

 In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, 
estimates and assumptions which are significant to these financial statements:

 The Company reviews the net realisable value of stock-in-trade to assess any diminution in the carrying 
values. Net realisable value is determined with reference to estimated selling price less estimated 
expenditure to make the sales.

 The Company has established a provision matrix that is based on the Company’s historical credit loss 
experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic environment. 
However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal 
or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the outstanding contractual 
amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the Company. The Company 
will calibrate the matrix to adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information. The 
amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and of forecast economic conditions. The 
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 Significant management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax that can be 
recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits, together with future tax 
planning strategies. The management consider tax consequences that would follow from the manner in 
which the entity expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its 
assets and liabilities.

 Rates of depreciation which are disclosed in note 5.1 to these financial statements are designed to write-
off the cost over the estimated useful lives of the assets.

 Assets residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate 
at each reporting date. An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount 
if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

 An item of property and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits 
are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Gains or losses on disposal or retirement of an 
asset represented by the difference between the sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is 
charged to profit or loss.

 Other areas where judgments, estimates and assumptions involved are disclosed in respective notes to 
these financial statements.

 d)  Recognition of tax and deferred tax

 Property, plant and equipment (except for leasehold land and buildings on leasehold land) are stated at 
cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Leasehold land and 
buildings on leasehold land are stated at revalued amounts, which are the fair value at the date of 
revaluation. Subsequently, these are stated at revalued amounts less subsequent accumulated 
depreciation and subsequent impairment losses, if any. Depreciation is charged to profit or loss applying 
the straight-line method. Depreciation on additions during the year is charged from the month of addition 
when the asset is available for use, whereas, depreciation on disposals is charged upto the month in 
which the disposal takes place.

 4.3.1 Owned

 The provision for taxation is accounted for by the Company after taking into account the relevant laws 
and decisions taken by appellate authorities. Instances, where the Company's view differs from the view 
taken by the tax authorities at the assessment stage and where the Company considers that its view on 
items of material nature is in accordance with law, the amounts are shown as contingent liabilities / assets.

 Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset does not 
differ materially from its carrying amount at the reporting date. Accumulated depreciation at the date of 
the revaluation is eliminated against the gross carrying amount of the asset and the net amount restated 
to the revalued amount of the asset. 

4.3 Property, plant and equipment

 Major renewals and improvements for assets are capitalised and the assets so replaced, if any, are retired. 
Maintenance and normal repairs are charged to profit or loss, as and when incurred.

Company’s historical credit loss experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be 
representative of customer’s actual default in the future. At each reporting date, the historical observed 
default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. Any change might 
affect the carrying value and amount of expected credit loss charge to profit or loss. 

Notes to the Financial Statements
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  a) the aggregate of consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interest in the 
acquiree and in a business combination achieved in stages, the acquisition date fair value of the 
previously held equity interest in the acquiree; and

  Goodwill is initially measured at the acquisition date, being the excess of:

 In case, the fair value attributable to the Company’s interest in the identifiable net assets exceeds the fair 
value of consideration, the Company recognises the resulting gain in the profit or loss on the acquisition 
date.

 Goodwill acquired in a business combination is measured subsequent to initial recognition, at cost less 
accumulated impairment losses, if any, and is tested annually or whenever, there is an indication of 
impairment. Impairment loss in respect of goodwill is recognised in profit or loss.

 A revaluation surplus is recorded in other comprehensive income and credited to the asset revaluation surplus in 
equity. However, to the extent that it reverses a revaluation deficit of the same asset previously recognised in profit 
or loss, the increase is recognised in profit or loss. A revaluation deficit is recognised in the profit or loss, except to 
the extent that it offsets an existing surplus on the same asset recognised in the asset revaluation surplus. 

4.5 Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 

  b) the net of the acquisition date amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities 
assumed.

 The Company uses acquisition method of accounting for acquisition of assets or class of assets, whereby, 
the purchase consideration is allocated to the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities 
assumed based on the fair value at the date of acquisition. Acquisition related costs are expensed as 
incurred and included in administrative expenses.

 4.3.2 Capital work-in-progress

 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, and consist of 
expenditure incurred in respect of operating fixed assets in the course of their acquisition, erection, 
construction and installation. The assets are transferred to relevant category of operating fixed assets 
when they are available for use.

 Intangible assets other than goodwill, customers related intangible assets and marketing related intangible assets 
are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Goodwill, customers 
related intangible assets and marketing related intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated impairment 
losses, if any, as their useful life is indefinite and are tested for impairment annually. For other intangibles, 
amortisation is charged to the profit or loss applying the straight line method, whereby, the cost of intangible asset 
is written off over its useful economic life. The amortisation rate of the intangible assets are stated in note 6.1 to 
these financial statements. Full month's amortisation is charged in the month of addition when the asset is 
available for use, whereas, amortisation on disposals is charged upto the month in which the disposal takes place.

4.4 Intangible assets

 4.4.1 Business combinations and Goodwill

 Intangible assets under development are stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. It consists of 
expenditure incurred in respect of intangible assets under development in the course of their acquisition, erection, 
development and installation. The assets are transferred to relevant category of intangible assets when they are 
available for use. 
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  b) Lease liabilities

   The Company recognises right-of-use assets (ROU assets) at the commencement date of the lease 
(i.e., the date the underlying asset is available for use). ROU assets are measured at cost less any 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, and adjusted for any 
remeasurement of lease liabilities, if any. The cost of ROU assets includes the amount of lease 
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, if any, and lease payments made at or before the 
commencement date less any lease incentives received. Unless the Company is reasonably certain 
to obtain ownership of the leased asset at the end of the lease term, the recognised ROU assets are 
depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term, on 
the rates as disclosed in the note 7.1 to these financial statements. ROU assets are subject to 
impairment.

 4.6.1 Company as a lessee

   In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses the incremental borrowing 
rate at the lease commencement date. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities 
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made. In 
addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in 
the lease term, a change in the in-substance fixed lease payments or a change in the assessment to 
purchase the underlying asset.

   The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any 
periods covered by an option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any 
periods covered by an option to terminate the lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

 The Company acts as a lessee and applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all the 
leases except for short-term leases and leases of low value assets (if any). The Company recognises lease 
liability to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying 
assets.

 An annual transfer from the asset revaluation surplus to unappropriated profit is made for the difference between 
depreciation based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset and depreciation based on the asset’s original 
cost. Additionally, accumulated depreciation as at the revaluation date is eliminated against the gross carrying 
amount of the asset and the net amount is restated to the revalued amount of the asset. Upon disposal, any 
revaluation surplus relating to the particular asset being sold is transferred to unappropriated profit. 

4.6 Leases

 The Company assess at contract inception whether a contract is, or contain a lease. That is, if the contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. 

  a) Right-of-use assets

   At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognises lease liabilities measured at the 
present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed 
payments (including insubstance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable 
lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid under residual 
value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase option (if any) 
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating a 
lease, if the lease term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate. The variable lease 
payments that do not depend on an index or a rate are recognised as expense in the period on 
which the event or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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 Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income (OCI), and fair value through profit or loss. 

   The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e. those 
leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not 
contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to 
leases that are considered of low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-
value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

 In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at amortised cost or fair value through OCI, it 
needs to give rise to cash flows that are ‘solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI)’ on the principal 
amount outstanding. This assessment is referred to as the SPPI test and is performed at an instrument 
level. The Company’s business model for managing financial assets refers to how it manages its financial 
assets in order to generate cash flows. The business model determines whether cash flows will result from 
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.

4.7 Financial instruments

 4.6.2 Company as a lessor

 The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash 
flow characteristics and the Company’s business model for managing them. With the exception of trade 
debts, the Company initially measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial asset 
not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs. Trade debts are measured at the transaction price 
determined under IFRS 15.

Leases in which the Company does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to 
ownership of an asset are classified as operating leases. Rental income arising is accounted for on a 
straight-line basis over the lease terms and is included in revenue in the profit or loss due to its operating 
nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging an operating lease are added to the 
carrying amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis as rental 
income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which they are earned.

 4.7.1 Financial assets 

   The Company has the option, under its lease arrangements to lease the assets for additional term 
under the contract. The Company applies judgement in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain 
to exercise the option to renew. That is, it considers all relevant factors that create an economic 
incentive for it to exercise the renewal. After the commencement date, the Company reassesses the 
lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances that is within its control and 
affects its ability to exercise (or not to exercise) the option to renew (e.g., a change in business 
strategy). Any change is accounted for change in estimate and applied prospectively with 
corresponding change in ROU assets and lease liabilities.

  c) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

 A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity 
instrument of another entity. 

 4.7.1.1 Initial recognition and measurement 

 Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by 
regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., 
the date that the Company commits to purchase or sell the asset.
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 b) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with recycling of cumulative gains and 
losses (debt instruments) 

 a) Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

 4.7.1.2 Subsequent measurement

 -  the financial asset is held within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in 
order to collect contractual cash flows; and

  Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using the effective interest (EIR) 
method and are subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
asset is derecognised, modified or impaired.

 -  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  This category is the most relevant to the Company. The Company measures financial assets at 
amortised cost if both of the following conditions are met: 

 For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified into following categories:

  The Company measures debt instruments at fair value through OCI if both of the following 
conditions are met:

 -  the financial asset is held within a business model with the objective of both holding to collect 
contractual cash flows and selling; and 

 -  the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are 
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

  For debt instruments at fair value through OCI, interest income, foreign exchange revaluation and 
impairment losses or reversals are recognised in the profit or loss and computed in the same 
manner as for financial assets measured at amortised cost. The remaining fair value changes are 
recognised in OCI. Upon derecognition, the cumulative fair value change recognised in OCI is 
recycled to profit or loss.

 c) Financial assets designated at fair value through OCI with no recycling of cumulative gains and 
losses upon derecognition (equity instruments) 

  Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to profit or loss. Dividends are 
recognised as dividend income in the profit or loss when the right of payment has been established, 
except when the Company benefits from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the 
financial asset, in which case, such gains are recorded in OCI. Equity instruments designated at fair 
value through OCI are not subject to impairment assessment.

  The Company elected to classify irrevocably its non-listed equity investments, if any, under this 
category.

  Upon initial recognition, the Company can elect to classify irrevocably its equity investments as 
equity instruments designated at fair value through OCI when they meet the definition of equity 
under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading. The classification is 
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis. 
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  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets held for trading, financial 
assets designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss, or financial assets 
mandatorily required to be measured at fair value. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if 
they are acquired for the purpose of selling or repurchasing in the near term. Financial assets with 
cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest are classified and measured at fair 
value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model. Notwithstanding the criteria for debt 
instruments to be classified at amortised cost or at fair value through OCI, as described above, debt 
instruments may be designated at fair value through profit or loss on initial recognition if doing so 
eliminates, or significantly reduces, an accounting mismatch.

  This category includes listed equity investments which the Company had not irrevocably elected to 
classify at fair value through OCI. Dividends on listed equity investments are also recognised as 
dividend income in the profit or loss when the right of payment has been established.

 A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Company’s statement of financial position) when:

 When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor 
transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of 
its continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The 
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and 
obligations that the Company has retained. 

 Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the 
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the 
Company could be required to repay.

 - the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

 d) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

  Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial position at 
fair value with net changes in fair value recognised in the profit or loss. 

 4.7.1.3 Derecognition

 - the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation 
to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ 
arrangement; and either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the 
asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

 When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a 
pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has retained the risks and rewards of 
ownership. 

 4.7.1.4 Impairment

 The Company recognises an allowance for expected credit losses (ECLs) for all debt instruments not held 
at fair value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual cash flows 
due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the Company expects to receive, 
discounted at an approximation of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will include 
cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual 

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020



64

  Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and 
financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Gains or 
losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss. Financial liabilities designated 
upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated at the initial date of 
recognition, and only if the criteria in IFRS 9 are satisfied. 

 Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or 
loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective 
hedge, as appropriate. 

 All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and 
payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

 b) Loans and borrowings 

  Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and 
fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in 
the profit or loss. 

 A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 

 4.7.2.3 Derecognition 

 The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

 a) Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 

 4.7.2.2 Subsequent measurement

  After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at 
amortised cost using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the 
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process. 

 The Company considers a financial asset in default when contractual payments are past due over the 
agreed credit terms. However, in certain cases, the Company may also consider a financial asset to be in 
default when internal or external information indicates that the Company is unlikely to receive the 
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any credit enhancements held by the 
Company. A financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the 
contractual cash flows.

terms. For trade and other receivables (if any), the Company applies a simplified approach in calculating 
ECLs. Therefore, the Company does not track changes in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss 
allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Company has established a provision 
matrix that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-looking factors specific to 
the debtors and the economic environment. For other assets including deposits, accrued interest and 
bank balances that are held with reputational banks and other third parties, the Company applies low 
credit risk simplifications. At each reporting date, the Company evaluates whether these assets are 
considered to have low credit risk using all reasonable and supportable information that is available 
without un-due cost or effort including their credit ratings assessed by reputable agencies and therefore 
assessed to have immaterial impact of allowances for ECL.

 4.7.2 Financial liabilities

 4.7.2.1 Initial recognition and measurement 
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 4.7.2.4 Offsetting of financial instruments

 For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication 
that previously recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, 
the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 

 Goodwill is tested for impairment annually at year end and when the circumstances indicate that the carrying value 
may be impaired. Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing the recoverable amount of each cash 
generating unit (CGU) or group of CGUs to which the goodwill relates. When the recoverable amount of CGU is 
less than its carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.

 Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment annually at year end either individually or at 
the CGU level, as appropriate, and when circumstances indicate that the carrying value may be impaired.

 A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to 
determine the asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so 
that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in 
prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the profit or loss.

 Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial position if 
there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to 
settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

4.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

4.9 Investment in associates

 An associate is an entity over which the Company has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to 
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control over 
those policies. The considerations made in determining significant influence or joint control are similar to those 
necessary to determine control over subsidiaries. 

expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially 
different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or 
modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. 
The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the profit or loss. 

 The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any 
indication exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is required, the Company estimates the asset’s 
recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and its 
value in use. Where the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

 Impairment losses relating to goodwill are not reversed in future periods.

 In determining fair value less costs to sell, the recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such 
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by 
valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly traded companies or other fair value indicators.

 In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax 
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the 
asset. The fair value less costs to sell calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, 
conducted at arm’s length, for similar assets or observable market prices less incremental costs to sell of the asset. 
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 Cash and cash equivalents are stated at cost and are defined as cash in hand, cash at banks and short-term highly 
liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and subject to insignificant risk of 
changes in value. For the purpose of cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents comprise of bank balances 
including short-term deposits net of book overdraft, if any.

4.13 Taxation

 Provision for current taxation is computed on taxable income at the current rates of taxation, after taking into 
account tax credits and rebates available, if any, in accordance with the provision of the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001. It also includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of prior years. However, for income covered under 
final tax regime, taxation is based on applicable tax rates under such regime.

 Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet method, on all temporary differences arising at the reporting 
date between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

 The Company’s investment in its associate is accounted at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any, under 
the exemption available in relevant accounting standards. 

 Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated costs of 
completion and estimated costs necessarily to be incurred to make the sale.

4.12 Staff retirement benefits - Defined contribution plan

4.10 Stock-in-trade

 Stock-in-trade is valued at the lower of cost, determined on a first-in-first-out basis and net realisable value. Items in 
transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges incurred thereon.

 Spare parts and loose tools are valued at lower of weighted average cost and net realisable value, except items in 
transit, which are stated at cost. Spare parts and loose tools are charged to cost of goods sold on an estimated 
consumption pattern.

4.11 Cash and cash equivalents

 The Company operates a recognised provident fund (defined contribution scheme) for its permanent employees 
who have completed the minimum qualifying period of service. Equal monthly contributions are made, both by the 
Company and the employees at the rate of 8.33 percent of the basic salary. The contribution from the Company is 
charged to the profit or loss for the year.

 Current

 Deferred 

 The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be 
utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent 
that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow deferred tax asset to be recovered.

 Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when the 

 Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, while deferred tax assets are recognised 
for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax losses and unused tax credits, to the extent 
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, carry 
forwards of unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.
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 Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to offset current 
tax assets and liabilities and they relate to the income tax levied by the same tax authority.

 Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of past 
events and it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date 
and accordingly adjusted to reflect current best estimates.

 Payments made under ijarah arrangements / agreements are charged to the profit or loss on a straight line basis 
over the ijarah term.

 4.16.1 Revenue from contracts with customers

asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantially 
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to the profit or loss.

 Deferred tax relating to items recognised directly in the other comprehensive income is recognised in the other 
comprehensive income and not in profit or loss.

4.14 Provisions

4.15 Ijarah arrangements

4.16 Revenue recognition

 The Company is in the business of sale of equipment and provides associated monitoring and other 
services. Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods and services 
are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company 
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods and services. The Company has generally concluded 
that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements because it typically controls the goods and services 
before transferring them to the customer.

 -  Revenue from sale of goods is recognised at the point in time when control of the goods is 
transferred to the customer i.e. when goods are installed.

 -  Revenue from rendering of e-ticketing services is recognised at a point in time when services are 
rendered to the customer.

 -  For maps navigation business, revenue from sale of goods and rendering of map navigation 
services are recognised at the point in time when control of the goods and services are transferred 
to the customer, generally on delivery of goods and rendering of services for installation of goods.

 -  Revenue from rendering of monitoring services is recognised over the time i.e. as and when services 
are rendered, revenue from rendering of other associated services are recognised at the point in 
time when services are rendered.

 The Company considers whether there are other promises in the contract that are separate performance 
obligations to which a portion of the transaction price needs to be allocated (e.g., right of returns, volume rebates). 
In determining the transaction price for the sale of goods and rendering of services, the Company considers the 
effects of variable consideration, the existence of significant financing components, non-cash consideration, and 
consideration payable to the customer (if any).
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 4.16.2 Other revenues

 a) Rental income from equipment is recognised on accrual basis. 

 b) Income on bank accounts are recognised using effective interest rate.

4.17 Foreign currency translation

 Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupee at the rate ruling at the date of the 
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the exchange rate 
ruling at the reporting date. Exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss. Non-monetary items that 
are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the 
dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated 
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined.

4.18 Borrowing costs

 Borrowing and other related costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use, are 
added to the cost of those assets, until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use. All 
other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred.

4.19 Dividend and appropriation to reserves

 c) Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive the dividend is established and other 
income, if any is recognised on accrual basis. 

 Dividend and appropriation to reserves are recognised in the financial statements in the period, in which these are 
approved. However, if these are approved after the reporting period but before the financial statements are 
authorised for issue, they are disclosed in the notes to these financial statements.

 The following standards, amendments, interpretations and improvement with respect to the approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective 
standard or interpretation:

4.21 Segment reporting

 Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief 
Operating Decision Maker (i.e. a single segment at the Company level). Segment results, assets and liabilities 
include items directly attributable to a segment. Segment capital expenditure is the total cost incurred during the 
year to acquire property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. 

4.20 Government grant

 Government grant is recognised where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all 
attached conditions will be complied with. When the grant related to an expense item, it is recognised in the 
statement of profit or loss on a systematic basis over the periods that the related costs, for which it is intended to 
compensate, are expensed. When the grant relates to an asset, it is recognised as income in equal amounts over 
the expected useful life of the related asset.

4.22 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Effective date 
(annual periods

beginning
Standard or Interpretation on or after)

IFRS 3 Definition of a Business (Amendments) January 01, 2020
IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework (Amendments) January 01, 2022

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation (Amendments) January 01, 2020
Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor 

and its Associate or Joint Venture (Amendment) Not yet finalised
IAS 1 / IAS 8 Definition of Material (Amendments) January 01, 2020
IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-current (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IAS 16 Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments) January 01, 2022
IAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments) January 01, 2022

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB (2018-2020 cycle)

IFRS 9 Financial Instruments - Fees in the '10 percent' test for 

derecognition of financial liabilities January 01, 2022
IAS 43 Agriculture - Taxation in fair value measurements January 01, 2022

Standard

IFRS 17    Insurance Contracts

5. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

5.1 980,967,199 1,523,880,067
5.3 78,265,139 78,265,139

1,059,232,338 1,602,145,206

January 01, 2023

Effective date
(annual periods

Operating fixed assets
Capital work-in-progress

beginning on or after)

IFRS 10 / IAS 
28

IFRS 9 / IAS 
39 / IFRS 7

 Further, following new standard has been issued by IASB which is yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of 
applicability in Pakistan. The management of the Company expects that below new standard will not have any 
material impact on the Company's financial statements in the period of initial application.

 The IASB has also issued the revised Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the Conceptual Framework) 
in March 2018 which is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2020 for preparers of 
financial statements who develop accounting policies based on the Conceptual Framework. The revised 
Conceptual Framework is not a standard, and none of the concepts override those in any standard or any 
requirements in a standard. The purpose of the Conceptual Framework is to assist IASB in developing standards, to 
help preparers develop consistent accounting policies if there is no applicable standard in place and to assist all 
parties to understand and interpret the standards.

 The above standards and amendments are not expected to have any material impact on the Company's financial 
statements in the period of initial application.
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5.1 Operating fixed assets

-

5

33.33

20

20

20

20

20

33.33

33.33

20

20

735,350,000

67,248,752

158,656,317

5,516,565

1,028,572,320

177,405,821

13,553,648

6,048,277

6,882,571

2,199,234,271

118,084,360

3,570,700

43,610,094

165,265,154

2,364,499,425

411,000,000

16,406,766

189,421,226

4,423,665

1,048,008,449

177,223,156

9,863,338

6,048,277

11,137,197

           1,873,532,074 

-

-

-

-

           1,873,532,074 

-

26,354,190

131,374,991

5,441,065

450,629,528

120,043,891

2,755,253

6,048,277

4,625,459

              747,272,654 

52,007,404

3,570,700

37,768,600

93,346,704

              840,619,358 

-

4,071,893

146,968,807

4,363,265

579,187,949

140,647,078

1,424,171

6,048,277

9,853,434

              892,564,875 

-

-

-

-

              892,564,875 

411,000,000

12,334,873

42,452,419

60,400

468,820,500

36,576,078

8,439,167

-

1,283,763

              980,967,199 

-

-

-

-

              980,967,199 

-

3,371,045
(25,653,342)

 * 21,421,287
53,697,894
(1,954,809)

 ***** (57,570,556)

15,100
 ***** (1,092,900)

 * 94,987
156,599,761

(136,416)
 ****** (19,232,989)
 ***** (8,766,922)

 * 484,173
21,408,232

(220,037)
 ***** (1,069,180)

2,359,228
 ***** (3,690,310)

                               -   

 * 3,833,615
2,857,315
(420,956)

 ***** (1,042,000)

              240,308,576 
               (28,385,560)

 *                 25,834,061 
*****               (73,231,868)
******               (19,232,989)

(52,007,404)

(3,570,700)

(37,768,600)

**** (93,346,704)

              240,308,576 
               (28,385,560)

*                25,834,061 
****               (93,346,704)

*****               (73,231,868)
******               (19,232,989)

** (9,538,644)
(314,811,356)

-
(50,841,986)

 * 78,162,670
12,127,604
(1,954,809)

 ***** (57,570,556)

 *****                  (1,092,900)

 * 189,100
4,197,331

*** 72,097,985
(145,749)

 ****** (48,135,616)
 ***** (8,766,922)

* 1,081,194
30,000

(224,679)
 ***** (1,069,180)

                               -   
 *****                  (3,690,310)

                               -   

* 4,798,911
1,024,755
(527,040)

 ***** (1,042,000)

                17,379,690 
             (368,505,619)

 *                 84,231,875 
**                 (9,538,644)
***                72,097,985 

*****               (73,231,868)
******               (48,135,616)

             (118,084,360)

                 (3,570,700)

               (43,610,094)

****(165,265,154)

                17,379,690 
             (368,505,619)

*                84,231,875 
**                 (9,538,644)
***                72,097,985 
****             (165,265,154)
*****               (73,231,868)
******               (48,135,616)

* Represents assets transferred under Scheme (refer note 1.3)
** Represents deficit on revaluation at the time of disposal of assets
*** Represents transfers from stock-in-trade to owned assets
**** Represents leased assets reclassified to right-of-use assets (note 7.1)
***** Represents assets written off during the year
****** Represents transfer from owned assets to stock-in-trade

Generators

Electrical devices 

Owned

Leasehold land

Building on leasehold land 

Computers and accessories 

Construction of shed

Mobile phones

Leased

June 30, 2020

Computers and accessories
Electrical devices

Furniture and fittings  

Vehicles

Vehicles             

WRITTEN
DOWN
VALUE

Depreciation 
Rate

%

Additions / 
(disposals) / 

transfers / write off

As at 
July 01, 

2019

As at 
July 01, 

2019

Charge for 
the year / 

(disposals) / 
transfers / write off

As at 
June 30, 

2020

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

COST / REVALUED AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

As at 
June 30, 

2020

As at 
June 30, 

2020
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WRITTEN
DOWN
VALUE

Depreciation 
Rate

%

-

5

33.33

20

20

20

20

20

33.33

33.33

20

20

20

413,000,000

60,055,960

143,645,962

5,441,065

825,626,184

152,317,307

9,006,908

6,048,277

6,015,951

1,621,157,614

46,000,408

3,570,700

40,793,930

279,800

90,644,838

1,711,802,452

735,350,000

67,248,752

158,656,317

5,516,565

1,028,572,320

177,405,821

13,553,648

6,048,277

6,882,571

           2,199,234,271 

118,084,360

3,570,700

43,610,094

-

165,265,154

           2,364,499,425 

-

22,991,752

131,965,050

5,441,065

299,881,943

90,003,270

553,375

6,048,277

3,109,841

              559,994,573 

44,493,753

3,570,700

36,201,518

279,800

84,545,771

644,540,344

-

26,354,190

131,374,991

5,441,065

450,629,528

120,043,891

2,755,253

6,048,277

4,625,459

              747,272,654 

52,007,404

3,570,700

37,768,600

-

93,346,704

              840,619,358 

735,350,000

40,894,562

27,281,326

75,500

577,942,792

57,361,930

10,798,395

-

2,257,112

           1,451,961,617 

66,076,956

-

5,841,494

-
-

71,918,450

           1,523,880,067 

-

3,362,438

14,815,275
(15,405,334)

-

150,747,585

30,040,621

2,201,878
**** 3,440,836

(3,440,836)

                               -   

2,634,268
(1,118,650)

              203,802,065 
****                  3,440,836 

               (19,964,820)

7,513,651

-

5,007,918
 ****                  (3,440,836)

-
***                    (279,800)

12,521,569
 **** (3,440,836)
*** (279,800)

              216,323,634 
*** (279,800)

               (19,964,820)

322,350,000

7,192,792

30,509,701
(15,499,346)

                       75,500 

2,418,666
** 200,527,470

11,018,864
* 14,069,650

                  4,546,740 
****                  3,440,836 

(3,440,836)

                               -   

2,284,320
(1,417,700)

              380,396,583 
*                14,069,650 
**              200,527,470 

****                  3,440,836 
               (20,357,882)

                72,083,952 

                               -   

                  6,257,000 
 ****                  (3,440,836)

                               -   
***                    (279,800)

78,340,952
 **** (3,440,836)
***                    (279,800)

              458,737,535 
*                14,069,650 
**              200,527,470 
***                    (279,800)

               (20,357,882)

* Represents transfers from capital work-in-progress to owned asset
** Represents transfers from stock-in-trade to owned assets
*** Represents assets derecognised on termination of lease
**** Represents assets transferred from leased asset to owned asset

Additions / 
(disposals) / 

transfers / write off

As at 
July 01, 

2018

As at 
July 01, 

2018

Charge for 
the year / 

(disposals) / 
transfers / write off

As at 
June 30, 

2019

 2019

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

COST / REVALUED AMOUNT ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION

Owned

Leasehold land

Building on leasehold land

Electrical devices

Furniture and fittings  

Vehicles             

Mobile phones

Mobile phones

Leased

Computers and accessories

Electrical devices

Vehicles

Construction of shed

Generators

Computers and accessories

As at 
June 30, 

2019

As at 
June 30, 

2019
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

 5.1.1 Computers and accessories and vehicles includes assets costing Rs. 4.443 million (2019: Rs. 4.443 
million) and Rs. 1.972 million (2019: Rs. 1.972 million) respectively purchased on maturity of ijarah 
agreements. However, as of the reporting date, the Company is in the process of obtaining no objection 
certificates and transferring the ownership of these assets in the name of the Company.

5.1.2 Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

Cost of sales and services 35 137,173,881 123,286,353

Distribution expenses 36 43,988,685 39,447,975

Administrative expenses 37 59,146,010 53,589,306

240,308,576 216,323,634

 5.1.5 During the year, the Company has written off fully depreciated assets costing Rs. 73.231 million.

 5.1.3 During the year, the Company has transferred tracking devices from stock-in-trade at a cost of Rs. 72.098 
million (2019: Rs. 200.527 million) to owned assets. As of the reporting date, assets costing Rs. 892.337 
million (2019: Rs. 820.239 million) are in possession of third parties, on rental basis. The particulars of 
these assets have not been disclosed due to several numbers of parties involved.

 5.1.4 Included in operating fixed assets are fully depreciated assets having cost of Rs. 420.579 million (2019: 
Rs.482.781 million).

 5.1.6 The details of immovable assets (i.e. land and building) of the Company as at June 30, 2020 are as 
follows:

Location Usage

Karachi Plot no. 20-B & 20-C, Block No. 6, P.E.C.H.S., 
Survey sheet no. 35-P/1

Installation Centre 10,240

Addresses Covered Area 
(sq.ft )

5.1.7 The forced sale values as per the last revaluation report are as follows: Rupees

Leasehold land 349,350,000

Building on leasehold land 12,066,600

361,416,600

 5.1.8 The immovable assets of the Company are placed as security against various financing facility obtained 
from commercial banks as stated in notes 23, 25, 29 and 30 respectively to these financial statements.

 Had there been no revaluation, the aggregated cost and written down value of revalued leasehold land 
and building on leasehold land would have been Rs. 140.181 million and Rs. 137.497 million respectively.

 5.1.9 The Company had carried out last revaluation exercise through an independent valuer as of June 30, 
2019 for its leasehold land and building on leasehold land. The fair values were determined with 
reference to market based evidence, based on active market prices and relevant enquiries and 
information as considered necessary, and adjusted for any difference in nature, location or condition of 
the specific properties. The fair value of leasehold land and building on leasehold land falls under level 2 
of fair value hierarchy (i.e. significant observable inputs).
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

5.2 The details of operating fixed assets disposed off during the year are as follows:

Original  / 
revalued

cost

Owned

Leasehold land 314,811,356 - 314,811,356
Building on leasehold land 50,841,986 25,653,342 25,188,644

365,653,342 25,653,342 340,000,000 340,000,000 -

Computers and accessories 1,954,809 1,954,809 - 136,950 136,950  Various  Various  Karachi 
Electrical devices 145,749 136,416 9,333 70,610 61,277  Various  Various  Karachi 
Furniture and fittings 224,679 220,037 4,642 64,500 59,858 Various  Various  Karachi 
Mobile phones 527,040 420,956 106,084 192,816 86,732  Various  Various  Karachi 

2,852,277 2,732,218 120,059 464,876 344,817

2020 368,505,619 28,385,560 340,120,059 340,464,876 344,817

2019 20,357,882 19,964,820 393,062 3,427,814 3,034,752

---------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) ---------------------------------------------------------

Aggregate amount of assets 
disposed off having WDV 
more than Rs. 5,000,000 each

Aggregate amount of assets 
disposed off not having WDV 
more than Rs. 5,000,000 each

340,000,000 -
 Mindbridge Pvt. 

Limited 

Sale proceeds
Gain / (loss) on 

disposals

LahoreNegotiation

Mode of 
disposal

Particulars of 
buyers LocationWritten down 

value

Accumulated  

depreciation

Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Opening balance 78,265,139 41,875,532
Additions during the year - 50,459,257
Transferred to operating fixed assets - (14,069,650)
Closing balance 5.3.1 78,265,139 78,265,139

5.3.1 Represents expenditure in respect of renovation of the building on leasehold land.

5.3 Capital work-in-progress

6.

6.1 1,235,769,699 1,151,299,734
6.2 902,619,034 -

2,138,388,733 1,151,299,734

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Intangible assets
Intangible assets under development

Notes to the Financial Statements
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6.1 Intangible assets 

Owned

Goodwill - note 6.4 403,380,571 - 403,380,571 - - - 403,380,571 -

Customers related 
  intangible assets - note 6.4 453,635,249 - 453,635,249 - - - 453,635,249 -

Marketing related 
  intangible assets - note 6.4 289,021,582 - 289,021,582 - - - 289,021,582 -

Internally generated 
  computer softwares 25,840,000 - 25,840,000 25,840,000 - 25,840,000 - 13.33

Softwares 155,403,176 *159,460,568 324,352,222 150,140,844 *111,277,435 299,175,909 25,176,313 20-33.33
** 9,488,478 37,757,630

PTA license 1,000,500 - 1,000,500 1,000,500 - 1,000,500 - 6.67

Decarta maps 22,884,695 - 22,884,695 22,884,695 - 22,884,695 - 20

Maps database                             -   *147,858,790 147,858,790 - * 75,777,622               83,302,806 64,555,984 5
7,525,184

1,351,165,773 *307,319,358 1,667,973,609 199,866,039 *187,055,057 432,203,910 1,235,769,699
** 9,488,478 45,282,814

* Represents assets transferred under Scheme (refer note 1.3)
** Represents additions during the year

Owned

Goodwill - note 6.4 403,380,571 - 403,380,571 - - - 403,380,571 -

Customers related 
  intangible assets - note 6.4 453,635,249 - 453,635,249 - - - 453,635,249 -

Marketing related 
  intangible assets - note 6.4 289,021,582 - 289,021,582 - - - 289,021,582 -

Internally generated 
  computer softwares 25,840,000 - 25,840,000 25,840,000 - 25,840,000 - 13.33

Softwares 152,473,646 2,929,530 155,403,176 146,503,413 3,637,431 150,140,844 5,262,332 33.33

PTA license 1,000,500 - 1,000,500 1,000,500 - 1,000,500 - 6.67

Decarta maps 22,884,695 - 22,884,695 22,884,695 - 22,884,695 - 20

1,348,236,243 2,929,530 1,351,165,773 196,228,608 3,637,431 199,866,039 1,151,299,7342019

2020

WRITTEN
DOWN
VALUE

Amortisation
Rate

%

Additions / 
transfers

As at 
July 01, 

2019

As at 
July 01, 

2019

Charge for 
the year / 

transfers

As at 
June 30, 

2020

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION / IMPAIRMENT

As at 
June 30, 

2020

As at 
June 30, 

2020

WRITTEN
DOWN
VALUE

Amortisation
Rate

%

Additions / 
transfers

As at 
July 01, 

2018

As at 
July 01, 

2018

Charge for 
the year / 

transfers

As at 
June 30, 

2019

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION / IMPAIRMENT

As at 
June 30, 

2019

As at 
June 30, 

2019
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note
6.2 Intangible assets under development

Opening balance - -
Transfer under scheme of arrangement 1.3 824,133,020 -
Additions during the year 78,486,014 -
Closing balance 6.2.1 902,619,034 -

  These assumptions are based on industry data for growth rates, management assess how the technology 
might change over the projected period. Management expects revenues and margins to improve on the 
basis of multiple strategies planned including, greater focus on development of new databases, 
applications and solutions, and expected increase in navigation business.

  Key business assumptions

6.4 Impairment testing of goodwill and intangibles with indefinite lives

  Further, the management has carried out an annual impairment assessment for intangible assets under 
development based on the value-in-use calculations. The discount rate applied to the cashflow 
projections is 14.1 percent (2019: 23.3 percent and the growth rate used to extrapolate the cashflows 
beyond the five year period is 5 percent (2019: 4.1). As a result of this assessment, the management did 
not identify any impairment in the carrying value of intangible assets under development as of reporting 
date. 

  The calculation of value-in-use is most sensitive to the following assumptions:

  Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations

   -     Discount rates

 6.2.1 Represents expenditure incurred for development of map database including business intelligence and 
applications solutions, etc. which is expected to be completed earliest by year 2021. The Company has 
estimated that the total cost required to complete the development of these intangible assets aggregates 
to Rs. 1,620 million, out of which Rs.902.619 million has been incurred by the Company as of the reporting 
date. 

   -     Key business assumptions

  The discount rate reflects current market assessment of the rate of return required for the business and is 
calculated using the Capital Asset Pricing Model. The discount rate reflects the target Weighted Average 
Cost of Capital of the Group.

  Management believes that after considering the various scenarios no reasonably possible change in any 
of the above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the unit to materially exceed its 
recoverable amount.

  Discount rates

6.3 Amortisation expense for the year has been charged to cost of sales and services (note 36).

  Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

 Goodwill acquired through business combinations and intangibles with indefinite useful lives have been allocated 
and monitored at the Company level (tracking business - excluding non-operating assets). Intangible assets with 
indefinite useful lives include customer and marketing related intangibles assets. The Company has performed its 
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 Key assumptions used in value-in-use calculations

 Sensitivity to changes in assumptions

7. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

annual impairment test as at June 30, 2020. The recoverable amount of the Company is determined based on a 
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections from financial budgets approved by the senior management 
covering a five year period. The discount rate applied to cash flow projections is 14.1 percent (2019: 17.51 
percent). The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond the five-year period is 5 percent (2019: 4.1 
percent). As a result of this assessment, the management did not identified any impairment for the cash generating 
unit to which these assets are allocated.

 The calculation of value-in-use is most sensitive to the following assumptions:

 -  Discount rates

 -  Key business assumptions

 Discount rates

 The discount rate reflects current market assessment of the rate of return required for the business and is 
calculated using the Capital Asset Pricing Model. The discount rate reflects the Weighted Average Cost of Capital 
of the Company.

 Key business assumptions

 These assumptions are based on industry data for growth rates and management assess how the unit’s position 
might change over the projected period. Management expects revenues and margins to improve on the basis of 
multiple strategies planned including increase in vehicle tracking sales volume and greater focus on container 
tracking business.

 Management believes that after considering the various scenarios no reasonably possible change in any of the 
above key assumptions would cause the carrying value of the unit to materially exceed its recoverable amount.

 The carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognized and movement during the year is as follows:

7.1 Net carrying value basis

Reclassified from operating fixed 

5,841,494 66,076,956                        -   71,918,450
Right-of-use assets recognised on initial 

                  -                         -   241,094,788 241,094,788

4,250,732 53,853,000 82,131,716

-                       -   158,612,344 158,612,344
Closing net book value 1,590,762 42,048,972 28,629,444 72,269,178

20% 33.33% 10%

-------------------------------------------- (Rupees) -------------------------------------------- 

Depreciation rate (%)

assets on initial application of IFRS 16 
(note 5.1)

Less: Depreciation charge for the year          24,027,984 

application of IFRS 16 - note 4.6.1

Less: Derecognised during the year

Vehicles
Computers 

and 
accessories

Regional 
offices

Total
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Rupees

2020 2019

Note

7.2 Gross carrying value basis

7.3 406,359,942 -
175,478,420 -

Less: Derecognised during the year 158,612,344 -
Net book value 72,269,178 -

7.3 Included herein fully depreciated electrical devices having cost of Rs. 3.571 million.

7.4

Cost of sales and services 36 46,882,748 -
Distribution expenses 37 15,034,279 -
Administrative expenses 38 20,214,690 -

82,131,717 -

Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as 
follows:

Cost
Less: Accumulated depreciation

8. LONG-TERM INVESTMENTS

Investment in an associated company – at cost

Trakker Middle East LLC (TME) 85,030,450 85,030,450

8.1 Represents 29 percent investment of the Company in TME at a purchase cost of Rs. 85.030 million (equivalent to 
1,644 ordinary shares of AED 1,000). The book value per share amounts to AED 224.83 equivalent to Rs. 10,191.78 
based on the latest un-audited financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2020. Subsequent to the 
reporting date, the Company has acquired 21% additional shareholding in TME by virtue of which it becomes a 
subsidiary, the legal proceeding are under way to complete the transactions.

8.2 TME is a limited liability company registered in Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates. The registered office of the 
Company is at P.O. Box 52331, Abu Dhabi, United Arab Emirates. The principal activities of TME are selling, 
marketing and distribution of products and services in the field of wireless, fleet management, tracking and 
telemetry services. 

8.3 The name of Chief Executive is Asim Syed and name/addresses of beneficial owners are as follows:

Name Addresses
Al Jaber Group LLC P.O. Box #: 2175, Abu Dhabi Petroleum Service Area Plot No. 1 & 1A.

Jamal Hohd Matar Al Hai P.O. Box #: 2116, Dubai UAE

8.4 Investment in associated companies have been made in accordance with the requirement of Companies Act, 
2017.

Rupees

2020 2019

Note
9. LONG-TERM LOANS – secured, considered good

Executives 1,601,108 461,530
Employees 2,351,783 1,912,558

3,952,891 2,374,088
Less: Current portion of long-term loans 3,282,993 1,736,652

669,898 637,436

9.1 & 9.2

9.3
14
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Rupees

2020 2019

Note
9.1 Reconciliation of the carrying amount of 

   loans to executives

Opening balance 461,530 474,427
Disbursements 3,400,000 500,000
Less: Repayments / adjustments 2,260,422 512,897
Closing balance 1,601,108 461,530

9.3 The loans are provided to employees of the Company for the purchase of furniture and fixtures, renovation of 
house and marriage of self / children in accordance with the terms of employment and carrying mark up at the rate 
of 5 percent (2019: 5 percent) per annum. Further, it also includes loans provided on interest free basis amounting 
to Rs.0.803 million (2019: Rs.1.168 million). All loans are repayable over a period of two years in equal monthly 
instalments and are secured against salaries and provident fund balances of the employees. The management of 
the Company has not discounted these loans to their present value, as they considers the impact is immaterial to 
these financial statements taken as whole.

9.2 The maximum aggregate amount of loans due from the executives at the end of any month during the year was 
Rs.2.281 million (2019: Rs.0.665 million).

Rupees

2020 2019

Note
10. LONG-TERM DEPOSITS

Security deposits - leased and ijarah assets 44,726,703 44,726,704
Less: Current portion of security deposits 36,892,609 19,669,967

7,834,094 25,056,737
Utilities 177,450 177,450
Rent deposits 4,302,756 4,012,756
Cash margin against guarantees 21,639,662 17,853,482

33,953,962 47,100,42510.2

15

10.1

10.1 Represents cash margin on guarantee issued by various commercial banks on behalf of the Company.

10.2 These are non-interest bearing, generally on a term of more than a year and are neither past due nor impaired.

11. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS - NET

Deferred tax liabilities on taxable temporary 
differences:

-   accelerated tax depreciation on:
- property, plant and equipment 13,068,135 (32,353,344)

        - right of use assets (20,958,062) -
        - intangible assets (1,600,454) 597,265

(9,490,381) (31,756,079)
Deferred tax assets on deductible temporary differences:
-   trade debts 7,190,786 12,075,718
-   surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 4,096,787 5,666,341
-   lease liabilities 24,099,543 21,192,369
-   tax losses carried forward 36,903,469 -
-   minimum tax 964,544 -

73,255,129 38,934,428
63,764,748 7,178,349
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Rupees

2020 2019

Note
11.1 The movement in deferred tax assets is as follows:

- charge for deferred tax recognised due to adoption of IFRS 9 - (9,922,187)
- charge  to other comprehensive income in respect 

of surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment - 2,085,910
- transfer to unappropriated on account of incremental 

depreciation for the year 305,758 (315,860)

- reversal (net) to profit or loss 56,280,641 2,324,840
56,586,399 (5,827,297)

11.2  As of reporting date, the Company has not recognised deferred tax assets of Rs. 79.621 million on losses of Rs. 
274.556 million in line with accounting policies of the Company as stated in note 4.13 to these financial 
statements. 

Rupees

2020 2019

Note

12. STOCK-IN-TRADE

Tracking devices 228,296,492 255,515,852
Spare parts 17,925,233 10,823,805

246,221,725 266,339,657

12.1

12.2 Represents bonnet locks, window motors etc. which are held for sale.

13. TRADE DEBTS - unsecured

Related parties 

-  TPL Insurance Limited (Associate) 4,198,955 9,137,701

Other than related parties 1,043,469,856 1,342,004,730

1,047,668,811 1,351,142,431

Less: Allowances for expected credit losses 24,795,814 41,640,408

1,022,872,997 1,309,502,023

12.1

12.2

Includes stock of Rs. 15.696 million (2019: Rs.  36.822 million) held with third parties.

13.3 & 13.4

13.1

13.5

13.2

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020



80

13.1 The credit risk exposure on the Company's trade debts using provision matrix at year end is as follows:

2020

Expected credit loss rate 2.37% 8.73% 9.28%

Estimated total gross 
 carrying amount at default 1,047,668,811 113,994,466 109,038,610

Expected credit loss 24,795,814 9,952,938 10,123,467

2019

Expected credit loss rate 3.08% 13.41% 16.92%

Estimated total gross 
 carrying amount at default 1,351,142,431 86,436,819 115,598,142

Expected credit loss 41,640,408 11,591,249 19,560,459

13.3 The ageing analysis of unimpaired trade debts due from related parties is as follows:

TPL Insurance Limited - 2020 4,198,955 1,450,076 233,626

TPL Insurance Limited -2019 9,137,701 246,619 420,325

Total Current

Days past due

> 30 days upto 
120 days

0.69% 0.52%

> 121 days upto 
180 days

180 days 
and above

      579,628,968 

5,608,193 2,862,564

1,080,891 1,434,362

                       -         10,488,700 

0.00%

      269,997,344 

          1,858,119 

    569,478,502 

1.84%

    554,638,392 

        2,861,290 

Past due but not impaired

> 30 days upto 
120 days

> 121 days upto 
180 daysTotal Current

  ---------------------------------------------------- (Rupees)---------------------------------------------------------------- 

180 days 
and above

  ---------------------------------------------------- (Rupees)---------------------------------------------------------------- 

13.4 The maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year calculated by reference to month end balances are 
as follows:

Rupees

2020 2019

Note

TPL Insurance Limited 7,161,975 5,608,193

13.5 Allowance for expected credit losses

Opening balance 41,640,408 26,797,873

Adjustment due to adoption of IFRS 9 - 34,215,369

Transferred under Scheme 4,561,440 -

46,201,848 61,013,242

Add: Charge for the year - 4,150,708

Less: Reversal during the year 21,406,034 -

Less: Written off during the year - 23,523,542

Closing balance 24,795,814 41,640,408

1.3

38
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13.2 Represent amount receivable from various customers on account of sale and installation of tracking devices and 
vehicle tracking services provided by the Company. These are unsecured, interest free and generally on 30 to 60 
days terms.



Annual Report 2019-20 81

Rupees

2020 2019

Note
14. LOANS AND ADVANCES

Loans – secured, considered good

Current portion of long-term loans 3,282,993 1,736,652

Advances – unsecured, considered good

-  suppliers 104,047,093 36,633,419
-  others 504,381 1,064,955

104,551,474 37,698,374

107,834,467 39,435,026

14.1

99,000

4,065,351-

Name of the company Address 
2020 

(Rupees)

FlyAudio Corp 11 Nanxiang 3rd Road Luogang 
District Guangzhou, 510700 China

-

Traclogis Co. Ltd. 7/F Block ,80 Bldg Huanan 
Industrial Park Liaobu Town 
Dongguan

-

Howen Technologies Co. Ltd. No.201, 2/F,B Zone, Hivac 
Building, Langshan 2nd Rd, North 
Zone of Technology Park, Nan 
Shan, Shenzhen, China

-

Digicore Technologies (Pty) 
Ltd.

37,Hillclimb 
Road, Westmead, Pinetown,KZN 
3610, South Africa

Lode de Boningestraat 19, 8560 
Wevelgem, Belgium

Purchase of goods 
to be settled within 

90 days

14.1

Sportics

2019 
(Rupees)

- Purchase of goods 
to be settled within 

90 days

Purchase of goods 
to be settled within 

90 days

- 55,415

Purchase of goods 
to be settled within 

90 days

9

Terms, 
conditions and 

period

2,764,716

14.2

Purchase of goods 
to be settled within 

90 days

790,010

356,210

Includes advances paid to the following foreign companies as of June 30, 2020 and 2019:

14.2 These are non-interest bearing and generally on an average term of 1 to 6 months.
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Rupees

2020 2019

Note
15. TRADE DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Trade deposits
-  security deposits 1,767,720 1,311,220
-  LC margin 377,546 1,262,546
-  current portion of leased and ijarah deposits 10 36,892,609 19,669,967
-  others 711,516 711,516

15.1 39,749,391 22,955,249
Prepayments
-  insurance 3,889,737 8,961,989
-  fees for services 10,497,893 796,034
-  maintenance 15.2 7,357,925 10,961,009

21,745,555 20,719,032
61,494,946 43,674,281

16. INTEREST ACCRUED - unsecured, considered good

Mark-up accrued on due from related parties
   Ultimate parent company

   -  TPL Holdings (Private) Limited 66,313,202 -

Parent company
   -  TPL Corp Limited 32,713,172 -

Associates
   -  TPL Security Services (Private) Limited             4,326,421 4,326,421
   -  Trakker Middle East LLC 9,218,594 3,739,729
   -  Trakker Direct Finance (Private) Limited 1,100,644 967,884
   -  TRG Pakistan Limited 6,447,351 5,201,813
   -  TPL Life Insurance Limited - 4,041,936
   -  TPL Maps (Pvt.) Limited 1.3 - 47,681,090
   -  TPL Tech Pakistan (Private) Limited 6,622,491 1,225,293
   -  TPL Properties Limited 1,702,759 260,868
   -  TPL Rupiya (Private) Limited 1.3 - 5,609,216

128,444,634 73,054,250

17. OTHER RECEIVABLES – unsecured, considered good

Earnest money 7,715,044 9,330,919
Insurance claims 3,491,229 3,469,853
Others 17.1 18,133,269 1,133,270

17.2 29,339,542 13,934,042

15.2 Included herein maintenance charges of Rs 6.092 million (2019: Rs. 7.762 million) paid to TPL Properties Limited, a 
related party [previously Centrepoint Management Services (Private) Limited].

15.1 These are non-interest bearing and generally on an average term of 1 to 6 months.

17.2 These are non-interest bearing receivables which are neither past due nor impaired, and generally on an average 
term of 1 to 6 months.

17.1 Included herein Rs. 17.0 million receivable on account of disposal of property, plant and equipment (see note 5.2).
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Rupees

2020 2019

Note
18. DUE FROM RELATED PARTIES – unsecured, 

    considered good

   Ultimate parent company

   -  TPL Holdings (Private) Limited 32.1 433,701,979 -

Parent company
   -  TPL Corp Limited 18.1 519,635,427 -

Associates
   -  TPL Security Services (Private) Limited [TSS] 16,500,068 17,127,565
   -  TPL Properties Limited [TPLP] 18.1 5,700,233 4,287,788
   -  TPL Life Insurance Limited [TPL Life] 18.1 - 12,340,377
   -  Trakker Middle East LLC [TME] 18.1 46,715,880 21,839,006
   -  TPL Maps (Pvt.) Limited [TPLM] 1.3 - 449,080,307
   -  Trakker Direct Finance (Private) Limited [TPLD] 18.1 850,070 802,100
   -  TPL Rupiya (Private) Limited [TPLR] 1.3 - 41,416,232
   -  TRG Pakistan Limited [TRG] 18.1 7,616,233 7,616,233
   -  TPL Tech Pakistan (Private) Limited [TPL Tech] 18.1 40,964,168 21,780,890

18.2 1,071,684,058 576,290,498

   Ultimate parent company
   -  TPL Holdings (Private) Limited        515,803,554                         -   

Parent company

   -  TPL Corp Limited        589,529,961                         -   

Associated companies

   -  TPL Security Services (Private) Limited                  25,409,701        103,066,983 

   -  TPL Properties  Limited          16,506,311          17,486,098 

   -  TPL Life Insurance Limited                         -            60,673,127 

   -  Trakker Middle East LLC          46,715,880          21,839,006 

   -  TPL Maps (Pvt.) Limited                         -          449,080,307 

   -  Trakker Direct Finance (Private) Limited               850,070               802,100 

   -  TPL Logistics (Private) Limited                         -              1,951,600 

   -  TPL Rupiya (Private) Limited                         -            54,678,700 

   -  TRG Pakistan Limited            7,616,233            7,616,233 

   -  TPL Tech Pakistan (Private) Limited          40,964,168          21,780,891 

18.1 Represents current account balances with related parties carrying mark-up at the variable rate of 3 months to 6 
months KIBOR plus 3 percent (2019: 3 months to 6 months KIBOR plus 3 percent) per annum and are repayable on 
demand.

18.2 These are neither past due nor impaired.

18.3 The maximum amount outstanding at any time during the year calculated by reference to month end balances are 
as follows:
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Rupees

2020 2019

Note
19. TAXATION - net

Opening balance  - refundable 42,478,304 13,262,192
Less: Adjustment due to adoption of IFRS 9 - (10,185,400)
Less: Income tax payable under the Scheme 1.3 (807,373) -
Less: Provision for current and prior taxation 42 (45,602,164) (32,500,807)
Add: Income tax paid and deducted at source 36,081,204 71,902,319
Less: Refund received during the year (45,835,026) -
Closing balance - (payable) / refundable (13,685,055) 42,478,304

20. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Cash in hand 176,141 178,799

At banks in local currency:
 - current accounts 19,044,314 19,651,221
 - saving accounts 833 796

19,045,147 19,652,017
19,221,288 19,830,816

20.1 These carry mark-up at the rate of 7.65 percent (2019: 10.25 percent) per annum.

21. ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP CAPITAL

Ordinary shares of Rs.10/- each
10  -  issued for cash 100 100

 -  issued for consideration 
other than cash

60,177,126 - opening balance 21.1 929,262,420 601,771,260
8,503,045 - issued during the year 21.2 - 85,030,450

68,680,171 929,262,420 686,801,710
24,246,071  -  issued as bonus share 21.4 275,163,410 242,460,710

    92,926,252 1,204,425,930        929,262,520 

    92,926,252 
    27,516,341 

  120,442,593 

                  10 

Number of shares

    92,926,242 
                   -   

2020 2019

21.1 During the year ended June 30, 2018, TPL Corp Limited (the parent company) has transferred net assets of Rs. 
601.771 million related to its Tracking business to the Company with effect from July 01, 2017 under the Scheme 
of Arrangement (the Scheme) sanctioned / approved by Honourable High Court of Sindh vide its order No. J.C.M. 
Petition No. 48 of 2016 dated November 17, 2017, in consideration for ordinary shares of the Company.

21.3 As disclosed in note 1.3 to these financial statements, pursuant to the Scheme duly approved by the Board of 
Directors of the Company, whereby TPLM and TPLR were amalgamated into the Company by way of transfer of 
net assets as of July 01, 2019 against no consideration in cash or otherwise. Consequently, a reserve arises as a 
result of Scheme of Rs.421.98 million was created which was classified as capital reserve under the Companies 
Act, 2017.

21.2 During the year ended June 30, 2019, the Company has acquired 29 percent investment in TME at a purchase 
cost of Rs. 85.030 million (equivalent to 1,644 ordinary shares of AED 1,000) from TPL Corp Limited (the parent 
company) in consideration of issuance of 8,503,045 ordinary shares of the Company to the parent company.
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

22. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT 
AND EQUIPMENT

Opening balance;
Leasehold land 218,875,035
Building on leasehold land 13,293,853

232,168,888
(Deficit) / surplus on revaluation recognised / 

(reversed on disposal) during the year:
Leasehold land 322,350,000
Building on leasehold land 7,192,792

329,542,792
Transfer to unappropriated profit on account of
   incremental depreciation charged for the year (773,312)

Deferred tax:
- on account of surplus on revaluation of building on leasehold land - net (5,982,201)
- impact of deferred tax on incremental depreciation charged for the year 315,860

(5,666,341)

       555,272,027 

       541,225,035 
         19,713,333 
       560,938,368 

      (266,594,744)
          (4,357,916)

      (270,952,660)

          (1,456,708)

          (4,402,545)
305,758

          (4,096,787)

       284,432,213 

21.5 These are ordinary shares which carry one vote per share and right to dividend.

21.4 During the year, the Company has issued 27.516 million ordinary shares (i.e. 2.96 shares for every 10 shares held) 
out of reserves as disclosed in note 21.3 to these financial statements.

23. LONG-TERM FINANCING – secured

Project finance - 44,642,833
Sukuk financing        450,000,000 600,000,000
Diminishing musharaka          47,450,437 -

       497,450,437        644,642,833 
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities        104,186,803 344,642,833

       393,263,634 300,000,000
31

23.1
23.2
23.3

23.2 Represents Sukuk certificates issued of Rs. 600 million divided into 600 certificates of Rs.1 million each for a period 
of 5 years under an agreement dated April 08, 2016 to be read with amendment agreement for Green Shoe Option 
dated May 08, 2016 and second supplemental agreement dated Jun 30, 2020. The said certificates are 
redeemable in periodic installments by April 2022 i.e. redemption date. The rate for rental payment is 1 year KIBOR 
plus 3 percent (2019: 1 year KIBOR plus 3 percent). These certificates are secured against pledge of 55 million 
ordinary shares of TPL Properties Limited owned by TPL Corp Limited (the parent company), charge by way of 
hypothecation of Rs. 750 million (inclusive of 20% margin) over the hypothecated assets in favour of the trustee 
and a ranking charge ranking subordinate and subservient to the charge in favour of the existing creditors.

23.1 During the year, the Company has repaid in full project financing facility of US Dollars 3.5 million (equivalent to 
Rs.367.663 million) obtained from Overseas Private Investment Corporation (a foreign financial institution) through 
an agreement dated November 27, 2013 for a period of 5 years. It carries mark-up at the rate of 5 year United States 
Treasury Rate plus 3.75 percent (i.e. 5.12 percent) per annum and the Company was liable to pay maintenance fee 
of US Dollars 7,500 per annum in arrears. Accordingly, the pledge on 35 million ordinary shares and charge on 
saving account as security for financing was released.
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

23.3 Represents diminishing musharaka facility to finance the purchase of computer servers and related accessories 
aggregating to Rs 58.615 million from an Islamic bank for a period of 5 years (after deferment of 1 year) (2019: 4 
years) and carries mark-up at the rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 2 percent per annum. The musharaka units are to be 
purchased by January 2024. The facility is secured by exclusive charge over the diminishing musharaka assets, 
first charge over all present and future current and fixed assets of the Company and corporate guarantee of TPL 
Corp Limited (the parent Company).

Rupees

2020 2019

Note
24. LEASE LIABILITIES

Current maturity of lease liabilities          56,682,850          20,932,496 
Non current maturity of lease liabilities          26,419,021          52,145,571 

         83,101,871          73,078,067 

24.1 Reconciliation of total lease liabilities:

Opening balance 73,078,067 3,823,435
Lease liabilities due to initial application

of IFRS 16 - note 4.6 241,031,868 -
Additions for the year - net - 76,183,457
Interest expense for the year 40 33,675,087 2,247,505
Payments / adjustments made during the year (90,639,000) (9,176,330)
Cancellation (174,044,151) -
Closing balance 83,101,871 73,078,067

The following are the amounts recognised in statement of profit or loss in respect of leases: 

Depreciation expense of right-of-use assets 7.1 82,131,716 -

Interest expense on lease liabilities 40 33,675,087 2,247,505
Total amount recognised in statement of profit or loss 115,806,803 2,247,505

24.3 The Company had total cash outflows for leases of Rs. 90.639 million (2019: Rs. 9.176 million) as of reporting date. 
The Company also had non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of Rs. 241.031 million (2019: 
Rs. 71.918 million). The Company do not have any future cashflows relating to leases other than as disclosed in 
these financial statements.

24.2 The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is presented in note 43.4 to these financial statements.
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note
25. LONG-TERM LOANS

Term finance I 25.1 - 12,500,000
Term finance II 25.2 33,333,337 58,333,333
Term finance III 25.3 - 15,277,777
Term finance IV 25.4 16,250,000 32,500,000
Term finance V 25.5 16,769,782 62,857,143
Term finance VI 25.6 166,666,667 229,166,667
Term finance VII 25.7 37,000,000 -
Term finance VIII 25.8 57,900,009 -

327,919,795 410,634,920
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities 31 100,471,489 261,746,030

227,448,306 148,888,890

25.4 The term finance facility of Rs. 65 million was obtained for a period of three years from a commercial bank through 
an agreement dated March 02, 2017. The loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments of Rs.1.8 million latest 
by November, 2021 (after deferment of 1 year). It carries mark-up at the rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 3 percent per 
annum and is secured against first pari passu hypothecation charge over the Company's book debts of Rs. 100 
million, first pari passu hypothecation charge over current assets of the Company of Rs. 70 million, first pari passu 
hypothecation charge over the fixed assets of the Company of Rs. 70 million and pledge of the shares of TPL 
Insurance Limited and TPL Properties Limited (related parties) owned by TPL Corp Limited (parent company), first 
exclusive charge over shares amounting to Rs. 429.07 million duly registered with 50 percent margin. 

25.6 The term finance facility of Rs. 250 million for a period of three years from a commercial bank through an 
agreement dated December 24, 2018. The loan is repayable in 12 equal quarterly instalments of Rs. 20.833 million 
latest by December, 2022 (after deferment of 1 year).It carries mark-up at the rate of 1 month KIBOR plus 2.50 
percent per annum. The facility is secured against first pari passu charge over current assets (receivables only) of 
the Company to the extent of Rs. 266 million and first pari passu charge over the fixed assets of the Company of Rs. 
266 million and pledge of the shares of TPL Insurance Limited and TPL Properties Limited (related parties) owned 
by TPL Corp Limited (parent company), first exclusive charge over shares amounting to Rs. 429.07 million duly 
registered with 50 percent margin. 

25.1 During the year, the Company has repaid outstanding balance of term finance facility of Rs. 37.5 million obtained 
from a commercial bank in last years under an agreement dated January 26, 2017. It was carrying a mark-up at the 
rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 2.1 percent per annum. 

25.3 During the year, the Company has repaid the outstanding balance of term finance of Rs. 50 million obtained from a 
commercial bank in last years under an agreement dated March 13, 2017. It was carrying mark-up at the rate of 1 
month KIBOR plus 3 percent per annum.

25.5 The term finance facility of Rs. 200 million was obtained for a period of three years from a commercial bank through 
an agreement dated May 09, 2017. The loan is repayable in 36 equal monthly instalments of Rs. 5.556 million latest 
by May, 2021 (after deferment of 1 year) . It carries mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 1.75 percent (2019: 
1 month KIBOR plus 2.5 percent) per annum. The facility is secured against specific charge of Rs. 300 million over 
tracking devices owned by the Company and assignment of receivables from customers and personal guarantee 
of directors of the parent company. 

25.2 The term finance facility of Rs. 100 million was obtained for a period of three years from a commercial bank through 
an agreement dated November 27, 2017. The said loan is to be paid in equal quarterly instalments of Rs. 8.3 million 
each from the date of disbursement. It carries mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 2.1 percent per annum. 
The facility is secured against first charge over land and building of the Company to the extent of Rs.216 million 
with 40% margin, personal guarantee of directors and cross corporate guarantee of the parent company.
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note
26 GOVERNMENT GRANT

Recognised during the year 6,906,820 -
(2,416,771) -

As at June 30, 2020 4,490,049 -

Current portion 2,709,041 -
Non-current portion shown under current liabilities 1,781,008 -

4,490,049 -

27. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

Creditors 27.1 323,830,051 391,430,342
Accrued liabilities 144,069,477 135,119,814
Unearned equipment rentals 95,741,350 144,130,666
Book overdraft 115,000,000 -
Other liabilities

Sales commission 4,055,767 4,036,412
Sales tax 46,282,751 29,808,192
Withholding tax 142,560,908 15,357,214
Workers’ Welfare Fund 2,638,267 2,638,267
Provident fund 59,985,137 26,746,362
Others 27.2 1,661,798 1,661,793

257,184,628 80,248,240
27.3 935,825,506 750,929,062

Released to statement of profit or loss

25.8 During the year, the Company and the parent company (TPL Corp Limited) has obtained long-term financing from 
a commercial bank of Rs. 150 million under Refinance Scheme for payment of Wages & Salaries by State Bank of 
Pakistan. Out of total facility limit, Rs. 64.81 million was availed by the Company and Rs. 34.21 was availed by the 
parent company. It carries a flat mark-up at the rate of 3 percent per annum and is repayable in 8 quarterly 
installments commencing from January 2021 discounted at effective rate of interest of 11.5 percent per annum. 
The differential mark-up has been recognised as government grant (see note 26 to these financial statements) 
which will be amortised to interest income over the period of the facility. The facility is secured against existing 
charge over TPL Trakker Limited's current assets, fixed assets and pledge of shares of TPL Insurance Limited & 
TPL Properties Limited. As of the reporting date, Rs. 32.58 million for the Company and Rs. 18.40 million for the 
parent company remains unutilized.

25.7 The term finance facility of Rs. 37 million for a period of five years from a commercial bank through an agreement 
dated August 27, 2019. The loan is repayable in 18 equal quarterly instalments of Rs. 2.05 million each and carries 
mark-up at the rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 2.50 percent per annum. The facility is secured against first pari passu 
equitable mortgage charge of Rs. 71 million over land and building of the Company and personal guarantees of 
directors / sponsors of the Company.

27.3 These are non-interest bearing and generally on a term of 1 to 6 months except for creditors which are on a credit 
term of 30 days.

27.1 Included herein Rs.22.768 million (2019: Rs. 55.973 million) payable to TPL Properties Limited, a related party on 
account of rental, maintenance and other services.

27.2 Includes stale cheques amounting to Rs. 1.647 million (2019: Rs.1.647 million).
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note
28. ACCRUED MARK-UP

Long-term financing 12,669,002 19,977,752
Long-term loans 26,845,199 14,906,627
Running finance under mark-up arrangement 37,657,843 31,258,030
Short-term financing 12,556,580 -
Due to related parties 50,333,147 1,958,042

140,061,771 68,100,451

29. SHORT-TERM FINANCING

29.1 170,665,871 12,737,305
Commercial Papers (CP) 29.2 1,223,503,302 -

1,394,169,173 12,737,305

Payable against LCs

 These facilities are obtained from various commercial banks having an aggregate limit of Rs. 1,112.5 million (2019: 
Rs. 1,012.5 million) out of which Rs. 7.31 million (2019: Rs. 34.47 million) was un-utilised as of the reporting date. 
The facilities carry mark-up ranging between 1 month KIBOR plus 2 percent to 3 percent and 3 months KIBOR plus 
1.5 percent to 3 percent (2019: 3 months KIBOR plus 1 percent to 2.5 percent) per annum. These are secured by 
way of registered hypothecation over stocks and book debts aggregating to Rs. 1,356 million (2019: Rs.759 
million) and pledge of the shares of TPL Insurance Limited and TPL Properties Limited (related parties) owned by 
TPL Corp Limited (parent company), first exclusive charge over shares amounting to Rs. 429.07 million duly 
registered with 50 percent margin. (2019: 18.4 million ordinary shares of TPL Insurance Limited) and equitable first 
pari passu charge over property to the extent of Rs. 385 million (2019: Rs. 809 million) and Rs.115 million on fixed 
assets (2019: Nil).

29.1 Represents LCs facilities obtained by the Company from various commercial banks having an aggregate limit of 
Rs. 210 million (2019: Rs.210 million). It carries mark-up ranging from 3 months KIBOR plus 2.5 percent to 3.5 
percent and 1 month KIBOR plus 3 percent per annum and is secured against first pari passu hypothecation 
charge of Rs. 866 million (2019: Rs.866 million) over all present and future stocks, book debts and fixed assets 
excluding land and buildings of the Company with cash margins ranging from 5 percent to 15 percent. As of the 
reporting date, Rs. 39.33 million (2019: Rs.197.26 million) remains unutilized.

29.2 Represents subscription money received from various investors against privately placed Commercial Paper units 
amounting to Rs. 1,140 million having face value of Rs. 1,000,000 each issued at a discounted value of Rs. 0.927 
million calculated using a rate equivalent to 6 months KIBOR plus 2.50 percent over the period of 1 year. 
Subsequent to the reporting date, the Company has redeemed Rs. 736.58 million (736 units), while the remaining 
units will be redeemed latest by January 2021 (after deferment of 6 months).

30. RUNNING FINANCE UNDER MARK-UP ARRANGEMENTS

Rupees

2020 2019

Note

31. CURRENT PORTION OF NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES 

Long-term financing 23        104,186,803 344,642,833
24          56,682,850 20,932,496

Long-term loans 25        100,471,489 261,746,030
Government grant 26            2,709,041 -

       264,050,183 627,321,359

Lease liabilities
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note
32. DUE TO RELATED PARTIES - unsecured

TPL Holdings (Private) Limited 
(the ultimate parent company) [TPLH] 32.1                         -   101,751,929

TPL Corp Limited (the parent company) [TPL Corp]                         -   411,504,033
TPL Insurance Limited (an associated company) [TIL] 32.2          42,090,007 156,863,738
TPL Life Insurance Limited (an associated company) [TPL Life] 32.3            5,682,956 -

         47,772,963 670,119,700

32.2 Included herein current account balance of Rs.17.09 million (2019: Rs. 16.864 million) carrying mark-up at the 
variable rate of 3 months KIBOR plus 3 percent per annum and is repayable on demand. Further, it also includes 
outstanding loan of Rs. 25 million having facility limit of Rs. 200 million (2019: Rs. 200 million) carrying mark-up at 
the rate of 1 year KIBOR plus 3.5 percent per annum and is repayable on demand.

32.3 Represents current account balance with related party carrying mark-up at the variable rate of 6 months KIBOR 
plus 3 percent (2019: 6 months KIBOR plus 3 percent) per annum and is repayable on demand.

32.1 Represents current account balance carrying mark-up at the fixed rate of 18 percent per annum and is repayable 
on demand.

Rupees

2020 2019

Note
33. ADVANCE MONITORING FEES

Opening balance 46,651,699 37,463,676
Billed during the year 405,472,734 440,420,122
Less: Transferred to revenue during the year 414,984,271 431,232,099
Closing balance 33.1 37,140,162 46,651,699

33.1

34. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

34.1 Contingencies

34.1.1 Guarantees issued by banks on behalf of the Company         21,639,662         22,853,482 

Represents monitoring fee invoiced in advance, which is taken to revenue as per the appropriate monitoring period.

 34.1.2 The Company is defending various suits filed against it in various courts in Pakistan for sums, aggregating 
to Rs. 20.289 (2019: 20.289 million), related to its business operations. The legal counsel is confident that 
these suits are expected to be decided in the favor of the Company and, accordingly, no provision has 
been made for any liability against these law suits in these financial statements. Details of these legal 
cases are given below:

Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020



Annual Report 2019-20 91

Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Not later than one year 2,076,870 7,954,024
Later than one year but not later than five years - 1,707,935

2,076,870 9,661,959

Rupees

2020 2019

Note
34.2 Commitments

34.2.1 Letter of credits 170,665,871 12,737,305

 The Company has various ijarah agreements with various financial institutions in respect of purchase of 
vehicles and office equipment for a period upto three years. As of reporting date, total ijarah payments 
due under the agreements are Rs. 2.077 million (2019: Rs.9.662 million) and are payable in monthly 
instalments latest by March 2021. Taxes and repairs are to be borne by the Company (lessee), however, 
major repairs and insurance costs are to be borne by the lessors. These payments are secured against 
promissory notes in favor of the lessors for the entire amount of the ijarah rentals and security deposits of 
Rs. 1.77 million (2019: Rs.10.19 million). Future minimal rentals payable under ijarah agreements as at 
reporting date are as follows: 

 34.2.2 Ijarah agreements

35. TURNOVER - net

Tracking and other digital business
Equipment installation and sales 259,429,013 400,534,318
Monitoring fees 495,906,204 517,114,413
Rentals from tracking devices 1,007,465,630 1,122,407,127
Navigation revenue 1.3 45,586,868 -
E- ticketing services 1.3 4,606,154 -
Other services 19,024,662 26,004,506

1,832,018,531 2,066,060,364
Less: Sales tax 226,782,580 294,195,769

35.1 1,605,235,951 1,771,864,595

Court
Date of 

institution
Party

High Court 
of Sindh

April 01, 2011 Geofizyka Krakow 
Limited vs TPL 
Trakker Limited

District and 
Session 

Court (East)

April 08, 2013 Muhammad Aziz 
Khan vs TPL 

Trakker Limited

District and 
Session 

Court 

(West)

October 29, 
2015

Ahmed Shah vs 
TPL Trakker Limited

Dispute arising on the 
reimbursement on 
return of tracking 

device and un-utilised 
monitoring charges

Reimbursement of Rs.10.929 million 
being the price paid for the equipment 
in respect of returned units and un-
utilised monitoring charges

Recovery of Rs. 1.350 million being 
the cost of the car and Rs.1 million as 
damages

Dispute arising due to 
the non-functionality of 

tracking device 

Dispute arising due to 
the non-functionality of 

tracking device 

Recovery of damages and 
compensation of Rs.7.010 million

Relief SoughtFactual Description

35.1 Included herein revenue recognized during the year of Rs.240.18 million (2019 : Rs. 227.62 million) made to related 
parties.
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Rupees

2020 2019

Note

37. DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 37.1         98,510,975 72,074,038
Outsourcing expenses         24,444,134 28,539,901
Commission         63,579,649 56,170,931
Vehicle running and maintenance         13,072,865 7,118,701
Depreciation 5.1.1         43,988,685 39,447,975
Depreciation on ROUA 7.4         15,034,279 -
Sales promotion and publicity         20,824,711 34,009,700
Utilities           5,931,816 4,504,988
Rent, rates and taxes           8,868,188 11,744,483
Postage and courier           8,818,961 6,019,158
Printing and stationery           1,425,872 1,302,482
Communication           1,609,598 1,827,556
Travelling and conveyance 6,599,091 15,759,797
Insurance           3,684,642 4,686,283
Newspapers and periodicals              529,200 406,342
Computer expenses           7,423,455 2,840,966

      324,346,121       286,453,301 

36. COST OF SALES AND SERVICES

Cost of equipment sold
Opening stock 266,339,657 325,837,835
Purchases during the year 157,620,662 245,619,565

423,960,319 571,457,400
Less: Units transferred to operating fixed assets given
            under rental arrangements (72,097,988) (200,527,470)

Less: Closing stock 12 (246,221,725) (266,339,657)
105,640,606 104,590,273

Salaries, wages and other benefits 36.1 307,195,656 235,277,665
Activation and connection charges 187,932,165 177,987,817
Insurance 11,489,815 14,613,661
Vehicle running and maintenance 40,766,295 22,663,848
Depreciation 5.1.1 137,173,881 123,286,353
Depreciation on ROUA 7.4 46,882,748 -
Amortisation 6.1 45,282,814 3,637,431
License renewal fee 4,257,192 3,663,992
Communication 5,019,355 5,699,034
Travelling and conveyance 20,578,542 16,163,448
Utilities 18,497,716 14,048,312
Rent, rates and taxes 27,654,470 36,623,880
Computer expenses 23,149,231 8,859,236

875,879,880 662,524,677
981,520,486 767,114,950

36.1 These include Rs. 17.559 million (2019: Rs.14.350 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits (provident fund 
contribution).

37.1 These include Rs. 5.631 million (2019: Rs. 4.602 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits (provident fund 
contribution).
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Rupees

2020 2019

Note
38. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 38.1       132,455,225 101,445,953
Legal and professional         19,628,704 24,946,262
Depreciation 5.1.1         59,146,010 53,589,306
Depreciation on ROUA 7.4         20,214,690 -
(Reversal) / charge of allowances for expected credit losses (21,406,034) 4,150,708
Utilities           7,975,762 6,057,287
Rent, rates and taxes         11,923,928 15,726,843
Travelling and conveyance 24,717,443 6,969,282
Repairs and maintenance         24,346,992 23,443,909
Security service         18,012,639 16,979,805
Vehicle running and maintenance         17,577,425 9,571,615
Computer expenses           9,981,380 3,819,885
Communication           2,164,223 2,457,284
Late payment surcharge         20,391,430 -
Training           1,070,919 1,595,285
Auditors' remuneration 38.2           4,466,110 3,390,000
Insurance           4,954,098 6,301,052
Entertainment         22,091,603 17,535,425
Printing and stationery           1,917,190 1,751,283
Postage and courier         11,857,740 8,093,198
Donations - 4,355,499
Ijarah rentals           8,152,647 47,851,903
Subscription              825,000 428,594
Others         12,313,394 7,849,506

414,778,518 368,309,884

38.2 Auditors' remuneration

Audit fee – standalone 2,075,000 1,725,000
Review fee – standalone 738,400 -
Other assurance services 1,500,000 1,500,000
Out of pocket expenses 152,710 165,000

4,466,110 3,390,000

39. OTHER EXPENSES

Workers' Welfare Fund - 869,110
Exchange loss – net - 29,953,692

- 30,822,802

38.1 These include Rs. 7.571 million (2019: Rs. 6.187 million) in respect of staff retirement benefits (provident fund 
contribution).

38.3 Recipients of donations do not include any donee in which a director or spouse had any interest.

38.4 Investments out of provident fund have been made in accordance with the provisions of Section 218 of the 
Companies Act, 2017, and the conditions specified thereunder.
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

40. FINANCE COSTS

Mark-up on:
   -  long-term financing           77,011,640 69,940,826
   -  lease liabilities 24           33,675,088 2,247,505
   -  long-term loans           83,607,181 63,972,427
   -  short-term financing           99,367,589 5,968,965
   -  running finance under mark-up arrangements         164,285,989 105,666,546
   -  due to related parties           54,375,256 61,599,299
Bank and other charges             2,994,461 563,598

        515,317,204          309,959,166 

41. OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets:
Interest income on loan given to employees 198,805 39,407
Income on term deposit receipts - 5,856,437
Mark-up on saving accounts - 796

198,805 5,896,640
Income from related parties:
Mark-up on current account 114,680,669 48,978,856
Other service income 20,473,730 -

135,154,399 48,978,856
        135,353,204            54,875,496 

Income from assets other than financial assets:
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment - net 5.2 344,817 3,034,752
Gain on cancellation / modification of lease 15,431,807 -
Amortisation of government grant 2,416,771 -
Exchange gain - net 639,152 -
Others 7,039,000 3,573,849

25,871,546 6,608,601

161,224,750 61,484,097

42. TAXATION

Current (51,776,067) 34,264,137
Prior 6,173,903 (1,763,330)
Deferred 11.1 56,586,399 2,324,840

10,984,235 34,825,647

42.1 The returns of the total income of the Company have been filed for and upto tax year 2019 which are considered 
as deemed assessments.
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note
42.2 Relationship between accounting profit and tax expense 

(Loss) / profit before taxation        (469,501,628) 70,688,589

Applicable tax rate 29% 29%

Tax at the above rate - 20,499,691
Prior year tax 6,173,903 -
Tax effect of income subject to lower tax rate 4,810,332 14,325,956
Tax expense for the year (10,984,235) 34,825,647

Effective tax rate - 49.27%

43.1

Financial assets 
(at amortised cost)

Long-term Investments                        -                         -                          -                          -           85,030,450           85,030,450           85,030,450 
Loans            2,605,332             544,480            3,149,812               677,661             125,418                803,079             3,952,891 
Long-term deposits                        -                         -                          -           33,953,962           33,953,962           33,953,962 
Trade debts                        -                         -                          -       1,047,668,811                       -        1,047,668,811      1,047,668,811 
Trade deposits                        -                         -                          -            39,749,391                       -             39,749,391           39,749,391 
Interest accrued                        -                         -                          -          128,444,634                       -           128,444,634         128,444,634 
Other receivables                        -                         -                          -            29,339,542                       -             29,339,542           29,339,542 
Due from related parties     1,071,684,058                       -       1,071,684,058                        -                         -                           -        1,071,684,058 
Cash and bank balances                     833                       -                       833          19,220,455                       -             19,220,455           19,221,288 
2020     1,074,290,223             544,480     1,074,834,703     1,265,100,494       119,109,830      1,384,210,324      2,459,045,027 

Financial liabilities 
(at amortised cost)

Long-term financings        104,186,803       393,263,634        497,450,437                        -                         -                           -           497,450,437 
Lease liabilities          56,682,850         26,419,021          83,101,871                        -                         -                           -             83,101,871 

Long-term loans        100,471,489       227,448,306        327,919,795                        -                         -                           -           327,919,795 

Trade and other payables                        -                         -                          -          455,617,093                       -           455,617,093         455,617,093 
Accrued mark-up                        -                         -                          -          140,061,771                       -           140,061,771         140,061,771 
Short term financing     1,394,169,173                       -       1,394,169,173                        -                         -                           -        1,394,169,173 
Running finance under                       -   

 mark-up arrangements     1,105,194,287     1,105,194,287                        -                         -                           -        1,105,194,287 
Due to related parties          47,772,963                       -            47,772,963                        -                         -                           -             47,772,963 
2020     2,808,477,565       647,130,961     3,455,608,526        595,678,864                       -           595,678,864      4,051,287,390 

Total

-------------------------------------------------- (Rupees  ) -------------------------------------------------- 

Financial assets and liabilities by category and their respective maturities are as follows:

Interest bearing Non-Interest bearing

Total
Maturity upto 

one year

Maturity after 
one year but 
less than five 

years Total
Maturity upto 

one year

Maturity after 
one year but 
less than five 

years

43. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

 The Company finances its operations through equity, borrowings and management of working capital with a view 
of maintaining and appropriate mix between various sources of finance to minimize risks. Taken as a whole, the 
Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk, and liquidity risk. No changes were made in the objectives, policies 
or processes and assumptions during the year ended June 30, 2020. The policies for managing each of these risks 
are summarised below:
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Financial assets 
(at amortised cost)

Long-term Investments                        -                         -                          -                          -           85,030,450           85,030,450           85,030,450 

Loans            1,736,652             637,436            2,374,088                        -                         -                           -               2,374,088 
Long term deposits                        -                         -                          -           47,100,425           47,100,425           47,100,425 
Trade debts                        -                         -                          -       1,351,142,431                       -        1,351,142,431      1,351,142,431 
Trade deposits          22,955,249           22,955,249           22,955,249 
Interest accrued                        -                         -                          -   128,444,634                       -           128,444,634         128,444,634 
Other receivables                        -                         -                          -            13,934,042                       -             13,934,042           13,934,042 
Due from related parties        576,290,498        576,290,498                        -                         -                           -           576,290,498 
Cash and bank balances                     796                       -                       796          19,830,020                       -             19,830,020           19,830,816 
2019        578,027,947             637,436        578,665,383     1,536,306,376       132,130,875      1,668,437,251      2,247,102,633 

Financial liabilities 
(at amortised cost)

Long-term financings        344,642,833       300,000,000        644,642,833                        -                         -                           -           644,642,833 
Lease liabilities          20,932,496         52,145,571          73,078,067                        -                         -                           -             73,078,067 
Long-term loans        261,746,030       148,888,890        410,634,920         410,634,920 
Trade and other payables                        -                         -                          -          507,343,554                       -           507,343,554         507,343,554 
Accrued mark-up                        -                         -                          -            68,100,451                       -             68,100,451           68,100,451 
Short term financing          12,737,305                       -            12,737,305                        -                         -                           -             12,737,305 
Running finance under                        -   

 mark-up arrangements        988,025,014                       -          988,025,014                        -                         -                           -           988,025,014 
Due to related parties        258,615,667                       -          258,615,667        411,504,033                       -           411,504,033         670,119,700 
2019     1,886,699,345       501,034,461     2,387,733,806        986,948,038                       -           986,948,038      3,374,681,844 

Total
-------------------------------------------------- (Rupees  ) -------------------------------------------------- 

Interest bearing Non-Interest bearing

Total
Maturity upto 

one year
Maturity after 

one year Total
Maturity upto 

one year
Maturity after 

one year

43.2 Market risk

 The carrying values of all financial assets and liabilities reflected in these financial statements approximate their fair 
values.

 Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, currency risk and other price 
risk. The sensitivity analyses in the following sections relate to the position as at June 30, 2020.

 The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, with all 
other variables held constant, on the Company’s (loss) / profit before tax (through impact on floating rate 
borrowings). There is no direct impact on Company’s equity. This analysis excludes the impact of 
movement in market variables on the carrying values of provisions and on non-financial assets and 
liabilities of the Company. 

 43.2.2 Interest rate sensitivity

 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate 
because of changes in market interest rates. The Company's exposure to the risk of changes in market 
interest rates relates primarily to the Company's long-term and short-term financing arrangements at 
floating interest rates to meet its business operations and working capital requirements.

 43.2.1 Interest rate risk
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(Rupees) 

2020 +100          34,600,986 

-100         (34,600,986)

2019 +100         (23,430,910)
-100          23,430,910 

2020 2019 2020 2019

 USD USD
Assets
Advances

Liabilities
Long-term financing
Trade creditors

The exchange rates applied during the year and at year end were as follows:

2020 2019 2020 2019

US Dollar

(Increase) / 
decrease in 
basis points

Average rate 

-----------Rupees-----------

 Spot rate  

-----------Rupees-----------

Effect on (loss) 
/ profit before 

tax

-------- Equivalent Rupees -------- 

                25,898 

                       -   
            (399,962)
            (399,962)
            (374,064)

150.06

                24,713 

            (278,282)
            (319,550)
            (597,832)
            (573,118)

156.95

             4,009,936 

                         -   
         (61,927,631)
         (61,927,631)
         (57,917,695)

154.83

           4,065,351 

        (45,777,389)
        (52,565,941)
        (98,343,330)
        (94,277,979)

164.50

 43.2.3 Currency risk

 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 
because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign 
currency exchange rates primarily relates to the Company’s long-term financing arrangements and 
operating activities. The Company manages its currency risk by effective fund management and timely 
repayment of its current liabilities. The Company, however, has not hedged its foreign currency liabilities 
as the management has assessed that it will not be cost beneficial. 

  Sensitivity analysis

 43.2.4 Other price risk

 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of the financial instruments will fluctuate 
because of changes in market prices such as equity price risk. Equity price risk is the risk arising from 
uncertainties about future values of investments securities. As at reporting date, the Company is not 
exposed to equity price risk other than its investment in associated company (note 8).

 Every 5% increase or decrease in exchange rate, with all other variables held constant, will decrease or 
increase (loss) / profit before tax for the year by Rs 2.896 million (2019: Rs 4.714 million).
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Rupees

2020 2019

Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Long-term investments 8 85,030,450 85,030,450
Loans 9 3,952,891 2,374,088
Long-term deposits 10 33,953,962 47,100,425
Trade debts 13 269,997,344 579,628,968
Trade deposits 15 39,749,391 22,955,249
Interest accrued 16 128,444,634 73,054,250
Other receivables 17 29,339,542 13,934,042
Due from related parties 18 1,071,684,058 576,290,498
Bank balances 20 19,221,288 19,830,816

1,681,373,560 1,420,198,786

14,746,985 6,545,766
4,298,162 10,820,967

- 2,285,284
19,045,147 19,652,017

A-1 PACRA

Rating Agency

PACRA

Bank Balances by short-
term rating category

A-1+
A-1+

JCR-VIS

 43.3.2 The Company monitors the credit policy of its financial assets with reference to historical performance of 
such assets and available external credit ratings. The carrying values of financial assets which are neither 
past due nor impaired are as under:

43.3 Credit risk

 43.3.1 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by 
failing to discharging an obligation. The financial assets excludes statutory assets and includes deposits, 
trade and other receivables, interest accrued, investments, due from related parties and cash and bank 
balances. Out of the total financial assets of Rs. 2,459.045 million (2019: 2,247.102 million), the financial 
assets which are subject to credit risk amounted to Rs. 2,458.869 million (2019: 2,246.924 million). The 
Company’s credit risk is primarily attributable to its trade debts and bank balances. The Company has 
large number of customers, including corporate and individuals, due to large number and diversity of its 
customer base, concentration of credit risk with respect to trade debtors is limited. Further, the Company 
manages its credit risk by obtaining advance monitoring fee for device and service charges and effective 
implementation of credit policy for its customers. 

 The credit quality of financial assets that are past due but not impaired is disclosed in note 13.1 to these 
financial statements. As at the reporting date, there are no financial assets that would otherwise be past 
due or impaired whose terms have been renegotiated. 

 43.3.3 The credit quality of Company’s bank balances can be assessed with reference to external credit ratings 
as follows:
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43.4 Liquidity risk

 Liquidity risk represents the risk that a Company will encounter difficulties in meeting obligations with the financial 
liabilities. The financial liabilities excludes statutory liabilities and provisions and includes long-term and short-term 
financing, trade and other payables, accrued markup and due to related parties. The Company's objective is to 
maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of various financing facilities. The 
table below summarises the maturity profile of the Company's financial liabilities at June 30, 2020 and 2019 based 
on contractual undiscounted payment dates and present market interest rates:

On demand Less than 3 to 12 More than Total

3 months months 1 year

2020

Long-term financing - - 104,186,803 393,263,634 497,450,437
Lease liabilities - - 56,682,850 26,419,021 83,101,871
Long-term loans - - 100,471,489 227,448,306 327,919,795
Trade and other payables - 455,617,093 - - 455,617,093
Accrued markup 140,061,771 - - - 140,061,771
Short-term financing - 1,223,503,302 170,665,871 - 1,394,169,173
Running finance under markup 

arrangements 1,105,194,287 - - - 1,105,194,287
Due to related parties 47,772,963 - - - 47,772,963

1,293,029,021 1,679,120,395 432,007,013 647,130,961 4,051,287,390

On demand Less than 3 to 12 More than Total

3 months months 1 year

2019

Long-term financing 44,642,833 - 300,000,000 300,000,000 644,642,833
Lease liabilities 348,400 4,958,470 15,625,626 52,145,571 73,078,066
Long-term loans 37,291,666 57,589,285 166,865,078 148,888,891 410,634,920
Trade and other payables - 159,859,700 347,483,854 - 507,343,554
Accrued markup 68,100,451 - - - 68,100,451
Short-term financing - 12,737,305 - - 12,737,305
Running finance under markup -

arrangements 988,025,014 - - - 988,025,014
Due to related parties 670,119,700 - - - 670,119,700

1,808,528,064 235,144,760 829,974,558 501,034,462 3,374,681,844

------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------------------------------- 

------------------------------------------------------- (Rupees) --------------------------------------------------------- 

43.5 Capital management

 The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in 
order to support its business sustain future development of the business and maximize shareholders value. No 
changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes during the year ended June 30, 2020. The parent 
company is committed to provide full support to the Company, as and when required.

 The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment to it in the light of changes in economic 
conditions. The Company monitors capital using a debt equity ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus 
net debt. Equity comprises of share capital and revenue reserves. The gearing ratio as at June 30, 2020 and 2019 
are as follows:
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note

Long-term financing 23 497,450,437 644,642,833
Lease liabilities 24 83,101,871 73,078,067
Long-term loans 25 327,919,795 410,634,920
Accrued mark-up 28 140,061,771 68,100,451
Short-term financing 29 1,394,169,173 12,737,305
Running finance under mark-up arrangements 30 1,105,194,287 988,025,014
Total debts 3,547,897,334 2,197,218,590

Less: Cash and bank balances 20 19,221,288 19,830,816

Net debt 3,528,676,046 2,177,387,774

Share capital 21 1,204,425,930 929,262,520
Capital reserve 146,817,136 -
Revenue reserve (82,063,384) 128,476,899
Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment 22 284,432,213 555,272,027
Total equity 1,553,611,895 1,613,011,446

Total capital 5,082,287,941 3,790,399,220

Gearing ratio 69.43% 57.44%

 - in the principal market for the asset or liability; or

 The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company. 

 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

43.6 Fair value of financial instruments

 A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participants ability to generate 
economic benefit by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that 
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

 The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data 
are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of 
unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial 
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

  Level 1:  Quoted market price.

  Level 2:  Valuation techniques (market observable)

 - in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

  Level 3:  Valuation techniques (non- market observables)

 The fair value of an asset or a liability is measure using the assumptions that market participants would use when 
pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants at in their economic best interest.

 As of reporting date, the Company has no assets carried at fair value other than property, plant and equipment at 
revalued amount (note 5).

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020



Annual Report 2019-20 101

Rupees

2020 2019

Note

44. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amounts charged in these financial statements for the year are as follows:

2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019

Basic salary 11,574,888 11,574,888 - - 65,360,028
House rent allowance 5,208,696 5,208,696 - - 29,412,000
Utilities 1,156,416 1,156,416 - - 6,529,932
Vehicle allowance 1,260,000 1,260,000 - - 15,888,000
Retirement benefits 964,188 964,188 - - 5,054,736

20,164,188 20,164,188 - - 122,244,696

Number of person(s) 1 1 - -

48,316,500
21,742,404

4,827,060
9,924,000
3,895,776

88,705,740

22 26

TPL Holdings (Private) Limited – (ultimate parent company)
Amount received by the Company from TPLH 88,093,096 172,500,000
Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TPLH 2,766,100 1,490,460
Mark-up on current account 68,271,244 18,447,291
Expenditure paid by TPLH on behalf of the Company 2,799,000 -
Mark-up amount paid by the Company (net) to TPLH - 16,555,806
Amount paid / repaid by the Company to TPLH 623,579,904 129,245,794

Chief Executive Directors Executives

---------------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------------  

44.1 No remuneration is paid / payable to Chief Executive and Executives of the Company on and before June 30, 
2017. In addition, no remuneration is paid / payable to the directors of the Company.

44.2 The Chief Executive, Directors and certain executives of the Company have also been provided with Company’s 
owned and maintained cars and other benefits in accordance with their entitlements as per rules of the Company.

45. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

 Related parties comprise of ultimate parent company, parent company, companies where directors hold common 
directorship, key management personnel and their close family members and staff retirement benefit funds. 
Transactions and balances with related parties other than those disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements 
are as follows:

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note
TPL Corp Limited – (parent company)
Amount received by the Company from TPL Corp 1,133,312,773 809,661,902
Amount paid / repaid by the Company 2,098,144,846 286,436,804
Amount paid by the Company on behalf of TPL Corp - 26,262,205
Mark-up on current account 32,713,172 -
Expenditure incurred by the Company on behalf of TPL Corp 70,747,551 71,856,900
Expenditure incurred for purchase of operating fixed assets 

on behalf of TPL Corp - 1,186,500
Expenditure incurred for purchase of intangible asset 

on behalf of TPL Corp - 440,000
Expenditure incurred for TPLL on behalf of TPL Corp 1,153,536 323,229
Expenditure incurred by the Company for TPLE on behalf of TPL Corp 13,378,030 21,813,967
Expenditure incurred on behalf of the Company 118,971,730 401,737
Settlement of amount payable by the Company to TPL Corp against the 
- amount receivable by the Company from TPLE under signed

Memorandum of Arrangement - 5,682,374
- amount receivable by the Company from TPLL under signed

Memorandum of Arrangement - 2,427,139
- amount receivable by the Company from TSS under signed 

Memorandum of Arrangement - 50,000,000

Associated companies

TPL Security Services (Private) Limited 
Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TSS 24,379,011 123,170,620
Services acquired by the Company from TSS 17,844,664 16,657,110
Amount received by the Company from TSS 418,500 91,999,973
Settlement of amount payable on behalf of the Company from TSS
    for services received from suppliers 16,043,344 16,496,386
Amount paid / repaid by the Company to TSS 9,300,000 -
Settlement of amount payable by the Company to TPL Corp 
   against the amount receivable by the Company from TSS 
   under signed memorandum of arrangement - 50,000,000

TPL Properties Limited 
Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TPLP 36,846,510 19,550,912
Amount paid by the Company to TPLP 3,338,888 -
Amount received by the Company from TPLP 30,817,132 20,759,440
Expenditure incurred / paid by TPLP on behalf of the Company 7,955,821 -
Mark-up on current account 1,441,891 260,868

TPL Insurance Limited 
Sales made by the Company to TIL 179,653,398 227,627,822
Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TIL 113,033,549 95,350,282
Amount received by the Company from TIL 727,300,000 424,727,177
Mark-up on current account 50,119,949 43,152,008
Payment made by the Company to TIL 561,000,000 279,013,318
Expenditure incurred / paid by TIL on behalf of the Company 11,613,216 25,463,740

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020
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Rupees

2020 2019

Note
Trakker Middle East LLC. 
Expenses incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TME 24,876,874 18,800,878
Mark-up on current Account 5,478,865 1,015,882

Trakker Direct Finance (Private) Limited
Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TPLD 47,970 12,000
Mark-up on current account 132,760 104,767

TPL Logistics (Private) Limited 
Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TPLL - 1,149,773
Mark-up on current account - 79,873
Settlement of amount payable by the Company to TPL Corp 
   against the amount receivable by the Company from TPLL 
   under signed memorandum of arrangement (including mark-up) - 2,427,139

TPL Rupiya (Private) Limited 
Amount received by the Company on behalf of TPLR - 23,752,484
Mark-up on current account - 4,665,706
Expenditure incurred by the Company on behalf of TPLR - 39,225,500

TPL Life Insurance Limited 
Amount received by the Company from TPL Life 154,434,369 111,616,953
Expenditure incurred / paid by TPL Life on behalf of the Company 21,685,744 13,042,556
Mark-up on current account 4,255,307 1,874,848
Expenditure incurred by the Company on behalf of TPL Life 83,377,202 43,307,943
Payments made by the Company to TPL Life 74,719,578 85,907,260

TPL Maps (Private) Limited 
Amount received by the Company from TPLM - 106,351,138
Payments made by the Company to TPLM - 16,585,050
Expenditure incurred by the Company on behalf of TPLM - 340,010,969
Mark-up on current account - 38,808,302

TRG Pakistan Limited 
Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TRG - 780,580
Mark-up on current account 1,245,536 943,318

TPL Tech Pakistan (Private) Limited
Expenditure incurred / paid by the Company on behalf of TPL Tech 19,183,278 21,780,890
Mark-up on current account 5,397,198 1,225,293

Staff retirement benefit
Provident fund employer contribution 30,762,275 25,139,433

Key management personnel
Salaries and other benefits 39,894,000 35,789,880
Post employment benefits 1,963,524 1,578,976

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020
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45.1 All transactions with related parties are entered into at agreed terms duly approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Company. The related parties status of outstanding receivables / payables as at June 30, 2020 and 2019 are 
disclosed in respective note to these financial statements.

45.2 Certain employees of the group companies provides services to the Company and accordingly, their cost are 
proportionately charged to the Company on agreed terms. In addition, certain common expenses (other than 
salaries and other benefits) are also allocated within the group companies on agreed basis and terms.

46. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances 20 19,221,288 19,830,816
Running finance under mark-up arrangements 30 (1,105,194,287) (988,025,014)

(1,085,972,999) (968,194,198)

Rupees

2020 2019

Note

47. (LOSS) / EARNING PER SHARE

(Loss) / earning attributable to the ordinary shareholders (458,517,393) 35,862,942

Restated

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue 120,442,593 120,442,593

(Loss) / earning per share – basic and diluted (3.81) 0.30

------- Number of shares -------

47.1 GENERAL

 47.1.1 Corresponding figures have been rearranged, wherever necessary, however, there are no material 
reclassifications to report.

 47.1.2 Number of employees as at June 30, 2020 was 706 (2019: 988) and average number of employees 
during the year was 723 (2019: 977).

 47.1.3 All figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee, unless otherwise stated.

 These financial statements were authorised for issue on September 17, 2020 by the Board of Directors of the 
Company.

48. DATE OF AUTHORISATION OF ISSUE

 There is no dilutive effect on basic earnings per share of the Company.

Notes to the Financial Statements
For the year ended June 30, 2020
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Notice of Annual General Meeting

 “RESOLVED THAT the minutes of Annual General Meeting of TPL Trakker Limited held on October 28, 2019 at 
11:00 am be and are hereby approved.” 

 “RESOLVED THAT the Annual Audited Financial Statements of TPL Trakker Limited, the Directors’ and Auditors’ 
Report thereon for the year ended 30 June 2020 be and are hereby approved.” 

5.  To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, special resolution in terms of Section 199 of the 
Companies Act 2017 to authorize the Company to make advance of Rs. 150 million to the associated company, 
Trakker Middle East L.L.C.

  “RESOLVED THAT M/s EY Ford Rhodes, Chartered Accountants be and are hereby appointed as Auditors of M/s. 
TPL Trakker Limited on the basis of consent received from them, at a fee mutually agreed for the period ending 
June 30, 2021.” 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to renew advance up to Rs. 20 Million to TPL Properties Limited.” 

3.  To appoint Auditors for the year ending June 30, 2021 and fix their remuneration. M/s. EY Ford Rhodes., Chartered 
Accountants retire and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment. 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to make advance of Rs. 600 million to the parent company i.e TPL Corp Limited.” 

6.  To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, special resolution in terms of Section 199 of the 
Companies Act 2017 to authorize the Company to make advance of Rs. 50 million to the associated company, TPL 
Security Services (Pvt.) Limited.

8.  To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification, special resolution in terms of Section 199 of the 
Companies Act 2017, to authorize the Company for renewal of advance up to Rs. 25 million to the associated 
company, TRG Pakistan Limited. 

ORDINARY BUSINESS: 

Notice is hereby given that the Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of TPL Trakker Limited (“Company”) will be held on 
Monday, 26th October, 2020 at 12:15 p.m. to transact the following business:  

(Members are requested to attend and participate in the AGM through video link facility as there will be no venue to 
prevent pandemic outbreak of COVID-19 (Corona Virus)). 

1. To approve the minutes of the Annual General Meeting held on October 28th, 2019. 

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Annual Audited Financial Statements of the Company together with the 
Directors’ and Auditors’ Report thereon for the year ended June 30, 2020. 

SPECIAL BUSINESS: 

4.  To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, special resolution in terms of Section 199 of the 
Companies Act 2017 to authorize the Company to make advance of Rs. 600 million to the parent company, TPL 
Corp Limited.

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to make advance of Rs. 150 million to the associated company i.e Trakker Middle East L.L.C.” 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to make advance of Rs. 50 million to the associated company i.e TPL Security Services (Pvt.) Limited..” 

7.  To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification, special resolution in terms of Section 199 of the 
Companies Act 2017, to authorize the Company for renewal of advance up to Rs. 20 million to the associated 
company, TPL Properties Limited. 
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9.  To consider and, if thought fit, pass with or without modification, special resolution in terms of Section 199 of the 
Companies Act 2017, to authorize the Company for renewal of advance up to Rs. 100 million to the associated 
company, TPL Tech Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited. 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to renew advance up to Rs. 25 Million to TRG Pakistan Limited.” 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 199 of the Companies Act 2017, the Company be and is hereby authorized 
to renew advance up to Rs. 100 Million to TPL Tech Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited.” 

10.  To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, special resolution for remuneration of non-
executive directors, as determined by the Board of Directors of the Company, at PKR 100,000/- per meeting 
(including sub-committee meetings):

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Section 170 of the Companies Act 2017 read along with Articles of Association of 
the Company, approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company, for 
the remuneration of non-executive directors at PKR 100,000/- per meeting (including sub-committee meetings).” 

11.  To consider and if thought fit to pass with or without modification(s), the following resolutions as special 
resolutions to create, offer, issue and allot shares under TPL Trakker Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020 
(the ESOP Scheme) under Companies (Further Issue of Capital) Regulations, 2020. 

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to section 83 of the Companies Act, 2017(the Act) read along with regulation 7 of the 
Companies (Further Issue of Capital) Regulations, 2020 and Memorandum and Articles of Association of the 
Company, approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company, for 
setting aside of 10% of the shareholders Equity/Paid-Up Capital as Stock Options to be awarded to the Key 
Managerial Personnel and other key employees, from time to time, as a mechanism to attract, retain and motive 
them to realize the stated business goals.” 

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to section 82 and 83 of the Companies Act, 2017(the Act) read along with 
regulation 7 of the Companies (Further Issue of Capital) Regulations, 2020 and Memorandum and Articles of 
Association of the Company, approval of the members be and is hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the 
Company, subject to any amendments that may be required by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan (the SECP), to issue, offer and allot to eligible employees of the Company, options exercisable into equity 
shares of the Company of nominal value of Rs.10 each up to 8,000,000 shares under TPL Trakker Limited 
Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020 (the ESOP scheme), at discounted exercise price with retrospective effect 
from August 10, 2020 .” 

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to provision under regulation 7 of the Companies (Further Issue of Capital) 
Regulations, 2020, the grant of options equal to or exceeding one percent of the issued or paid up capital of the 
company at the time of grant of options, within one year, to any employee be and is hereby approved.” 

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to provision under regulation 7 of the Companies (Further Issue of Capital) 
Regulations, 2020, the grant of options to any employee of subsidiary or holding Company, subject to the approval 
of the members at the General Meeting, be and is hereby approved.” 

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board be and is hereby authorized to make modifications in the Scheme 
including in any ancillary documents thereto, as it may deem fit, from time to time in its absolute discretion in 
conformity with the provisions of the Act, the Memorandum of Association And Articles Of Association of the 
Company and any other applicable laws.” 

 “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT pursuant to sub sec (1)(b) of sec 83 of the Act read along with regulation 5 of the 
Companies (Further Issue of Capital) Regulations, 2020, the Company be and is hereby authorized to raise further 
capital and allot and issue, up to 4.27% of the existing paid-up Capital, 8,000,000 further ordinary shares of PKR.10/- 
each, without issue of right shares, to its employees under the ESOP Scheme at the price mentioned in above 
resolution.” 

Notice of Annual General Meeting
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Advance of PKR 600 Million to TPL Corp Limited:

The Company is desirous of making advances to TPL Corp Limited to meet working capital requirements. The advance of 
a maximum amount of PKR. 600 Million has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their meeting 
held on September 17, 2020. 

The information required to be annexed to the Notice by Notification No. S. R. O. 1240(I)/2017 dated December 06, 2017 is 
set out below:

Statement of Material Facts under Section 134(3) of the 
Companies Act, 2017 relating to the said Special Business:  

S. No.

 

Requirement Information
i.

 

Name of the associated company or
associated undertaking

TPL Corp Limited

ii. Basis of relationship Parent
iii. Earnings per share for the last three

years of the Associated Company
2020: (1.57), 2019: (0.63), 2018: (0.48)

iv. Break-up value per share, based on
latest audited financial statements

PKR 10.59 per share

v. Financial position of the associated
company

The extracts of the audited balance sheet and profit and 
loss account of the associated company as at and for the 
period ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Balance Sheet Rupees

Non-current assets 4,708,691,539

Other assets 151,693,683

Total Assets 4,860,385,222

Total Liabilities 2,029,813,518

Represented by:

Paid up capital
Advance against right shares

2,672,977,630

Capital Reserve 60,855,762

Accumulated (loss) (300,342,044)

Equity 2,830,571,704

Profit and Loss

(Loss) before interest and 
taxation

(94,858,321)

Financial charges (325,434,131)

(Loss) before taxation (420,292,452)

Taxation -

(Loss) after taxation (420,292,452)
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vi In case of investment in a project of an
associated company / undertaking
that has not commenced operations,
in addition to the information referred 
to above, the following further
information is also required:
a) a description of the project and its
history since conceptualization;
b) starting date and expected date of
completion; c) time by which such project
shall become commercially operational;
d) expected return on total capital
employed in the project; and

e) funds invested or to be invested by
the promoters distinguishing
between cash and non-cash
amounts;

Not applicable

vii. Maximum amount of investment /advance to 
be made

PKR 600,000,000

viii.
Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to
the investing company and its
members from such investment and
period of investment;

Not applicable

ix. Sources of funds to be utilized for
investment and where the investment
is intended to be made using 
borrowed funds,-
(I) justification for investment through

borrowings; 
(II) detail of collateral, guarantees

provided and assets pledged for
obtaining such funds; and

(III) cost benefit analysis;

Not applicable

x. Salient features of the agreement(s), 
if any, with associated company or
associated undertaking with regards

None

to the proposed investment;
xi. Direct or indirect interest, of directors,

sponsors, majority shareholders and
their relatives, if any, in the associated
company/undertaking or the 
transaction under consideration

None

xii. In case any investment in associated
company or associated undertaking
has already been made, the
performance review of such investment 
including complete
information/justification for any 
impairment or write offs; and

None 

xiii. Any other important details necessary
for the members to understand the
transaction;

None

xiv.

Category-wise amount of investment; None
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xv. Average borrowing cost of the investing 
company or in case of absence of borrowing 
the KIBOR (Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate) 
for the relevant period

3 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvi Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or 
commission etc. to be charged by investing 
company;

3 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvii. Particulars of collateral or security to be 
obtained in relation to the proposed 
investment;

None

xviii. If the investment carries conversion feature 
i.e. it is convertible into securities, this fact 
along with terms and conditions including 
conversion formula, circumstances in which 
the conversion may take place and the time 
when the conversion may be exercisable; 
and

None

xix. Repayment schedule and terms and 
conditions of loans or advances to be given 
to the associated company or associated 
undertaking.

Repayable on demand.

xx.. Sources of funds from where loans or 
advances will be given

Own source

xxi. Where loans or advances are being granted 
using borrowed funds:

a) justification for granting loan or advance 
out of borrowed funds;

b) detail of guarantees / assets pledged for 
obtaining such funds, if any; and

c) repayment schedules of borrowing of the 
investing company

Not applicable

xxii. Particulars of collateral or security to be 
obtained in relation to the proposed 
investment;

Letter of comfort /The loan is unsecured.

xxiii. If the loans or advances carry conversion 
feature i.e. it is convertible into securities, this 
fact along with complete detail including 
conversion formula, circumstances in which 
the conversion may take place and the time 
when the conversion may be exercisable;

Not applicable.

S. No. Requirement Information
i. Name of the associated company or

associated undertaking
Trakker Middle East LLC

ii. Basis of relationship Associated

Advance of PKR 150 Million to Trakker Middle East LLC:

The Company is desirous of making advances to Trakker Middle East LLC to meet working capital requirements. The 
advance of a maximum amount of PKR. 150 Million has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their 
meeting held on September 17, 2020. 

The information required to be annexed to the Notice by Notification No. S. R. O. 1240(I)/2017 dated December 06, 2017 is 
set out below:
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iii. Earnings per share for the last three
years of the Associated Company

2020: (15,598.85) 2019: (5,174.71) 2018: (8447.85)

iv. Break-up value per share, based on
latest audited financial statements

PKR 10,286.46 per Share

v. Financial position of the associated
company

The extracts of the unaudited balance sheet and profit and 
loss account of the associated company as at and for the 
period ended June 30, 2020 is as follows:

Balance Sheet Rupees

Non-current assets 11,726,419 

Other assets 361,898,201 

Total Assets 373,624,620 

Total Liabilities 410,462,673 

Represented by:

Paid up capital
Advance against right shares

259,408,737 

Statutory Reserves 51,885,270 

Subordinated Loan from 
Sponsor

95,162,288

Accumulated (loss) (348,132,061)

Equity 58,324,234

Profit and Loss

(Loss) before interest and 
taxation

(88,011,578)

Financial charges (433,925)

(Loss) before taxation (88,445,459)

Taxation -

(Loss) after taxation (88,445,459)

vi In case of investment in a project of an 
associated company / undertaking that has 
not commenced operations, in addition to 
the information referred to above, the 
following further information is also required:

a) a description of the project and its history 
since conceptualization;

b) starting date and expected date of 
completion; c) time by which such project 
shall become commercially operational;

d) expected return on total capital employed 
in the project; and

e) funds invested or to be invested by the 
promoters distinguishing between cash and 
non-cash amounts;

Not applicable
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vii. Maximum amount of investment/advance to 
be made

PKR 150,000,000

viii.
Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to
the investing company and its
members from such investment and
period of investment;

Not applicable

ix. Sources of funds to be utilized for
investment and where the investment
is intended to be made using 
borrowed funds,-

(I) justification for investment
through borrowings; 

(II) detail of collateral, guarantees
provided and assets pledged for
obtaining such funds; and

(III) cost benefit analysis;

Not applicable

x. Salient features of the agreement(s), 
if any, with associated company or
associated undertaking with regards
to the proposed investment;

None

xi. Direct or indirect interest, of directors,
sponsors, majority shareholders and
their relatives, if any, in the associated
company/undertaking or the 
transaction under consideration

None

xii. In case any investment in associated
company or associated undertaking
has already been made, the
performance review of such investment 
including complete

None 

information/justification for any 
impairment or write offs; and

xiii.

 

Any other important details necessary
for the members to understand the
transaction;

None

xiv.

Category-wise amount of investment; None
xv. Average borrowing cost of the investing 

company or in case of absence of borrowing 
the KIBOR (Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate) 
for the relevant period

6 month KIBOR+3%

xvi Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or 
commission etc. to be charged by investing 
company;

6 month KIBOR+3%

xvii. Particulars of collateral or security to be 
obtained in relation to the proposed 
investment;

None

xviii. If the investment carries conversion feature 
i.e. it is convertible into securities, this fact 
along with terms and conditions including 
conversion formula, circumstances in which 
the conversion may take place and the time 
when the conversion may be exercisable; 
and

None
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 xix. Repayment schedule and terms and 
conditions of loans or advances to be given 
to the associated company or associated 
undertaking.

Repayable on demand.

xx.. Sources of funds from where loans or 
advances will be given

Own source

xxi. Where loans or advances are being granted 
using borrowed funds:

a) justification for granting loan or advance 
out of borrowed funds;

b) detail of guarantees / assets pledged for 
obtaining such funds, if any; and

c) repayment schedules of borrowing of the 
investing company

Not applicable

xxii. Particulars of collateral or security to be 
obtained in relation to the proposed 
investment;

Letter of comfort /The loan is unsecured.

xxiii. If the loans or advances carry conversion 
feature i.e. it is convertible into securities, this 
fact along with complete detail including 
conversion formula, circumstances in which 
the conversion may take place and the time 
when the conversion may be exercisable;

Not applicable.

The Company is desirous of making advances to TPL Security Services (Pvt.) Limited to meet working capital 
requirements. The advance of a maximum amount of PKR. 50 Million has been approved by the Board of Directors of the 
Company in their meeting held on September 17, 2020. 

Advance of PKR 50 Million to TPL Security Services (Pvt.) Limited:

The information required to be annexed to the Notice by Notification No. S. R. O. 1240(I)/2017 dated December 06, 2017 is 
set out below:

S. No. Requirement Information
i. Name of the associated company or

associated undertaking
TPL Security Services (Pvt.) Ltd.

ii. Basis of relationship Associated
iii. Earnings per share for the last three

years of the Associated Company 2020: 5.37, 2019: (2.97), 2018: (1.66)
iv. Break-up value per share, based on

latest audited financial statements
PKR (11.35) per share
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v. Financial position of the associated
company

The extracts of the audited balance sheet and 
profit and loss account of the associated
company as at and for the period ended June 30,
2020 is as follows:

Balance Sheet Rupees

Non-current assets 7,616,691

Other assets 83,520,914

Total Assets 91,137,605

Total Liabilities 114,978,948

Represented by:

Paid up capital
Advance against right shares

21,000,000

Capital Reserve

Accumulated (loss) (44,841,343)

Equity (23,841,343)

Profit and Loss

(Loss) before interest and 
taxation

19,543,782

Financial charges -

(Loss) before taxation 19,543,782

Taxation 8,275,605

(Loss) after taxation 11,268,177

Vi In case of investment in a project of an
associated company / undertaking
that has not commenced operations,

Not applicable

in addition to the information referred 
to above, the following further
information is also required:
a) a description of the project and its
history since conceptualization;
b) starting date and expected date of
completion; c) time by which such project
shall become commercially operational;
d) expected return on total capital
employed in the project; and

e) funds invested or to be invested by
the promoters distinguishing
between cash and non-cash
amounts;

vii. Maximum amount of investment/advance to 
be made

PKR 50,000,000
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viii.
Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to 
the investing company and its
members from such investment and 
period of investment;

Not applicable

ix. Sources of funds to be utilized for
investment and where the investment
is intended to be made using 
borrowed funds,-

(I) justification for investment
through borrowings; 

(II) detail of collateral, guarantees
provided and assets pledged for
obtaining such funds; and

(III) cost benefit analysis;

Not applicable

x. Salient features of the agreement(s), 
if any, with associated company or
associated undertaking with regards
to the proposed investment;

None

xi. Direct or indirect interest, of directors,
sponsors, majority shareholders and
their relatives, if any, in the associated
company/undertaking or the 
transaction under consideration

None

xii. In case any investment in associated
company or associated undertaking
has already been made, the
performance review of such investment 
including complete
information/justification for any 
impairment or write offs; and

None 

xiii. Any other important details necessary
for the members to understand the
transaction;

None

xiv.

Category-wise amount of investment; None

xv. Average borrowing cost of the investing 
company or in case of absence of borrowing 
the KIBOR (Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate) 

6 month KIBOR+3%

for the relevant period
xvi Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or 

commission etc. to be charged by investing 
company;

6 month KIBOR+3%

xvii. Particulars of collateral or security to be 
obtained in relation to the proposed 
investment;

None

xviii. If the investment carries conversion feature 
i.e. it is convertible into securities, this fact 
along with terms and conditions including 
conversion formula, circumstances in which 
the conversion may take place and the time 
when the conversion may be exercisable; 
and

None

xix. Repayment schedule and terms and 
conditions of loans or advances to be given 
to the associated company or associated 
undertaking.

None
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xx. Sources of funds from where loans or 
advances will be given

Own source

xxi. Where loans or advances are being granted 
using borrowed funds:

a) justification for granting loan or advance 
out of borrowed funds;

b) detail of guarantees / assets pledged for 
obtaining such funds, if any; and

c) repayment schedules of borrowing of the 
investing company

Not applicable

xxii. Particulars of collateral or security to be 
obtained in relation to the proposed 
investment;

Letter of comfort / The loan is unsecured.

xxiii. If the loans or advances carry conversion 
feature i.e. it is convertible into securities, this 
fact

along with complete detail including 
conversion formula, circumstances in which 
the conversion may take place and the time 
when the conversion may be exercisable;

Not applicable.

S. No. Requirement Information
i. Name of the associated company or

associated undertaking TPL Properties Limited
ii. Basis of relationship Associated

iii. Earnings per share for the last three

Advance of Rs. 20 Million to TPL Properties Limited:

The Company is desirous of making advances to TPL Properties Limited to meet working capital requirements. The 
advance of a maximum amount of PKR. 20 Million has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their 
meeting held on September 17, 2020. 

The information required to be annexed to the Notice by Notification No. S. R. O. 1240(I)/2017 dated December 06, 2017 is 
set out below:

years of the Associated Company 2020: 0.85, 2019: 2.23, 2018: 3.77
iv. Break-up value per share, based on

latest audited financial statements PKR 19.67 per share
v. Financial position of the associated

company
The extracts of the audited balance sheet and 
profit and loss account of the associated
company as at and for the period ended June 30,
2020 is as follows:

Balance Sheet Rupees

Non-current assets 1,967,915,491

Other assets 8,129,642,030

Total Assets 10,097,557,521

Total Liabilities 3,659,289,149

Represented by:
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Paid up capital 3,273,931,063

Share Premium (404,845,756)

Accumulated Profit 3,569,183,065

Equity 6,438,268,372

Profit and Loss

Profit/(Loss) before interest 
and taxation

696,594,969

Financial charges (419,071,628)

Profit/(Loss) before taxation 277,523,341

Taxation (543,270)

Profit/(Loss) after taxation 276,980,071

vi In case of investment in a project of an
associated company / undertaking
that has not commenced operations,
in addition to the information referred 
to above, the following further
information is also required:
a) a description of the project and its
history since conceptualization;
b) starting date and expected date of
completion; c) time by which such project
shall become commercially operational;
d) expected return on total capital
employed in the project; and

e) funds invested or to be invested by
the promoters distinguishing
between cash and non-cash
amounts;

Not applicable

vii. Maximum amount of investment /advance to PKR 20,000,000
be made

viii.

  
Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to 
the investing company and its
members from such investment and 
period of investment;

Not applicable

ix. Sources of funds to be utilized for
investment and where the investment
is intended to be made using 
borrowed funds,-

(III) justification for investment
through borrowings; 

(IV) detail of collateral,
guarantees provided and assets
pledged for obtaining such funds;
and

(III) cost benefit analysis;

Not applicable

x. Salient features of the agreement(s), 
if any, with associated company or
associated undertaking with regards
to the proposed investment;

None
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xi. Direct or indirect interest, of directors,
sponsors, majority shareholders and
their relatives, if any, in the associated
company/undertaking or the 
transaction under consideration

None

xii. In case any investment in associated
company or associated undertaking
has already been made, the
performance review of such investment 
including complete
information/justification for any 
impairment or write offs; and

None 

xiii. Any other important details necessary
for the members to understand the
transaction;

None

xiv. Category-wise amount of investment;

xv. Average borrowing cost of the investing 
company or in case of absence of borrowing 
the KIBOR (Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate) 
for the relevant period

6 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvi Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or 
commission etc. to be charged by investing 
company;

6 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvii. Particulars of collateral or security to be 
obtained in relation to the proposed 
investment;

None

xviii. If the investment carries conversion feature 
i.e. it is convertible into securities, this fact 
along with terms and conditions including 
conversion formula, circumstances in which 
the conversion may take place and the time 
when the conversion may be exercisable; 

None

and
xix. Repayment schedule and terms and 

conditions of loans or advances to be given 
to the associated company or associated 
undertaking.

Repayable on demand

xx. Sources of funds from where loans or 
advances will be given

Own source

Where loans or advances are being granted 
using borrowed funds:

a) justification for granting loan or advance 
out of borrowed funds;

b) detail of guarantees / assets pledged for 
obtaining such funds, if any; and

c) repayment schedules of borrowing of the 
investing company

Not applicable

xxii. Particulars of collateral or security to be 
obtained in relation to the proposed 
investment;

Letter of comfort / The loan is unsecured.

None

xxi.
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xxiii. If the loans or advances carry conversion 
feature i.e. it is convertible into securities, this 
fact

along with complete detail including 
conversion formula, circumstances in which 
the conversion may take place and the time 
when the conversion may be exercisable;

Not applicable.

S. No. Requirement Information
i. Name of the associated company or

associated undertaking TRG Pakistan Limited
ii. Basis of relationship Associated

iii. Earnings per share for the last three
years of the Associated Company 2020:0.002, 2019: 0.003, 2018: (0.399)

iv. Break-up value per share, based on
latest audited financial statements PKR 27.785 per share

v. Financial position of the associated
company

The extracts of the reviewed balance sheet and 
profit and loss account of the associated
company as at and for the period ended December 
31, 2019 is as follows:

Balance Sheet Rupees

Non-current assets 16,517,005

The information required to be annexed to the Notice by Notification No. S. R. O. 1240(I)/2017 dated December 06, 2017 is 
set out below: 

The Company is desirous of making advances to TRG Pakistan Limited to meet working capital requirements. The 
advance of a maximum amount of PKR. 25 Million has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in their 
meeting held on September 17, 2020.  

Advance of Rs. 25 Million to TRG Pakistan Limited:

Other assets 1,603,664

Total Assets 18,120,669

Total Liabilities

Represented by:

Paid up capital
Advance against right shares

5,453,907

Foreign currency translation 
reserve

7,768,712

Fair value reserve - net of 
deferred tax

2,554,208

Accumulated (loss) (507,276)

Equity 15,269,551

Profit and Loss
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Profit before interest and 
taxation

1,296

Financial charges -

(Loss) before taxation 1,296

Taxation (321)

(Loss) after taxation 975

vi In case of investment in a project of an
associated company / undertaking
that has not commenced operations,
in addition to the information referred 
to above, the following further
information is also required:
a) a description of the project and its
history since conceptualization;
b) starting date and expected date of
completion; c) time by which such project
shall become commercially operational;
d) expected return on total capital
employed in the project; and

e) funds invested or to be invested by
the promoters distinguishing
between cash and non-cash
amounts;

Not applicable

vii. Maximum amount of investment /advance to 
be made

PKR 25,000,000

viii.
Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to
the investing company and its
members from such investment and
period of investment;

Not applicable

ix. Sources of funds to be utilized for
investment and where the investment
is intended to be made using 

Not applicable

borrowed funds,-
(I) justification for investment

through borrowings; 
(II) detail of collateral, guarantees

provided and assets pledged for
obtaining such funds; and

(III) cost benefit analysis;
x. Salient features of the agreement(s), 

if any, with associated company or
associated undertaking with regards
to the proposed investment;

None

xi. Direct or indirect interest, of directors,
sponsors, majority shareholders and
their relatives, if any, in the associated
company/undertaking or the 
transaction under consideration

None

xii. In case any investment in associated
company or associated undertaking
has already been made, the
performance review of such investment 
including complete
information/justification for any 
impairment or write offs; and

None 
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xiii. Any other important details necessary
for the members to understand the
transaction;

None

xiv.

Category-wise amount of investment; None
xv. Average borrowing cost of the investing 

company or in case of absence of borrowing 
the KIBOR (Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate) 
for the relevant period

6 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvi Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or 
commission etc. to be charged by investing 
company;

6 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvii. Particulars of collateral or security to be 
obtained in relation to the proposed 
investment;

None

xviii. If the investment carries conversion feature 
i.e. it is convertible into securities, this fact 
along with terms and conditions including 
conversion formula, circumstances in which 
the conversion may take place and the time 
when the conversion may be exercisable; 
and

None

xix. Repayment schedule and terms and 
conditions of loans or advances to be given 
to the associated company or associated 
undertaking.

Repayable on demand.

xx.. Sources of funds from where loans or 
advances will be given

Own source

Where loans or advances are being granted 
using borrowed funds:

Not applicable

a) justification for granting loan or advance 
out of borrowed funds;

b) detail of guarantees / assets pledged for 
obtaining such funds, if any; and

c) repayment schedules of borrowing of the 
investing company

xxii. Particulars of collateral or security to be 
obtained in relation to the proposed 
investment;

Letter of comfort / The loan is unsecured.

xxiii. If the loans or advances carry conversion 
feature i.e. it is convertible into securities, this 
fact

along with complete detail including 
conversion formula, circumstances in which 
the conversion may take place and the time 
when the conversion may be exercisable;

Not applicable.

The information required to be annexed to the Notice by Notification No. S. R. O. 1240(I)/2017 dated December 06, 2017 is 
set out below:

The Company is desirous of making advances to TPL Tech Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited to meet working capital requirements. 
The advance of a maximum amount of PKR. 100 Million has been approved by the Board of Directors of the Company in 
their meeting held on September 17, 2020. 

Advance of Rs. 100 Million to TPL Tech Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited:

xxi..
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S. No. Requirement Information
i. Name of the associated company or

associated undertaking TPL Tech Pakistan (Pvt.) Limited
ii. Basis of relationship Associated

iii. Earnings per share for the last three
years of the Associated Company

N.A

iv. Break-up value per share, based on
latest audited financial statements

N.A

v. Financial position of the associated
company

The extracts of the reviewed balance sheet and 
profit and loss account of the associated
company as at and for the period ended June
30, 2020 is as follows:

Balance Sheet Rupees

Non-current assets N.A

Other assets N.A

Total Assets N.A

Total Liabilities N.A

Represented by:

Paid up capital N.A

Capital Reserve N.A

Accumulated (loss) N.A

Surplus on Revaluation of 
Fixed Assets

N.A

Equity N.A

Profit and Loss

Profit before interest and 
taxation

N.A

Financial charges N.A

Profit/(Loss) before taxation N.A

Taxation N.A

Profit/(Loss) after taxation N.A

vi In case of investment in a project of an
associated company / undertaking
that has not commenced operations,
in addition to the information referred 
to above, the following further
information is also required:
a) a description of the project and its
history since conceptualization;
b) starting date and expected date of
completion; c) time by which such project
shall become commercially operational;
d) expected return on total capital
employed in the project; and

Not applicable
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e) funds invested or to be invested by
the promoters distinguishing
between cash and non-cash
amounts;

vii. Maximum amount of investment to be made PKR 100,000,000
viii.

Purpose, benefits likely to accrue to
the investing company and its
members from such investment and
period of investment;

Not applicable

ix. Sources of funds to be utilized for
investment and where the investment
is intended to be made using 
borrowed funds,-

(I) justification for investment
through borrowings; 

(II) detail of collateral, guarantees
provided and assets pledged for
obtaining such funds; and

(III) cost benefit analysis;

Not applicable

x. Salient features of the agreement(s), 
if any, with associated company or
associated undertaking with regards
to the proposed investment;

Not applicable

xi.
 

Direct or indirect interest, of directors,
sponsors, majority shareholders and
their relatives, if any, in the associated
company/undertaking or the 
transaction under consideration

None

xii. In case any investment in associated
company or associated undertaking
has already been made, the
performance review of such investment 
including complete
information/justification for any 
impairment or write offs; and

None 

xiii. Any other important details necessary
for the members to understand the
transaction;

None

xiv.

Category-wise amount of investment; None
xv. Average borrowing cost of the investing 

company or in case of absence of borrowing 
the KIBOR (Karachi Inter Bank Offered Rate) 
for the relevant period

6 month KIBOR + 3%.

xvi Rate of interest, mark up, profit, fees or 
commission etc. to be charged by investing 
company;

6 month KIBOR + 3%

xvii. Particulars of collateral or security to be 
obtained in relation to the proposed 
investment;

None

xviii. If the investment carries conversion feature 
i.e. it is convertible into securities, this fact 
along with terms and conditions including 
conversion formula, circumstances in which 
the conversion may take place and the time 
when the conversion may be exercisable; 
and

None
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xix. Repayment schedule and terms and 
conditions of loans or advances to be given 
to the associated company or associated 
undertaking.

Repayable on demand.

xx. Sources of funds from where loans or 
advances will be given

Own source

Where loans or advances are being granted 
using borrowed funds:

a) justification for granting loan or advance 
out of borrowed funds;

b) detail of guarantees / assets pledged for 
obtaining such funds, if any; and

c) repayment schedules of borrowing of the 
investing company

Not applicable

xxii. Particulars of collateral or security to be 
obtained in relation to the proposed 
investment;

Letter of comfort /The loan is unsecured.

xxiii. If the loans or advances carry conversion 
feature i.e. it is convertible into securities, this 

Not applicable.

fact

 

along with complete detail including 
conversion formula, circumstances in which 
the conversion may take place and the time 
when the conversion may be exercisable;

To approve remuneration of non-executive directors at PKR 100,000/- per meeting (including sub-committee 
meetings): 

 By Order of the Board  

To create, offer, issue and allot shares under TPL Trakker Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020 (the Scheme) 
under Companies (Further Issue of Capital) Regulations, 2020. 

12.  To transact any other business with the permission of the Chairman.  

 Company Secretary           Karachi, October 05, 2020 

The Board of Directors of the Company in its meeting held on September 17, 2020 has approved and recommended to 
shareholders the Directors’ remuneration for attending Board and Committees’ meeting at PKR 100,000/- per meeting 
(including sub-committee meetings) in pursuant to Section 170 of the Companies Act 2017. 

ANY OTHER BUSINESS 

 Danish Qazi

With an objective to attract, retain and motivate the best talent, the Board of Directors (the Board) of the Company has 
proposed to reserve certain percentage of further issue, not exceeding 10% of the shareholders Equity/Paid-Up Capital of 
the Company, for its employees under Employee Stock Option Scheme. The Board also proposed to issue, offer, and allot 
options exercisable into equity shares of the Company of nominal value of Rs.10 each up to 8,000,000 shares under TPL 
Trakker Limited Employee Stock Option Scheme 2020 (the ESOP scheme), to the employees, duly determined by the 
Board and its Human Resource & Remuneration/Compensation Committee for the vesting period of 2 years at discounted 
exercise price within exercise period of 1 year. 

xxi.
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 The Share Transfer Book of the Company will remain closed from October 20th, 2020 to October 26th, 2020 (both 
days inclusive). Share Transfers received at M/s THK Associates (Pvt.) Ltd, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S, 
KARACHI-75400 by the close of business hours (5:00 PM) on October 19th, 2020, will be treated as being in time 
for the purpose of above entitlement to the transferees.  

4. For Attending the Meeting:

2. Closure of Share Transfer Books: 

ii. In case of corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature 
of the nominee shall be provided via email to aforementioned id.  

 As per directives of Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan to convene the annual general meeting with 
minimum members ensuring quorum of the meeting, the members are requested to consolidate their attendance 
and voting at the Annual General Meeting through proxies.  

 In view of the pandemic outbreak of COVID-19 (Corona Virus) and directives of the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide Circular No. 05 of 2020 dated March 17, 2020, and extension of the 
applicability thereof vide Circular No. 25 of 2020 dated August 31, 2020, requiring listed companies to modify their 
usual planning for annual general meetings to protect the wellbeing of shareholders, the Company requests its 
members to attend and participate in the AGM through video link facility only to avoid large gathering at one place 
and prevent pandemic outbreak of COVID-19 (Corona Virus). 

 Therefore, to attend and participate in the AGM through video link facility, members are requested to register their 
particulars (Name, Folio/CDS Account Number, CNIC Number and Cell Phone Number) with the Company 
Secretary by emailing to company.secretary@tplholdings.com at least 24 hours before the time of AGM. 

i. In case of individual, the Account holder and/or Sub-account holder whose registration details are 
uploaded as per the CDC regulations, shall authenticate his/her identity by providing copy of his/her valid 
CNIC or passport along with other particulars (Name, Folio/CDS Account Number, Cell Phone Number) 
via email to aforementioned id and in case of proxy must enclose copy of his/her CNIC or passport. 

3. Participation in the Meeting:

 All members of the Company are entitled to attend the meeting and vote there at through Proxy. A proxy duly 
appointed shall have such rights as respect to the speaking and voting at the meeting as are available to a 
member. Duly filled and signed Proxy Form must be received at the Registrar of the Company M/s THK Associates 
(Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S, KARACHI-75400, not less than 48 hours before the Meeting. 

5. Change of Address: 

 The members can also provide comments/suggestions for the proposed agenda items of the Annual General 
Meeting by emailing the same to company.secretary@tplholdings.com. 

 Members are requested to immediately notify the change, if any, in their registered address to the Share Registrar 
M/s. THK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, 1st Floor, 40-C, Block-6, P.E.C.H.S, Karachi-75400. 

6. Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2020 have been placed on the website of the Company, 
http://tpltrakker.com/.     

Notes  

1. Coronavirus Contingency Planning
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I/We ________________________________S/o / D/o / W/o _________________________________ 

resident of (full address)  _____________________________________________________________ being 

a member(s) of TPL Trakker Limited, holding ___________________________________ ordinary shares, 

hereby appoint ______________________________ S/o / D/o / W/o ____________________________ 

resident of (full address)__________________________________________________or failing him / her 

__________________________________ S/o / D/o / W/o __________________________________ 

resident of (full address)_____________________________________________________________ as my / 

our proxy in my / our absence to attend and vote for me / us on my / our behalf at Annual General Meeting of the 

Company to be held on Monday, 26th October, 2020 and/or adjournment thereof. 

As witness my / our hand (s) seal this on the ____________ day of ________________ 2020.

 Name:

 CNIC or Passport No:

1. Signature: 

 Address:

Folio No. / CDC Account No. 

Signature on                  

Revenue Stamp of 

Appropriate Value.
2. Signature: 

 Name:

 Address:

 CNIC or Passport No:

Signed by the said:In presence of: 

Form of Proxy
Annual General Meeting of TPL Trakker Limited

The signature should agree 
with the specimen registered 

with the Company.
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3.  In case of a proxy for an individual CDC shareholder, attested copies of CNIC or the 

passport, account and participant’s ID number of the beneficial owner and along with 

the proxy is required to be furnished with the proxy form.  

Important Instructions:

1. The Proxy form, duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registrar’s Office 

of the Company not less than forty eight (48) hours before the time of holding the 

meeting.   

4.  In case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors’ resolution / power of attorney with 

the specimen signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along 

with the proxy form of the Company. 

2. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instrument of proxy are 

deposited by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be 

rendered invalid. 
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12th & 13th Floor, Centrepoint, Off Shaheed-e-Millat Expressway, 
Adjacent KPT Interchange, Karachi-74900
 +92-21-34390300-5
 info@trakker.com.pk
 www.tpltrakker.com
 trakker.ltd tpl__trakker tpl-trakker-ltd

Corporate Office
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